
SELECT BOARD MEETING 
Monday, January 13, 2025 

6:00 pm 
Nowak Room, Town Offices 

10 Front Street, Exeter, NH 03833 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING BEGINS AT 7:00 PM 

Virtual Meetings can be watched on Ch 22 or Ch 98 and YouTube. 

To access the meeting, click this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83193485521 

To access the meeting via telephone, call: +1646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 831 9348 5521 

Please join the meeting with your fu ll name if you want to speak. 

Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9. 

More instructions for how to access the meeting can be found here: 
https ://www. exetern h .gov /townmanager /virtual-town-meetings 

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues. 

AGENDA 

1. Call Meeting to Order 

2. Non-Public Session 

3. Bid Award 

a. 2025 Chemical Bid Award 

4. Public Comment 

5. Approval of Minutes 

a. Regular Meeting: January 6, 2025 

6. Discussion/ Action Items 

a. Collective Bargaining Cost Items 

b. TIF Update 

c. FY25 Budget and Warrant Articles 

7. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions 

8. Permits & Approvals 

9. Town Manager's Report 

10. Select Board Committee Reports 

11. Correspondence 

12. Review Board Calendar 

13. Non-Public Session 

14. Adjournment 

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 

Select Board 



Posted 1/10/25 Town Office, Town Website 

Persons may request an accommodation for a disabling condition in order to attend this 

meeting. It is asked that such requests be made with 72 hours notice. 

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE 



Bid Award 



TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
13 NEWFIELDS ROAD• EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 773-6157 •FAX 772-1355 

www.e.xetern/i .gov 

Memo 
To: Russell Dean 

From: Stephen Dalton 

CC: Stephen Cronin, Paul Roy, Trisha Allen, Pam McElroy 

Date: January 9, 2025 

Re: Award of Chemical Bids for 2025 

The Public Works Department has reviewed the bid results and recommends award to the following 
companies. The bid recommendations are as follows: 

Bid Item # I 
To: 

Unit Price: 

Sodium Hypochlorite 15% solution 
Univar Solutions 
Morrisville, PA @ $2.03 10/gal 
(2 15) 428-6990 

Bid Item #2 Activated Carbon 
To: 

Bid Item #3 
To: 

Bid Item #4 
To: 

Carbon Activated Corporation 
Compton, CA @ $ 1.3500/lb 
(3 10) 885-4555 

Potassium Permanganate 
Shannon Chemical Corporation 
Malvern, PA @ $2.3300/lb 
(6 10) 363-9090 

Sodium Hydroxide 
Borden & Remington 
Fall River, MA @ $ 1.4510/gal 
(508) 675-0096 

Projected Annual 
Total 

WTP-1 5,000 gal * $2.031 0/gal=$30,465 

2,000 lb * 1.3500/lb = $2,700 

3,960 lbs * $2.3300/lb =$9,226.80 

15,000 gal * $ 1.4510/gal= $2 1,765 



Bid Item 1 Bid Item 2 Bid Item 3 per Bid Item 4 
per gallon, per pound, pound, per gallon, 

Company Bids for 2025 Delivery delivered delivered delivered delivered 
Sodium Activated Potassium Sodium 

Hypochlorite, Carbon, per Permanganate, Hydroxide, 
per gallon pound per pound per gallon 

$0.0100 $3.3150 or 
Azelis / Monson Company n/a (800 lb bags) bid na $2.245 3000 gal 

spec 40-50 lb pre-paid 

Borden & Remington Corp $2.8000 n/a $2.9800 $1.4510 

Carbon Activated Corp n/a $1.3500 n/a n/a 

Coyne Chemical Company, Inc n/a $2.1488 $2.5237 n/a 

Harcross $2.1384 n/a $2.4600 $1.6000 

Pencco 
n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Shannon Chemical Corporation 
n/a n/a $2.3300 n/a 

United Mineral & Chemical Corp 
n/a n/a $2.7500 n/a 

Univar Solutions 
$2.0310 n/a $2.4600 $1.6381 



Approval of Minutes 



1. Call Meeting to Order 

Select Board Meeting 
Monday January 6, 2025 

7PM 
Nowak Room, Town Offices 

Draft Minutes 

Members present: Chair Niko Papakonstantis, Vice-Chair Molly Cowan, Clerk Julie 
Gilman, Dan Chartrand, Nancy Belanger, Town Manager Russ Dean, and Finance 
Director Corey Stevens were present at this meeting. The meeting was called to order 
by Mr. Papakonstantis at 7 PM. He thanked Mr. Jordan's PEA class for attending. 

2. Proclamations/Recognitions: National Law Enforcement Day 
Ms. Gilman read the proclamation: 

Whereas annually January 9th is nationally recognized as National Law 
Enforcement Day upon its creation in the year 2015; 
And Whereas multiple organizations worked in collaboration in the creation of 
National Law Enforcement Day to promote a positive portrayal of Police Officers 
among communities and in the news media; 
And Whereas the day recognizes, appreciates, and supports the over 900,000 
Officers throughout the United States who have chosen the difficult career path 
of Law Enforcement Officer; 
And Whereas Law Enforcement Officers of every rank and file have chosen a 
profession that puts their life on the line every day for their communities and 
answering all calls to public service, are often taken away from their families for 
long hours, and work with local, State, and Federal organizations, making 
communities safer through commanded dedication; 
Now, therefore, the Chair of the Town of Exeter Select Board hereby proclaims 
and affirms January 9, 2025 as National Law Enforcement Day within the town of 
Exeter New Hampshire. All people are hereby called upon to promote gratitude, 
respect, and support for the Law Enforcement Officers who serve and protect our 
citizens and uphold the law. 

Mr. Papakonstantis thanked members of the Police Department, some of 
whom were present, for their efforts. 

3. Bid Opening - Chemical Purchase 
a. Harcros Chemicals of Nashua NH: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, $2.1384 per gallon; 

2) Activated Carbon, no bid; 3) Potassium Permanganate, $2.46 per pound; 4) 
Sodium Hydroxide 25%, $1.60 per gallon. 

b. Azelis of Sterling, MA: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, no bid; 2) Activated Carbon, 
$0.01 per pound in 4.8001 pound bags; 3) Potassium Permanganate, no bid; 4) 
Sodium Hydroxide 25%, $3.315 per gallon for 1,000 gallons or $2.25 per gallon 
for 3,000 gallons prepaid. 

1 



c. United Mineral and Chemical Corp of Lindhurst, NJ: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, no 
bid; 2) Activated Carbon, no bid; 3) Potassium Permanganate, $2.75 per pound; 
4) Sodium Hydroxide 25%, no bid. 

d. Carbon Activated Corporation of Compton, CA: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, No bid; 
2) Activated Carbon, $1.35 per pound; 3) Potassium Permanganate, no bid; 4) 
Sodium Hydroxide 25%, no bid. 

e. Univar Solutions of Morrisville, PA: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, $2.031 per gallon; 2. 
Activated Carbon, no bid; 3) Potassium Permanganate, $2.46 per pound; 4) 
Sodium Hydroxide 25%, $1.6381 per gallon. 

f. Coyne Chemical of Croydon, PA: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, no bid; 2) Activated 
Carbon, $2.1488 per pound; 3) Potassium Permanganate, $2.5237 per pound; 
4) Sodium Hydroxide 25%, no bid. 

g. Borden & Remington Corp of Fall River, MA: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, $2.08 per 
gallon; 2) Activated Carbon, no bid; 3) Potassium Permanganate, $2.980 per 
pound; 4) Sodium Hydroxide 25%, $1.4510 per gallon. 

h. Pencco of San Felipe, TX: No bids 
i. Shannon Chemical Corporation of Malvern, PA: 1) Sodium Hypochlorite, no bid; 

2) Activated Carbon, no bid; 3) Potassium Permanganate, $2.33 per pound; 4) 
Sodium Hydroxide 25%, no bid. 

MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to forward the bids to the DPW for review. Mr. Chartrand 
seconded. The motion passed 5-0. 

4. Public Comment 
a. There was no public comment at this time. 

5. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting: December 23, 2024 

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the Select Board minutes of December 23, 2024 as 
presented. Ms. Cowan seconded. The motion passed 5-0. 

6. Appointments 
a. There were no appointments made at this meeting. 

7. Discussion/ Action Items 
a. Town Hall Assessment Update 

Tracy Kozak of Arcove was present to give an update on Town Hall. Ms. 
Gilman said the priorities are accessibility, adding HVAC, adding backstage 
areas for performers, and additional bathrooms. Mr. Dean said the Board should 
consider whether to add this to the next round of the CIP. Mr. Papakonstantis 
asked if the Facilities Committee has reviewed this. Mr. Chartrand said no, they 
have not met since November. Ms. Belanger said the Arts & Culture Committee 
discussed it. 

2 



Ms. Kozak said Arcove and a preservation company did a deep dive into 
the historic significance of the building and the intrinsic historic value of the 
different parts of the building. They also looked at the infrastructure and ranked 
and categorized those elements. In general, the building has been cared for well. 
The uses of the building have evolved over the years and it doesn't quite serve 
the needs of the town today. 

Ms. Kozak said we received input from a group of different stakeholders 
in the town. Ms. Gilman said we went through years of permits for the building in 
identifying these stakeholders. Ms. Kozak said the group identified areas that 
needed work. For accessibility, an elevator is required. The bathrooms on the 
lower level are not accessible from the inside of the building. There are areas 
where safety is a concern, and which were flagged by OSHA, such as the 
balcony level. We've found ways to make these areas safe. There should be two 
ways out from every space, proper railings on the balcony, and stairways that are 
safe. For the stage and backstage, there's a solution that allows a greater 
diversity of activities on the stage by increasing the backstage and making the 
stage handicapped accessible. We increased the efficiency of the second floor 
office areas by filling in very tall ceilings to create new office and rental space. 
We looked at a new mechanical system and new insulation. We found that the 
roof was recently insulated, and adding more wouldn't help much. We 
recommend a heat pump that would provide air conditioning a.nd allow events to 
take place all year. 

1 

Ms. Kozak suggested that the work could be phased. The elevator work 
in particular would be disruptive. Mr. Papakonstantis asked w~at step would be 
first in the phasing. Ms. Kozak said usually we recommend stabilizing the 
building, but this one is in good shape. A quick fix would be to.upgrade the air 
sealing that stops drafts around the windows and doors. The big item is 
handicapped accessibility. 

Mr. Chartrand asked about HVAC - can the space be cooled? Ms. Kozak 
said it will be about 25% of the overall cost of the project, $530,000 - $584,000 in 
2024 dollars. That doesn't include soft costs like insurance, fees, and 
contingencies. That would be for the HVAC in the whole building. Mr. Chartrand 
asked if ductwork is a historic concern. Ms. Kozak said they could be mostly 
concealed under the mezzanine and there are some chases we could repurpose 
for the auditorium. 

Ms. Belanger asked if Ms. Kozak recommended starting with the elevator. 
Ms. Kozak said yes, the elevator has to be done, because the bathrooms are in 
the basement. We are proposing one handicapped bathroom on the first floor but 
it's not enough. Ms. Belanger asked about the cost for the elevator, and Ms. 
Kozak said $300,000, but the excavation cost is unknown depending if they hit 
ledge. It would be $150,000 - $200,000 just for the demolition. 

Mr. Chartrand asked about the balance between the historicity of the 
building and making it more usable. Ms. Gilman said there wasn't much conflict. 
Some of the work is returning it to what it might have been. The back-of-house 

3 



space has been changed and it doesn't affect the exterior of the building. Ms. 
Kozak said there are original doors in the back of the stage which show a time 
when there wasn't a stage. We're keeping that and not restoring it to the original 
condition. Overall there's nothing visible that will change. The current elevator is 
the worst intrusion, but we're not making it worse. 

Ms. Belanger asked if the building would need to be closed while the 
elevator is being replaced. Ms. Kozak said not the whole building, but the work 
area would need to be screened. That whole corner of the building would be off
limits. Mr. Papakonstantis asked if EXTV would have to relocate, and Mr. Dean 
said they may have to, temporarily. 

Mr. Papakonstantis said that Arcove's report should be sent to the Arts & 
Culture Committee and the Facilities Committee for review and 
recommendations. 

b. Window Dressings Update - Energy Committee 
Amy Farnham and Stephanie Marshall of the Energy Committee were 

present to discuss this initiative. Ms. Marshall said there will be a community 
build at the Town Hall, January 18 - 23. There will be two sessions a day where 
volunteers construct inserts. This is a program that allows residents, businesses, 
and non-profits access to low-cost window-insulating inserts. The average cost is 
$40 - $75 per insert; it's kept low because the labor is done by volunteers. A crew 
has been out in the community measuring their windows for the inserts. The build 
will be done by volunteers and the people who have purchased them. This is 
neighbors helping neighbors. The inserts will be very effective in insulating 
against heat loss. We raise funds so that ¼ - ½ of these inserts are for folks that 
pay nothing for them. Ms. Farnham said we've taken orders for 200 inserts 
across 22 residences and one non-profit. We got $2,500 in grant money to cover 
those who couldn't afford it. 80 volunteers have come forward to help us, but we 
could use more participants. Mr. Chartrand suggested reaching out to Liz Reyes, 
the volunteer coordinator at PEA. 

c. FY 25 Budget/Town Warrant 
Mr. Papakonstantis asked the Board to table the review of the warrant 

until next Monday when the draft warrant will be available. He asked for any 
further comments on the budget. Ms. Belanger said health and dental insurance 
is huge this year. We had the revaluation, and three union contracts. She added 
that the Budget Recommendation Committee did a very thorough job of vetting 
the budget. 

Mr. Papakonstantis asked Mr. Stevens to discuss the increase. Mr. 
Stevens said the BRC handed off the $24, 164,000 budget. The open enrollment 
for health benefits resulted in some savings, and we found additional areas to get 
it to $23,983,000, or 4.91 % over last year's budget. We don't anticipate too much 
more change. 

4 



Mr. Papakonstantis described the budget process for the benefit of the 
PEA civics students who were present. 

Mr. Chartrand said regarding Warrant Article 24, it should be contingent 
on the grant per the BRC's recommendation. On Article 31, the TIF amendment, 
there are details left out that we need. 

8. Regular Business 
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions 

i. There were no abatements or exemptions considered at this meeting. 

b. Permits & Approvals 
i. There were no permits or approvals considered at this.meeting. 

c. Town Manager's Report 
i. Mr. Dean said we had a recent senior luncheon which was a great event. 

Town staff assisted. The next one is Friday, January 10. 
ii. Parks and Rec is updating the website with lifeguard and summer camp 

positions. 
iii. There's a meeting with COAST this week regarding expanding Route 7 

service. David Tovey will be representing the town. 
iv. The CALEA report is in for the Police Department, it speaks highly of our 

PD. The next step in the accreditation is for the Chiefs to go to California 
in March for a hearing. 

v. There are three upcoming retirements in Public Works: Paul Estes, Paul 
Roy, and Bill Baptiste. He thanked them for their years of service. 

vi. The styrofoam project happened at the transfer station this past weekend. 
vii. The auditors have begun field work in the Finance Office. 
viii. Bill Keegan will be speaking to the Departments on the 13th and 14th. 

d. Select Board Committee Reports 
i. Mr. Chartrand attended the styrofoam event, which collected the rigid 

styrofoam that takes up a lot of space in landfills. We are looking at 
getting styrofoam recycling equipment at the Transfer Station so we did 
an event to test if there is demand, and we were shocked. 62 cars 
showed up. We filled 12 "super sacks" of rigid styrofoam. This would have 
been 75 large blue bags or a $187.50 cost to the town. We are excited 
about the potential for having regional collection of styrofoam at the 
transfer station. We pay $1M a year to have Waste Management to take 
our blue bags so we are interested in any savings on that, especially one 
that becomes an asset to the town. 

ii. Ms. Cowan had no report. 
iii. Ms. Gilman had no report. 
iv. Ms. Belanger said there's a sitewalk at 76 Portsmouth Ave on Thursday, 

which is open to the public. At the next Planning Board meeting, we will 

5 



also discuss a proposed change to the zoning language regarding short
term rentals. 

v. Mr. Papakonstantis had no report. 

e. Correspondence 
i. A notice from SAU 16 regarding a survey 

9. Review Board Calendar 
a. The next meetings are Monday, January 13; the Budget hearing January 21; 

February 3; Tuesday. February 18; and March 3. Deliberative Session is 
February 1, and Town Election is March 11. 

10. Non-Public Session 
a. There was no non-public session at this time. 

11. Adjournment 
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to adjourn. Ms. Cowan seconded. The motion passed 5-0 and 
the meeting was adjourned at 8:28 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Joanna Bartell 
Recording Secretary 

6 



Discussion/ Action Items 



Collective Bargaining Cost Items 



TOWN OF EXETER 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

Exeter Select Board 

Russ Dean, Town Manager 

Cost Items - Collective Bargaining 

January 13th, 2025 

The Town has reached tentative agreements with 2 of its collective bargaining units with 
a third unit scheduled to vote on January 14th• 

The cost items are required to be disclosed as part of the process. Below are the cost 
items for each of the agreements: 

A.h~~I~:ls:- Collective Bargaining Agreement - SEIU Local 1984 and Town of Exeter 
I 

To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items included in the three-year collective 
bargaining agreement reached between the Select Board and the SEIU (Service Employees 
International Union) Local 1984 covering Public Works and Administrative/Clerical employees, 
which calls for the following increased salaries and benefits at the current staffipg levels: 

Year Water/Sewer Fund General::Fund Total 
FY25 $68~068 $70,451 $138,519 

$93,597 $105,320 $198,917' 
EY27 $61,403. $80~643 $142;046 

t\pd>fwthijr,,to ra~s.~i:anq :~ppr9pri~e the.· $,µrn: .o,£:: orie;;l1t.1~1dre,4 .thirty-eigij,t.Jho.1sand .five:iJ141:1dr.e4 
ij;tr1~~~ertJ<i?llars(~f3 8;SJ~):;f~r •. 1:~e 2p25.JJ~f~t;y~ar ;\ s~~#: SHP1 .. representi_11~:·w~.•additi9#~1,·:;~s>~ts 
~~~P~!~l?:l.f~9.th.r?~Breas7 Jl\~.~~~~f~·.fll14. b~nef1t~:9y~rth9Se•.~f;the appropr1~t,JQ~r~t:R~ITtnt s~~~g 
~~y~l~./Ur~ ~m9.µnts•·• rais~d••· \VlU •• ll<e:.;$.J0.~4?1· thr,oµ~ , ~r1t1.011 ·· .((],~11eral Fq.nd)(:~~~ $68,068 
(W~ter/S~w~t:;Rundsf .,(Esti111~ted'T0X;ltpp~ct: •.Q2[1:;.QOO,• $2.Q2/lOQ,OO0.assess¥q pr9pejty va.lue): 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board. 

A#i . ..:Je .J(i·- Collective Bargaining Agreement- Exeter Police Association and Town of Exeter 

To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items included in the three-year collective 
bargaining agreement reached between the Select Board and the Exeter Police Association, which 
calls for the following increased salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels: 

Estim.at~cl ,Salary/Benefit~ lncreas~ 
$133,QQ9.' 
$225,3}7() 

... $128,1:20 



And further, to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thirty-three thousand, nine dollars 
($133,009) for the 2025 fiscal year, such sum representing the additional costs attributable to the 
increase in salaries and benefits over those of the appropriation at current staffing levels. (Estimated 
Tax Impact: .038/1,000, $3.82/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 17 - Collective Bargaining Agreement - Exeter Professional Firefighters Association 
Local 3491 and Town of Exeter 

To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items included in the three-year collective 
bargaining agreement reached between the Select Board and the Exeter Professional Firefighters 
Association Local 3491, which calls for the following increased salaries and benefits at the current 
staffing levels: 

Year 
FY25 
FY26 
FY27 

Estimated Salary/Benefits Increase 
$158,248 
$207,857 
$124,297 

And further, to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred fifty-eight thousand, two hundred 
forty-eight dollars ($158,248) for the 2025 fiscal year, such sum representing the additional costs 
attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits over those of the appropriation at current staffing 
levels. (Estimated Tax Impact: .045/ l ,000, $4.54/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 



TIFUpdate. 



Epping Road Tax Increment Finance District 

(Exeter NH) 

Amended 

Development Program and Financing Plan 

January 6, 2025 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. Introduction 3 

II. Objectives 4 

III. Proposed Improvements 5 

IV. Project Benefits 5 

V. Project Cost 7 

VI. Implementation 7 

Exhibit A - Financing Plan 

2 



I. Introduction 

The Exeter NH Select Board hereby proposes to amend the Epping Road Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) District Plan to allocate funding out of the current 
TIF fund, which has a balance of $8.28, for the following purpos~s: finalize 
infrastructure improvements on Rt. 27 (Epping Road) between the Cronin Road and 
Continental Drive that were approved by taxpayers in 2020, enlarge water and/or sewer 
lines south of the Continental Drive/Epping Road traffic light, and pave Industrial Drive 
and Commerce Way ' 

This would be the third time the 2015 TIF would be amended. It was successfully 
amended in 2018 to add a traffic light and upgrade the intersection of Continental Drive 
and Epping Road. In 2020 the TIF was again successfully amended to include a 
corridor study and perform infrastructure improvements on Epping Road from 
Continental Drive to Cronin Road as advised by the Corridor Study. The original amount 
in the 2020 TIF would have covered all of the costs of these improvements. However, 
once the pandemic occurred, that project was put on the shelf. When the Town started 
the project earlier this year we - predictably - discovered the costs were more than 
was available in the project budget. This third amendment would finalize the project. 
Costs for this is estimated at $800,000. Specifically, the details of the 2020 amended 
TIF were for these purposes: perform a corridor study on Rt. 27 (Epping Road) 
between the Route 101 interchange and Route 111-A (Brentwood Ro~d); and 
infrastructure improvements on Rt. 27 (Epping Road) between the Route 101 
interchange and Continental Drive. 

This allocation will fund these improvements without increasing the amount 
or length of term on the TIF bond and ensure remaining resources would complete 
the infrastructure improvements outlined in both the 2015 and 2018 TIF plans. 
Specifically, this includes the extension of Ray Farmstead Road -with water, sewer and 
a Watson Brook crossing - from its current conclusion to Map 40 Lot 12. The estimate 
for this work is $2.5 million. Also out of the $8.28 million, approximately $1.8 million is 
due to pay down the outstanding TIF bond and $1.67 million is earmarked for Epping 
Road widening and related improvements. 

Please note: The original 2015 TIF predicted an increase of up to $130 million of new 
taxable dollars within 10 years. Since its inception, the TIF has rai~ed almost $160 
million and has much more room to grow. 

The purpose of this Development Program and Tax Increment Financing Plan is to 
amend the 2015 Epping Road Tax Increment Finance District Plan in compliance with 

3 



the provisions of New Hampshire RSA 162-K:9 and 162-K: 10. Specifically, these 
statutes require: 

• Municipal adoption of a development and financing plan that allocates use of tax 
increments for project costs, retirement of bonds and notes, operation, 
maintenance and improvements in the district and for general municipal 
purposes (RSA 162-K:9 and K: 10). 

II. Objectives 

The objectives of this Amended Development Program and TIF Plan are to: 

• Create new infrastructure improvements needed to stimulate and sustain 
economic development; 

• Stimulate development of commercial, residential and industrial property that will 
provide new manufacturing and other business opportunities, retail and office 
space, professional services, conference and hotel services, restaurants or other 
businesses consistent with a vibrant economic corridor; 

• Expand the property tax base; 

• Create new, expanded and enhanced employment and earning opportunities for 
area residents; 

• Attract consumers from within and from outside the community to patronize 
existing and new businesses in the Epping Road corridor as well as in other areas 
in Exeter; 

• Stimulate other businesses to locate or expand within Exeter; 

• Increase the amount of developed square footage within the district at a more 
rapid pace than would otherwise occur; 

• Increase the commercial and mixed-use tax base of the district at a more rapid 
rate than current conditions have realized; 

• Encourage development opportunities outside the boundaries of the TIF District. 

4 



III. Proposed Improvements 

In order to provide full access to some of the most important developable property 
I 

within the Tax Increment Financing District, it is necessary to construct road 
improvements, likely a center lane and sidewalk, on Epping Road between Continental 
Drive and Cronin Road. This project is currently underway and seeks; to be complete in 
the summer of 2025. 

Estimated Cost: $800,000 

Industrial Drive was last paved in 2011 and Commerce Way was last paved in 2006. 
With the industrial, commercial and even recreational traffic this corridor sees, it is 
necessary to pave these roads. Department of Public Works (DPW) expects to pave 
these roads in the summer of 2025. 

Estimated Cost: $180,000 

A section of water pipe on Epping Road is 8-inches, while all remaining water piping in 
this area is 12-inches. In order to ensure the highest water pressure 

I 

is being delivered 
to corridor businesses, enlarging water and possibly sewer lines sout~ of the 
Continental Drive/Epping Road traffic light is necessary. Using an avg of $500 per foot 
for engineering and construction, the roughly 1700 ft of water main to be replaced 
would be $850,000. 

Estimated Cost: $850,000 

Total Estimated Cost: $1,830,000 

IV. Project Benefits 

The Epping Road Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District has been very successful and 
has raised to date total of $11,842,714 since 2016. The current bank1balance in the 
fund is approximately $8.28 million dollars. Of this amount, approximately $1.8 million 
is due to pay down the outstanding TIF bond. $1.67 million is earmarked for Epping 

5 



Road widening and related improvements and approximately $2.5 million has been set 
aside for a phase 2 of the 'TIF Road' extension of Ray Farmstead Road. 

The Epping Road Corridor has seen significant investment since commencement with 
over $159 million of new taxable value, including new developments including Gourmet 
Gift Baskets, C3I, The Residences at Colcord Pond, Aroma Joe's, Ray Farm Community, 
Primrose School, Jordan's Warriors, Nouria, Harbor EyeCare Center, Meredith Village 
Savings Bank, Unitil Energy and expansions of existing businesses, including FW Webb, 
Exeter Brewing, The Rinks at Exeter and Northeast Distribution. 

The infrastructure improvements proposed in this plan will provide safer and more 
convenient access to the entire corridor and allow for even more private resources to 
expand - responsibly - on Epping Road, Continental Drive and Industrial Drive. 

TIF Valuation and Revenues to date (please note the annual increase is cumulative and 
will continue for decades beyond the sunset of the TIF bond): 

TIF Taxable Increase 2016 - 2024 

$159,380,372 

TIF Property Tax Revenue 

Year Amount 

2016 82,293 

2017 505,729 

2018 550,266 

2019 920,542 

2020 1,185,255 

2021 1,706,659 

2022 1,865914 

2023 2,207,237 

2024 2,818,829 

Total $11,842,714 

6 



V. Project Cost 

Project: Finalize Infrastructure Improvements on Epping Road between Rt. 101 
Interchange and Continental Drive 

Estimated Project Cost: $800,000 

Project: Pave Industrial Drive and Commerce Way 

Estimated Project Cost: $180,000 

Project: Enlarging water and/or sewer lines south of the Continental Drive/Epping Road 
traffic light 

Estimated Project Cost: $850,000 

These numbers include improvements, engineering, as built, contingency and 
exclusions and represent only a use of existing captured assessed value 
already in the TIF fund. 

In any year, if the amount of the current assessed value for the District exceeds the 
original assessed value that excess shall be referred to as captured assessed value. 

The captured assessed value shall be dedicated to first paying the amount necessary to 
make any required debt service payments on any bonds that may be issued. Captured 
assessment value beyond that necessary for this purpose shall accumulate to complete 
the projects contained in the Development Plan. 

VI. Implementation 

Implementation of this plan requires the following action be taken: 

• Adoption of the Amended Development Program and Tax Increment Financing 
Plan (RSA 162-K:9 and 162-K: 10) incorporated herein occurs by vote of the 
Town Meeting on March 11, 2025. 

7 



Exhibit A - Financing Plan : 

- --- ~~ 

Epping Road TIF District, 2025 
- ------~--~--

Project Estimated Cost : Funding Source 
---

' 

1. Finalize Infrastructure Improvements 

on Epping Road between Route 101 
I 

and Contintental Drive 80_0,000 '1current TIF proceeds 
I 

- --- -- ------ ----- ---

2. Pave Industrial Drive and Commerce 

Way 180,000 Current TIF proceeds 
·--- --- -·----------

--·-- ----, ---- ------~ 

3. Enlarge water and/or sewer lines I 

south of the Continental Drive/Epping 

Road traffic light 850,000 Current TIF proceeds 
-· . ~---

--- --- - - ----•~-- --- -

Total Estimated Cost all Projects 1,830,000 



Article XX - TIF Amendment - Amend Financing Plan. 

To see if the Town will adopt the provisions of the Epping Road Tax Increment District Financing Plan 
Amendment (dated January __ , 2025) in accordance with RSA 162-K:9 IV which allocates the use of 
tax increments for retirement of bonds and notes as outlined in the plan amendment. 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ _ 



Legal Notice 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Pursuant to New Hampshire RSA 162-K:4, the Exeter Select Board hereby gives notice 
that they will hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment to the existing Epping 
Road Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Plan as part of the Epping Road Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) District, which was approved in 2015. Copies of the amended plan are 
available at the Town Clerk's Office, 10 Front Street, Exeter, NH. 

The hearing will be held on Tuesday, January 21st, 2025, commencing at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Exeter Town Offices, 10 Front Street. 

Dated: January 8th, 2025 Exeter Select Board 
Niko Papakonstantis, Chairman 



2025 Town Warrant Articles and Budget 



EXETER TOWN WARRANT - 2025 

To the inhabitants of the Town of Exeter, in the County of Rockingham, in the said State, qualified to vote 
in Town affairs: 

First Session 

You are hereby notified that the first session (the Deliberative Session) of the Annual Town Meeting will 
be held on Saturday, February 1st

, 2025 beginning at 9:00 a.m. at the Arthur L. Hanson III Center for the 
Performing Arts at Exeter High School, I Blue Hawk Drive. The first session will consist of explanation, 
discussion and debate of each of the following warrant articles, and will also afford voters who are present 
the opportunity to propose, debate and adopt amendments to warrant articles, except those articles in which 
wording is prescribed by state law. 

Second Session 

The,,s,~.9pP..,9 ~~s,sion of the APuµ~ . .rown Meeting, to ele~tTown officers by:,g,fficj~ ba!fqt~4toy<:>~~ on 
all ~~tji~9.!~,s as they wi~~il~,y~-b~en amended ~~jh~.first session~,~~;iR~il~1:~,~ Q~1mij;~~tw~arch 
I I thf,2025 afl:ij~;:W~lbot G~asii.i1h-atth~ Tuck Lea~~:fenter, 30 LU1de1:f'Sffeet. Polls"fot::V.oting by 
official ballot w'ilhqpen at 7:00 a.m. and close at 8:00)p~m. · :':\ •• ,· ' 

,.• 

Article 1 (Electio1(Article) 

To choose the follo\.\'ing: I Mo4er~rfor a 2-year Term; 2 Select Board,me111be~for a 3-year tenn; I 
Swas~y Parkway Trustee for a 3.:.year term; I Trustee of the Trust Fund for a 3-yearl-term; I Trustee of the 
Robinson Fund fota7-year term; 3 Trustees of theLi~~ for a 3-year term. · 

., w,- ~, •• 

Article 2 Zoning :~mendm~1,1f # 1: Are you in fitvor of the adoption of Amendment # I as prop<:>~~ by 
the Pl~nning 13,oar~for the to)Vll zoningcorqinance., by amending Article\: . , . , 

:!-:/C . 

. ''.)>. by the Planning ·aoard:_•,·_·· __ 

Article 3 - Drinkwater Road Groundwater Development ($6,800,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of six million eight hundred thousand dollars 
($6,800,000) for the purpose of design and construction of a new groundwater source off Drinkwater Road, 
and to authorize the issuance of not more than $6,800,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the 
provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select Board to issue, 
negotiate, sell and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity 
and other terms thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, 
state or other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and 
to comply with all laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Se,lect Board to take any 
other action or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Notwithstanding the general obligation nature of the 
bonds or notes, it is anticipated that debt service will be paid from the water fund. Bond payments would 
begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) ______ by the Select Board __ _ 

Article 4 - Pickpocket Dam Removal ($2,100,000) 

1 



To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two million one hundred thousand dollars 
($2, I 00,000) for the purpose of design, engineering and removal of the Pickpocket Dam, and to authorize 
the issuance of not more than $2, I 00,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the provisions of the 
Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select Board to issue, negotiate, sell and 
deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity and other terms 
thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, state or other aid, 
if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and to comply with all 
laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to take any other action or to pass 
any other vote relative thereto. Debt service to be paid from the general fund. (Estimated Tax Impact: 
assuming 15-year bond at 3.09% interest: .06/1,000, $6.00/100,000 of assessed property value). Bond 
payments would begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) _____ by the Select Board _. 

Article 5 - Linden Street Bridge Repairs ($1,257,900) 

To ~~e: iftb~7own will vote to raise and appropriatethe sum of one miHio~ two h~.dredfi~-~ey,en 
thousm,\~:iijin~;Ji'mdred dollars ($1,257,900) for the purpQse of making repairs!9.theLi~~~µiS~~t:btj~g~, 
and· t<> autK6riz¢'ltlte issuance of not more than $1,257,900 of bonds· or notes in accordarice,: witff ·tlie 
provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33);',arid further to authorize the Select Board to issue, 
negotiate, sell and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity 
and other terms thereof; and further to authorize the .Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, 
state or other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and 
to comply with all laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to take any 
other action or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Debt service to be paid from the general fund. 
(Estimated Tax Impact: assuming I 0-year bond .at) .. 72% interest: .05/1,000, $5.00/100,000 of assessed 
property value). Bond payments would begin apJ>r<:>~ately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot votetequired for approval.) _______________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 6-DPW Fuel Island Station Replacement ($575,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of five hundred seventy five thousand dollars 
($575,000) for the purpose of replacing the fuel island station at the DPW Complex at 13 Newfields Road, 
and to authorize the issuance of not more than $575,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the provisions 
of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select Board to issue, negotiate, sell 
and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon and the maturity and other 
terms thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend federal, state or 
other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for this project and to comply 
with all laws applicable to such project; and further to authorize the Select Board to take any other action 
or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Debt service to be paid from the general fund. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: assuming 5-year bond at 2.89% interest: .04/1,000, $4.00/100,000 of assessed property value). 
Bond payments would begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 7 - Street Sweeper ($395,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of three hundred ninety five thousand dollars 
($395,000) for the purpose of purchase of a new street sweeper to be used to meet EPA nitrogen reduction 
permit requirements, and to authorize the issuance of not more than $395,000 of bonds or notes in 

2 



accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA 33); and further to authorize the Select 
Board to issue, negotiate, sell and deliver such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon 
and the maturity and other terms thereof; and further to authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept and 
expend federal, state or other aid, if any, including principal forgiveness, which may become available for 
this project and to comply with all laws applicable to such project; and further to aut~orize the Select Board 
to take any other action or to pass any other vote relative thereto. Debt service to be paid from the general 
fund. (Estimated Tax Impact: assuming 5-year bond at 2.89% interest: .03/1,000, $3.00/100,000 of assessed 
property value). Bond payments would begin approximately one year after issuance. 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 8 - Use of Excess Bonds Proceeds - Front, Pine & Linden Street Sewer & Drainage 
Improvements ($250,000) 

Shall the Town vote to authorize the expenditure of a portion of the unused bonds approved in 2021 for 
Salem Street Area Water, Sewer, Drainage Road Improvements and Utility Replacements as follows: to 
rais_~i¼f,1;~t~J?.J.?.I?Priate the sum: ,2{g.. ;,1:Sl,,~:tmdred fifty thou~p dollars ($259~2QQ),~r{ %tf.te P,~g,~,~;,~,fm~9 
sew'' t\i;r,·'•·'.''.msjtt;Pine FrontamaJJ .,,,,,, '''it,Streets and makiri re airs to cm~··""'""''e.tat,ine;::Fr,''. ., ., . ···a1~inden s~:~1R%'\~I~a,:3-a, II. il~tiiir~t~t~ Im~act: l'{~ij~}/l_:_j_;i:___ p !_f.;_;11_:f_,_r_:'"'Jlll,,,.,.i)'''~' ,., lictna,.. /'1-'_11/"''"""<i""" 

::::~~:/ ff:f~-::;; ' ·>,~'-:", 

(3/;!;!llot vote reij~,ed fo~ltoval) .iit:1~~ ,;:t ,<by the Se~~ Board _1

!_. .:H, 
Arqij}¢ 9 - Use of iif:ess Qijqds Pr ..... ,, .. , s - Clem,~i.J Lago~~ Cleaniqgcjnd Inspection ($5Qfl,;Q00) 

Shiite Town vo~''l au:11: F ~nditure.~~.: porti~~JRf the u;;::: :~~itpproved ~[~021 for 
W ~~~Water Lagoo~:~.ludgejiimovaJ~;1f.o11ows: t9J1li.~:,~4:iPJ>fOpriat~Jf!~ sum of'.five hundre,gJbousand 
doll~~ ($500,000)~~~o,r the p~ose of iti~R~cting, pf ~~n~~gi~~igt"#~ging cj~~lemson Lagoon, per:~A 33 :3-
a, Uf}(Estimated I* Impac,t;;;)None) 'NUi:!1 .<'/1 

:\ :i: . / t/?i 
, ·; .; - .'' ~.}1.t~_i: , :~~:::}~ -~ 

-~~-:-,£ ~·~ ' ::~~/~\ ' , . .,.,.,. 

(3/~l:!i~99F:{¥ij~~;rfequired for;:~pproval) ;;:--·;·~ 1•2::' by:;the Sel~t Board _i_, i: 
'.~,~l:('j1±;iT;'fTiH>' ',: .. Ull½Bil :.,~i::: +•: .... , 

1

i H~,;j' 
Article 10 - Use of Excess Bonds Proceeds - Wastewater Treatment Facility Effluent Flume Repair 
($245,000) 

Shall the Town vote to authorize the expenditure of a portion of the unused bonds 1

1 

approved in 2021 for 
Wastewater Lagoon Sludge Removal as follows: to raise and appropriate the sum of~o hundred forty-five 
thousand dollars ($245,000), for the purpose of repairing the effluent flume at the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility site at 13 Newfields Road, per RSA 33:3-a, II. (Estimated Tax Impact: None) 

I 

(3/5 ballot vote required for approval) ________ by the Select Board_:_. 
I 

~ri;J~J~;Jj - Choose Town Officers I 

To choose all other necessary Town Officers, Auditors or Committees for the ensuing year. 

Alrti~l~);~ - 2025 Operating Budget 

Shall the Town of Exeter raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including appropriations by 
special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on the budget 
posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling 
$23,983,368. Should this article be defeated, the default budget shall be $23,441,313, which is the same as 

3 



last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town of Exeter or by law; or the 
governing body may hold one special meeting, in accordance with RSA 40: 13, X and XVI, to take up the 
issue of a revised operating budget only. (Estimated Tax Impact: .32/1,000 assessed property value, 
$32/100,000 assessed property value). 
(Majority vote required.) __________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 13, - 2025 Water Fund Budget 

Shall the Town of Exeter raise and appropriate as a water operating budget, not including appropriations 
by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on the budget 
posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling 
$4,601,357. Should this article be defeated, the water default budget shall be $4,613,40 I, which is the same 
as last year, with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town of Exeter or by law. 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

J\.rficle 14 = ~025 Sewer F~!~J:~11~get 

Shalf ~~'fi~]~f Exeter Jfg~:ahcli~riate as a sewer. operating bu<l~i:t, nbf l~~lud\~i1:iJii~f J~W! 
by special warrant articles an~. other apJ>f:~priations voted·separately, the:~ounts set forth ont~e budget 
posted with the warrant or as;a,p1ended by V,ote of the first session, for the1purposes set forth therein:,i totaling 
$8,1~7,727. Shouldthis article be def~ated, the default budget shall be·;$8,074,074, which is the,same as 
lastyear, with certain adjus@~11!~.r,~9Jiired by previous action of the To~:of Exeter or by law. · 

(Majority vote required.) _:'. .. ________________ by the Sel~ctBoard _· ---

Article 15- Collective Bargaining Ag~eement~S:EIULocal 1984 and1Town of Exeter 

To see if the. Town will vote to approv~<the cost items included• in the three-year collective b<ll'gaining 
agree111en.tJ'~~hed betweenthe Select B<:>ar;d and the SEIU (ServiceEmployees International Union) Local 
1984,ccovering Public Works and Administrative/Clerical employees, :which calls for the:'following 
increased salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels: 

Year Water/Sewer Fund General Fund Total 
FY25 $68,068 $70,451 $138,519 
FY26 $93,597 $105,320 $198,917 
FY27 $61,403 $80,643 $142,046 

And further, to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thirty-eight thousand five hw1dred 11ineteeri 
dollars{$l38,519) for the 2025 fiscal year, such sum representing the additional costsattribhtable to the 
increase in salaries and benefits over those of the appropriation atcurrent staffing levels~ The ame>un~ 
raised will be $70,451 through taxation (General Fund), and $68,068 {Water/Sewer Funds)~ (Estimated 
Tax Impact: .02/1,000, $2~02/lOO,OOOassessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board. 

4 



Af1;i~lel6 - Collective Bargaining Agreement - Exeter Police Association and Town of Exeter 

To see if the Town will vote to approve the cost items included in the three-year collective bargaining 
agreement reached between the Select Board and the Exeter Police Association, which calls for the 
following increased salaries and benefits at the current staffing levels: 

Year 
FY25 
FY26 
FY/l/l 

Estimated Salary/Benefits Increase 
$133,009 
$225,370 
$128,120 

Alld, further, to raise and appropriate the. sum. of one hundred thirty-three thousand, nine <lo liars ($133,009) 
for;th,r2025.fiscal_year; such sum representing th_e additional costs attributable.to the increasein salaries 
and benefits .over those of the appropriation at current staffing levels. (Estimated 1RX Impa(}t:·_.038/l;QQQ, 
$3.~8')./tQ0,000 assessed property value). 

(M,iinty.yo~~ required.) -------by the S~!ect Board __ . j F:jlM1fa::~:i1? ·,:~:·:,·,· 
:;_::. .. ,,,,,· . ·,: ·• .• :. . . . . .. ' . ·•. . . . . t ." ... "'."''>··\!::.>' "'"" 

J\rqf!,le.17 ~''CoJ!e,ctive Bargaining Agreement - E:X:~t¢r Professional Firefighters .Associatj9'.n' Local 
349i?and Town°ofExeter "'\ \y} ' · r'\ :~~~(;:~~: ., ' , .. ,., , .;.:,: 

To /i~j if the ToWIJ,-\Vill vote to approve the cost ~~~s in9Jµded in the three-year collective{ljfu-gaining 
agri~µient reachedJ;e~een the Select :Board and th~1Exet~iiProfession~LFirefighters Associ~pe>n Local 
34~i.wl~hich calls fq,rithe folloyviµgj11creased salar~~s:,and beij~~ts at thef¢~n,t§ta:fting levels~lHit;l 

'L::\:: (\.. . \ •.• '>:;\ • i·+;; - : 'i ; t / ::J )i\z'.il 
Y~~r. .. . Estimated Sa.lary/BenefitsJncrease n::~::; 
F.:v.·· 2s.·.··."·' $158,248, ,·;:,:;?':jl;fiji;i!Ii·h·· ._;_·_r_'.', tmt;; 

.\r~;{;;:;: 

:f¥:2;6, $207,857 '!:ti;iiF- ''.:,,::,1, 

Fv21 $124,291 '.I"; /mm 
[;'.:;[;;~ ;::;:;;:(''.:1' '\\/': . . . . . . . . ·::·'' . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ,hi! 

f'.ndfu.tther~to raise and appropriate the sum.of ~ne hundredfifty~eight thousand,:n··· J.l hU11dredforty~eight 
do,Uarf($158,248) for the 2025 fiscal year,. such sumrepres~11ting theadditi<>nalc ,·.sts attributable to the 
i~crea5t' in_salaries and benefits over those ofthe'appropriatio11atcurrent staffing·: evels. (Est~mated·Tax 
frnpact: .045/1,0QQ, $4.54/100,000 assessed·property,value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 18 - Replace Sidewalk Tractor #58 ($225,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to enter into a 5-year lease/purchase agreement 
for $225,000 for the purpose of lease/purchasing a replacement for a sidewalk tractor in the Public Works 
Department, and to raise and appropriate the sum offifty-six·thousand two hundred fifty dollars ($56,250), 
which represents the first of 5 annual payments ( a total of $258,750) for this purpose. This lease/purchase 
will contain an escape (non-appropriation) clause. This sum to come from general taxation. (Estimated 
Tax Impact: .016/1,000, $1.61/100,000 assessed property value). 

Article 19 - Replace Dump Truck #33 ($160,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to enter into a 5-year lease/purchase agreement 
for $160,000 for the purpose of lease/purchasing a replacement for dump truck #33 in the Public Works 
Department, and to raise and appropriate the sum of forty-thousand dollars ($40,000), which represents the 

5 



first of 5 annual payments ( a total of $184,000) for this purpose. This lease/purchase will contain an escape 
(non-appropriation) clause. This sum to come from general taxation. (Estimated Tax Impact: .011/1,000, 
$1.15/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board_. 

Article 20-Purchase ADA Accessible Van for Parks/Recreation ($120,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to enter into a 5-year lease/purchase agreement 
for $120,000 for the purpose of lease/purchasing an ADA Accessible Van for the Parks/Recreation 
Department, and to raise and appropriate the sum of fifteen-thousand dollars ($15,000), which represents 
the first of 5 annual general fund payments (a total of $69,000) for this purpose. The total cost of the van 
will be shared with the Recreation Revolving Fund which will provide 50% funding or $69,000 for this 
purchase over the 5-year lease/purchase. This lease/purchase will contain an escape (non-appropriation) 
clause. This sum to come from general taxation. (Estimated Tax Impact: .004/1,000, $.43/100,000 assessed 
property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board_. 

Article 21 - Public EV Charging Facility ($120,000) 

To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of one-hundred 
twenty thousand dollars ($120,090), for the purpose of purchasing and installing two Electric Vehicle 
chargers. This project is eligib\efora30% Direct Pay Tax Credit which:wouldreimburse up to $36,000 to 
the genera) fund. In additio~, the project may also qualify for a DOT Charging Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) 
Grant that provides an 80:2() ,grant match (federal:local). Notice of Funging Availability (NOFA) for this 
grant is typically announced in May.: Any grants obtained will offset the cost of the project. This 
appropriation will not take eff~ct unless a.grant is received. This sum to.come from the unassigned fund 
balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _____________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 22 - Appropriate to Sick Leave Trust Fund ($100,000) 

To see if the Town wiH vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) 
to be added to the Sick Leave Expendable Trust Fund previously established. This sum to come from the 
unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 23 - Appropriate to Capital Reserve Fund - Parks Improvements ($100,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred thousand do11ars ($100,000) 
to be added to the Parks Improvement Capita) Reserve Fund previously established. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: .028/1,000 assessed property value, $2.84/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 24 - Purchase Styrofoam Recycling Unit ($80,000) 

6 



To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of eighty thousand 
dollars ($80,000), for the purpose of purchasing a Styrofoam recycling machine. This project is eligible 
for a $50,000 grant through RecycleFoam.org with applications due in March/ April. Any grants obtained 
will go to offset the cost of the project. This appropriation will not take effect unless a grant is received. 
This sum to come from the unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be 
raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _____________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 25 - Appropriate to Non-Capital Reserve Fund - Snow and Ice Deficit ($75,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of seventy-five-thousand dollars ($75,000) to 
be added to the Snow and Ice Deficit Non-Capital Reserve Fund previously established. This sum to come 
from the unassigned fund balance. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) __________ by the Select Board __ . 

A1~~¼t~ll~e Fire ~1'1;~;1' ($71,355) . . .· iJ,rI;f (;, fkI!)!f 
To ls~~ if the ToWJi .. will raise, and apprqpriate, throµgh sp~ial warran{-~icle, the sum of se,y~nty-one 
tho~_ipid three hundred and :fifty-five dollars ($71,355), for the purpos~:f.<)'.f purchasing a replac'~ment for 
thelf~ Departmen(()tility Truck, purc,~~ed in 200~~ This,:y~picle is pr@wily used fortowing-~ri:jergency 
anc{@in-emergencyifrailers to.mcide,nt~'cenes. It is als:o used,te> pick up ~~P equipment after firct~d other 
inc~~~pts. This sum.td, com~:fi;qnfaJ:i~ .. unassigned fund balance~ {Estima(i~l~~Jmp}ct: None. ~~ amount 
to ,irised by taiumpr>· ,,,,,,,,;, "';( . < .. , .... ,,, /1'',i"lili!'!S!i'i':"''"':f'' \, 

(Mffi~rity vote required.) __________ by~~i~~le¢t ~tijrrd !!f i:ui 
lllim;:i . ,:.:.. · ... · .. ·•·· .. : A1~1t ??- !,~n~fer Static:,n, Improv,~~mts (S?0,000) .... 

To j~~ll~~jiht:?Town will raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the sum of fifty thousand 
dollars ($50,000), for the purpose of making improvements to the Town transfer station. This sum to come 
from general taxation. (Estimated Tax Impact: .014/1,000, $1.44/100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 28 - Appropriate to Capital Reserve Fund - ADA Fund ($25,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) to 
be added to the ADA Non-Capital Reserve Fund previously established. (Estimated Tax Impact: 
.0072/1,000 assessed property value, .72/$100,000 assessed property value). 

(Majority vote required.) ________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 29 - Sestercentennial Fund ($5,000) 

To see if the Town will vote to establish a non-capital reserve fund under RSA 35: 1-c for the purpose of 
planning events and celebrations for the Sestercentennial of the United States of America, and to raise and 
appropriate the sum of five-thousand dollars ($5,000) to be placed in this fund and further the Select Board 
shall be named agents of the fund and be authorized to make expenditures from the fund. (Estimated Tax 
Impact: .0014/1,000 assessed property value, .14/$100,000 assessed property value). 

7 



(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 30 - Appropriate to Trust Fund - Swasey Parkway ($3,750) 

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of three thousand seven hundred fifty dollars 
($3,750) to be added to the Swasey Parkway Expendable Trust Fund previously established. This sum to 
come from unassigned fund balance. This amount is equivalent to the amount of permit fees collected 
during 2024 for use of the Swasey Parkway. (Estimated Tax Impact: None. No amount to be raised by 
taxation). 

(Majority vote required.) _________ by the Select Board __ . 

Article 31-Create Expendable Trust Fund-Donations for Pairpoint Park 

To see if the Town will vote to create a trust fund under the provisions of RSA 31-19-a, I, to be named the 
PairpointPark Donations Trust Fund. Further, to raise and appropriate the sum of $1.00 ( one ,do~)JC?r 
said fund. This fund is for donations, gifts, legacies and devises, and shall be invested a11d a~OlW~:](~r 
separately from and not commingled with, amounts appropriated for expendable trusf furids"tindeF'RSA 
31 : 19-a, paragraph IV. The purpose of the fund is, to support the activities of the Pairpoint Park 
Stakeholders Advisory Committee in developing the park. Further, to name the Select Board as:agents to 
expend from this fund. 

(Majority vote required.) _______ by the Select Board __ _ 

Article32 

To transact any other business that may legally come before this meeting. 

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 

Molly Cowan, Vice Chair 

Julie D. Gilman, Clerk 

Nancy Belanger 

Daniel W. Chartrand 

We certify that on the __ th day of January, 2025, we caused a true copy of the wifhin warrant to be 
posted at the Exeter Town Hall on Front Street, the Exeter Public Library at Founder's Park, Exeter High 
School at I Blue Hawk Drive, Talbot Gymnasium at Tuck Learning Campus, 40 Linden Street, and fhe 
Town Clerk's Office, IO Front Street. 

Given under our hands and seal this __ th day of January, 2025. 

8 



Niko Papakonstantis, Chair 

Molly Cowan, Vice Chair 

Julie D. Gilman, Clerk 

Nancy Belanger 

Daniel W. Chartrand 

9 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget$ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

Gij~i?IJl:Lin~Approprlatlons· 
.. ,·• ·- -,, 

-• .. . - -·· c-,,; I - - - - - . - . ,_T ... -. --
.. .. - . 

I . I I I I I I 
~,g~~~~ov.e·rn_111~nt " 

' '~. .. -.. ; . . 
. . . . ---· -- . 

Select Board 50,080 22,468 18,089 22,462 22,462 (6) -0.03% 22,462 -
Town Manager 271,116 314,675 266,658 451,632 459,152 144,477 45.91% 325,089 (134,063) 
Human Resources 168,174 206,664 171,429 206,880 216,602 9,938 4.81% 241,448 24,846 
Transportation - 1 - 1 1 - 0.00% 1 -
Legal 75,168 100,000 93,815 100,000 100,000 - 0.00% 100,000 -
Information Technology 322,559 345,583 247,663 423,959 430,044 84,461 24.44% 355,606 (74,438) 
Media Communications - 65,691 50,944 72,137 73,526 7,835 11.93% 71,237 (2,289) 
Trustees of Trust Funds 891 891 891 891 891 (0) -0.04% 891 -
Town Moderator 861 1,351 1,077 673 673 (678) -50.19% 673 -
Town Clerk 382,622 459,705 284,272 419,063 421,841 (37,864) -8.24% 415,701 (6,140) 
Elections/Registration 11,440 24z771 21,233 211234 21,682 {3,089) -12.47% 201233 {11449) 

T~~f'311~:~~l"Goyemment 1.282~912 1,541',800 .1,158;069 . 1,718,932 1-,748~874 · . 205~074 -_ - -. 13.30% 1553M1 · -_ · : c111,~s,~> 
I -- I -·· - I . . -- I - . . I -- - ... · 1 .. -. .. I -· ·1 L .t .·.-, -

Fln,•~~L----~-- ---~ _ -- . - - . , - -•---- .. -· ---••T,. ··- -• • C • " .. , - .. ~ 

Finance/Accounting 321,498 370,133 315,923 400,708 407,803 37,670 10.18% 405,174 (2,629) 
Treasurer 9,542 9,692 7,952 9,545 9,545 (147) -1.52% 9,693 148 
Tax Collection 100,626 120,611 96,877 133,460 135,214 14,603 12.11% 130,264 (4,950) 
Assessing 245,192 270,562 229,623 272,030 275,818 51256 1.94% 271,194 (4,624) 

To-1];,~~~ce 876,8'59 7-70,998· 650;374' .· -··815,743 .828;380·. ,._ 57-382 7A4% _ ~16,3~5- _ (1~,'15~) 
I I I -· --· I I 

. -_ .. • . r ..... L ·1 -- --1 I --
Pr,nn~fi:Ot:4,Dave,opment .. 

. - ... ,. - - . _, :, ( . ~ .. - .. ... ·~ , .. -•-• u ~ ' - - --- ·------. ___ , -, . ·•- .. .. ... ,.,. 

··cs. 1·sa> Planning 270,522 301,174 239,013 _ 318,493 _ 325,186 24,012 .. Z.97% 320,030 
Economic Development 159,555 167,860 138,654 178,992 180,902 13,042 7.77% 179,186 (1,716) 
Inspections/Code Enforcement 249,815 279,825 221,565 287,562 268,728 (11,097) -3.97% 275,272 6,544 
Conservation Commission 6,301 9,555 8,141 9,794 9,796 241 2.52% 9,669 (127) 
Renewable Energy Expense - 1 - 1 1 - 0.00% 1 -
Zoning Board of Adjustment 4,635 4,376 2,567 4,262 4,271 (105) -2.41% 4,262 (9) 
Historic District Commission 308 1,923 311 1,557 1,557 (366) -19.02%. 1,557 -
Heritage Commission 893 1,109 1,163 11496 1,544 435 39.23% 1,496 {48) 

T:"d~lf ~li)1nl11g··&iQiVeloprraent 892~0.29 
•· 

785~823 611,4t5 802~157 79_1,~85 __ 2~~1_82 · _3~2% 791,473'. ·_(51~) 
I -I - -- -- I r I ,- -, · - T --r· ---

PUl>Jlc1..$qfety•;_ , . - . 

. . 

Page 1 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025 SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget$ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

Police 3,733,162 3,952,128 3,140,695 4,197,809 4,191,320 239,192 6.05% 4,197,359 6,039 
Fire 4,080,978 4,235,231 3,300,393 4,339,763 4,283,434 48,203 1.14% 4,323,990 40,556 
Dispatch 391,762 478,265 344,083 503,218 508,637 30,372 6.35% 508,637 -
Health 131,750 129,899 106,438 140,270 142,892 12,993 10.00% 135,251 {7,641) 

To'81-F.~~bllc Safety 8,337,852 8,795,523 a,ae1,eqe 9;181,080 · -9,128,283 330,780 3.760Aa 9i185,237 . ~~-~5.t 
I I I I : I I . .. I I -· - I 

Pti_bJ,e.:~orks • General Fund .. .. -- -• -- . ... - ·- . . -·. - ' . . -·. ~ . -- - . .. . .. -•--·. . - .. -~ ... - -- ... 

Administration & Engineering 106,395 573,740 320,350 602,564 614,292 40,552 7.07% 610,220 (4,072) 
Highways & Streets 1,952,058 2,001,196 1,601,543 2,189,710 2,118,484 117,288 5.86% 2,064,956 (53,528) 
Snow Removal 377,671 314,696 252,459 289,511 289,511 (25,185) -8.00% 314,510 24,999 
Solid Waste Disposal 1,432,155 1,488,354 1,063,948 1,650,458 1,652,139 163,785 11.00% 1,488,976 (163,163) 
Street Lights 142,251 169,000 98,738 147,000 147,000 (22,000) -13.02% 169,000 22,000 
Stormwater 511317 92,360 81301 92,360 92,360 - 0.00% 92,360 -

Total'~ti.bllc_ Works • General Fund 4,061,848 4,839,348 3,345;338 4,971,803 4,913,788 274,440 5.92% 4,740,022 ct1.s,rtM> 
I I' I I I I I I I 

~ar.n~enance 
.. 

.-

(31,411) General 504,775 537,894 368,512 593,608 572,007 34,113 6.34% 540,596 
Town Buildings 292,985 303,611 250,204 320,632 320,632 17,021 5.61% 303,611 (17,021) 
Maintenance Projects 81,792 100,000 38,773 100,000 100,000 - 0.00% 100,000 -
Mechanics/Garage 196,915 301,736 173,789 316,765 316,713 14.977 4.96% 317,013 300 

TotarMarnteriance 1,076,467 1,243~241 831,278 1,331,005 1,309,352. 6~,111 5.32% _1,281,220 _ (48j1:42) - .. . . 

I I I I I I I I I 
Welfar~:& H~man Services 

·1 18s,5sa I 144,094 I . 14s,4sa I . 118,103 I 111,1sa I .33·,sa4-I 23.36o/ol 111~·s54 I --- ·~ - ·- . 

Welfare (104) 
Human Services I 98,610 I 98,325 I 98,325 I 100,000 I 100,000 I 1,675 I 1.70%1 98,325 I (1,675) 

Total-Welfare & Human Services 288,188 242,419 247,821 278,1_03 . . 277,758 . 35~339 14.58% _27'.5,979 · .. . J1',779) 
I I I I I I I I I 

Parks & Recreation 
Recreation I 3a9,a21 I 437,24a I 361,131 I so4,372 I 511,129 I 'i,{481 I 17.03%1 

.- -· ---

4-as,s14 I (22,055) 
Parks I 2291310 I 251,sa1 I 203,063 I 274,714 I 2461045 I (5,536)1 -2.20%1 245/45 I (300) 

Total Parks &.Recreation 618,698 688,829 570,200 . 779_,086 757,774 .88~945 10.01% 735,419. ·(22,155) 
I I I I I I I I I 

~ef•9ll~~U~/Recreatlon 
I 11.s6s I 18,soo I 10,602 I 1s.soo I . 1a,soo I I 0.00%1 18,500 I 

-

Other Culture/Recreation - -

Page 2 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025 SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget$ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

Special Events 16,170 16,000 15,693 18,000 18,000 2,000 12.50% 16,000 (2,000) 

Total Other Culture/Recreation 33,735 34,500 26,294 36,500 36,500 2,000 5.80% 34,500 (2,000) 

I I I I I I I I I 
Public Library 

Library I 1,099.811 I 1,185,689 1 1.039.558 I 1.262.381 I 1,281 ,634 1 95,945 1 8.09%1 1,252,284 I (29,350) 

Total Library 1,099,877 1,185,689 1,039,558 1,262,381 1,281 ,634 95,945 8.09% 1,252,284 (29,350) 
I I I I I I I I I 

Debt Service & Capital 
Debt Service 1,497,586 2,069,272 2,059,658 1,948,573 1,948,573 (120,699) -5.83% 1,948,573 -
Vehicle Replacement/Lease 203,683 248,495 242,266 296,317 230,317 (18,178) -7.32% 164,317 (66,000' 
Misc. Expense (4,685) 100,004 82,589 150,004 130,004 30,000 30.00% 100,004 (30,000' 
Cemeteries - 1 - 1 1 - 0.00% 1 -
Capital Outlay - Other 7,509 6,488 6,120 13,017 13,017 6,529 100.63% 6,488 (6,529) 

Total Debt Service & Capital 1,704,093 2,424,260 2,390,634 2,407,912 2,321 ,912 (102,348) -4.22% 2,219,383 (102,529) 
I I I I I I I I I 

Benefits & Taxes 
Health Insurance Buyout/Sick Leave/Flex 

192,152 1 Spending 247,849 193,884 207,801 239,389 47,236 24.58% 239,389 -
Insurance Reserves - - - - - - #DIV/0! - -
Unemployment 2,320 2,341 2,341 2,446 2,446 105 4.49% 2,446 -
Worker's Compensation 232,159 246,089 246,089 260,854 260,854 14,765 6.00% 260,854 -
Insurance 177,323 82,852 92,363 88,441 88,441 5,589 6.75% 88,441 -
Employee Wellness - 5,000 - - - (5,000) -100.00% 5,000 5,000 
Wage Reclassifications - - - 20,000 - - #DIV/0! - -

-· 
Total Benefits & Taxes 659,651 528,434 534,678 579,542 591,130 62,695 11 .86% 596,130 5,000 

I I I I I I I I I 
Total GF Operating Budget 20,531 ,985 22,860,862 18,295,327 24,164,024 23,983,368 1,122,506 4.91% 23,441,313 (542,055) 

I I I I I I I I I 
Water Fund 

Administration 427,020 537,491 326,908 592,689 599,274 61,782 11.49% 579,812 (19,462' 
Billing and Collection 172,778 21 1,744 158,173 221 ,058 222,970 11,226 5.30% 226,250 3,280 
Distribution 771,061 954,024 616,944 946,733 930,425 (23,599) -2.47% 952,485 22,060 
Treatment 902,565 1,028,751 764,148 1,144,746 1,148,821 120,070 11.67% 1,134,422 (14,399) 

Page 3 of 4 



Town of Exeter -
2025 Comparison Budgets: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 
Version #4 

2025 Default 
2025 SB Budget vs. 

Budget vs. 2025 SB 2025 SB 
2024 Budget Budget vs. Budget $ 

2023 2024 2024 2025 BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
DEPARTMENT Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) 

Debt Service 1,431 ,038 1,640,513 1,613,896 1,427,932 1,427,932 (212,581 ) -1 2.96% 1,427,932 -
Capital Outlay 476,589 590,250 44,026 271 ,935 271 ,935 (318,315) -53.93% 292,500 20,565 

Appropriations from Reserves 20,000 - - - - - #DIV/0! - -
Total WF Operating Budget 4,201 ,051 4,962,773 3,524,096 4,605,092 4,601 ,357 (361,417) -7.28% 4,61 3,401 12,044 

I I I l l l I I I 
Sewer Fund 

Administration 454,683 566,755 357,692 624,324 630,909 64,153 11 .32% 611 ,247 (19,662) 

Billing and Collection 168,478 208,169 152,827 217,483 219,395 11,226 5.39% 222,675 3,280 
Collection 522,772 717,012 370,689 745,781 729,473 12,461 1.74% 715,473 (14,000) 

Treatment 1,282,092 1,635,020 1,081,528 1,700,504 1,703,886 68,866 4.21% 1,725,049 21,163 

Debt Service 4,209,659 4,192,568 776,077 4,675,128 4,675,128 482,560 11.51% 4,675,128 -
Capital Outlay 48,949 170,906 112,519 188,936 188,936 18,030 10.55% 124,502 (64,434' 
Appropriations from Reserves 67,134 - 468,938 - - - #DIV/0! - -

Total SF Operating Budget 6,753,767 7,490,430 3,320,270 8,152,155 8,147,727 657,296 8.78% 8,074,074 (73,653) 

Page 4 of 4 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon'll4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20258B Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Orn Object DescrlDtlon Actual Budaet October Budnet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 
GENERAL FUND 
General Government 
Select 80111 !t 

$3K each 4-Select Person, $4K for 1-
01413010 51000 SB- Sal/Waaes Elected 16,250 16,000 13,333 16,000 16,000 - 0.0% 16,000 - Chair Person 

Salaries Total 16,250 16,000 13,333 16,000 16,000 - 0.0% 16,000 -
01413010 52120 SB- Life Insurance 42 42 31 36 36 (61 -14.3% 36 -
01413010 52200 SB-FICA 1,008 992 827 992 992 - 0.0% 992 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01413010 52210 SB- Medicare 236 232 194 232 232 - 0.0% 232 - Based on wages: 1 .45% 

Benefits Total 1,285 1,266 1,051 1,260 1,260 (61 -0.5% 1,260 -
01413010 55055 SB- Consultina Services 28,999 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - Exoenses related to tax deeded orooertles, 
01413010 55050 SB- Conf/Room/Meals - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - NHMA seminars, mileage reimbursement 
01413010 55106 SB-Equipment Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Placeholder for equipment needs 
01413010 55267 SB-Signs - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Proclamations, recognitions, special 
events for committees, E911 Committee 

01413010 55273 SB- Soecial Exnense 3,545 5,000 3,705 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - activities, memberships 
General Expenses Total 32,544 5,202 3,705 5,202 5,202 - 0.0% 5,202 -
Select Board Total 50,080 22,468 18,089 22,462 22,462 (6) 0.0% 22,462 - A 

Town Mnnn l'l&r 
3 FT: Town Mgr, Assistant TM and 
Executive Assistant plus reclassification of 
ATM salary for increased management 

01413011 51110 TM- Sal/Wages FT 196,448 229,369 195,648 378,721 386,936 157,567 68.7% 248,214 (138,722) responsibilities 
2 PT: Recording secretaries@ $19.44 per 
hour (SB/BRC/Advisory meetings), 

01413011 51200 TM- Sal/Waaes PT 4,454 12,500 3,912 6,122 6,214 (6,286) -50.3% 6,122 (921 Vacation repl for Ex Asst 
Salaries Total 200,902 241,869 199,559 384,843 393,150 151,281 62.5% 254,336 (138,8141 

01413011 52100 TM- Health Insurance 48,883 57,606 46,138 59,539 59,539 1,933 3.4% 59,539 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01413011 52110 TM- Dental Insurance 3,554 3,978 3,093 5,331 5,331 1,353 34.0% 3,243 (2,088 5.0% increase in the oremlum rate 
01413011 52120 TM- Life Insurance 201 184 160 288 288 104 56.5% , 192 (96 No increase 
01413011 52130 TM- LTD Insurance 1,128 959 814 1,842 1,842 883 92.1% 960 (882 No increase 
01413011 52200 TM-FICA 11,963 14,996 11,907 23,860 24,375 9,379 62.5% 15,769 (8,606 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01413011 52210 TM- Medicare 2,798 3,507 2,785 5,580 5,701 2,194 62.5% 3,688 (2,013 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01413011 52300 TM- Retirement Town 27,078 31,034 26,471 49,727 50,778 19,744 63.6% 32,579 (18,199) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 95,605 112,264 91,368 146,167 147,854 35,590 31.7% 115,970 (31,884) 

ICMA/MMANH/Primex conference, 
01413011 55050 TM- Conf/Room/Meals 3,287 3.000 1,000 6,500 6,500 3.500 116.7% 3,000 (3,500) seminars; increased hotel costs; add ATM 
01413011 55058 TM- Contract Services 1 1,750 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - FY24 is appraisal by Primex 

NHMA (townwide), ICMA (TM/ATM), 
01413011 55088 TM-Dues 15,853 17,500 17,359 18,600 18,600 1,100 6.3% 17,500 (1,100) MMANH (TM/ATM) annual dues 

ICMA/MMANH/Primex conference, 
01413011 55091 TM- Education/Training - 300 - 2,300 2,300 2,000 666.7% 300 (2,000) seminars 
01413011 55106 TM- Equipment Purchase 194 300 - 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - Small eauioment 

Page 1 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect DescrlDtlon Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decreasel Exnlanatlon 
Budget/bond notices, public hearings, 

01413011 55171 TM- Legal/Public Notices 2,800 700 595 700 700 - 0.0% 700 - CDBG hearings 
Cell phone for Sr. Exec Assistant, Town 

01413011 55190 TM - Mobile Communications 570 1,000 1,000 1,000 (1,000} Manager, Asst Town Manaaer 
Pitney Bowes Postage & Folding 
Machines; Canon printer $253.87/mo; 
Great America Brother printers 

01413011 55198 TM - Office Equipment Leases 14,983 13,000 9,984 13,000 13,000 - 0.0% 13,000 - $111.90/mo (TM only) 
01413011 55200 TM- Supplies 3,232 4,500 3,001 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - Supplies for town offices (paper, etc.) 

Phone reimbursement (TM, EA) -
01413011 55212 TM - Phone Reimbursement 1,410 1,560 115 - - (1,560) -100.0% 1,560 1,560 discontinued 2024 

TM office postage; postage rates have 
01413011 55224 TM- Postage 276 300 53 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - increased to 69 centsnetter 
01413011 55246 TM- Reference Material - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 - NHMA, ICMA 0ubllcatlons 
01413011 55291 TM- Subscriptions 232 250 286 325 325 75 30.0% 250 (751 Exeter News-Letter, Gooole Storaae 

Printing of annual Town Report (Select 
01413011 55302 TM- Town Report EXPense 3,176 3,500 3,526 3,600 3,600 100 2.9% 3,500 (100) Print Solutions) 
01413011 55308 TM- Travel Reimbursement 576 700 1,368 500 500 (200 -28.6% 700 200 Mileage reimbursement for TM/ATM/EA 

General EXPenses Total 46,019 45,711 39,608 51,726 51,726 6,015 13.2% 45,711 (6,015} 

01413011 55998 TM- Due from Water Fund (35,705) {42,585' (31,938) (65,552) (66,789) (24,205 56.8% (45,464) 21,325 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01413011 55999 TM- Due from Sewer Fund (35,705) {42,585' (31,938} {65,552' (66,789) (24,205 56.8% (45,464} 21,325 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (71,409) (85,1691 (63,8TTl (131,104] (133,578) (48,409 56.8% (90,928) 42,650 
. 

Town Manaaer Total 271,116 314,675 266,658 451,632 459,152 144,4n 45.9% 325,089 (134,063) A 

Human ReS'"•-A• 
01415515 51110 HR- Sal/Wages FT 153,653 174,534 147,807 142,981 147,840 (26,694 -15.3% 200,815 52,975 2 FT: HR Director (9 mos); HR Generalist 
01415515 51200 HR- Sal/Wages PT - 23,992 12,537 27,333 25,322 1,330 5.5% 25,322 - PT position 

Salaries Total 153,653 198,526 160,344 170,314 173,162 {25,364 -12.8% 226,137 52,975 

01415515 52100 HR- Health Insurance 18,288 19,346 16,122 49,492 57,836 38,490 199.0% 32,184 (25,652: 18.7% increase In the premium rate 
01415515 52110 HR- Dental Insurance 3,177 3,088 2,574 2,721 3,655 567 18.4% 4,177 522 5.0% increase in the oremium rate 
01415515 52120 HR- Life Insurance 225 184 160 168 168 (16 -8.7% 192 24 No increase 
01415515 52130 HR- LTD Insurance 860 903 815 540 540 {363 -40.2% 882 342 No increase 
01415515 52200 HR-FICA 9,442 12,309 9,934 10,559 10,736 (1,573 -12.8% 14,020 3,284 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415515 52210 HR· Medicare 2,208 2,879 2,323 2,470 2,511 (368 -12.8% 3,279 768 Based on waaes: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01415515 52300 HR- Retirement Town 21,170 23,614 19,998 18,666 19,286 (4,328) -18.3% 26,358 7,072 Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 55,369 62,323 51,926 84,616 94,732 32,409 52.0% 81,092 (13,6401 

01415515 55050 HR- Conf Rooms/Meals 3,252 1,320 2,531 1,350 1,350 30 2.3% 1,320 (30) Director· IPMA-HR 
01415515 55055 HR- Consulting Services 2,950 - . 
01415515 55088 HR-Dues 700 1,334 981 930 930 (4041 -30.3% 1,334 404 SHRM, IPMA-HR, ANHPEHRA 

IPMA-HR Conference Registration, NHMA 
Conference Registration, Training for new 
director and generalist 

01415515 55091 HR· Education/TraininA 1,118 2,800 - 6,000 6,000 3,200 114.3% 2,800 (3,200) Annual Labor Em0lovment Conference 
Employee Service and Recognition, annual 

01415515 55097 HR- Employee Relations 566 1,500 908 1,500 1,500 . 0.0% 1,500 . gatherings 
01415515 55099 HR- Em0lovee Notices 553 1,500 - 1,000 1,000 (500) -33.3% 1,500 500 
01415515 55106 HR- Office Eaui0ment Purchase - 350 . 1,000 1,000 650 185.7% 350 (6501 Office Set uo flor new HR Director 
01415515 55190 HR-Mobile Communications 810 613 265 462 462 (1511 -24.6% 613 151 HR Director Mobile Phone - 38.53/mo 

Page2 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;.t:U;.t:5 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Orn Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget fDecrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 
01415515 55200 HR- Office Supplies 1,114 400 879 1,000 1,000 600 150.0% 400 (6001 To set up a new staff 
01415515 55224 HR-Postage 199 230 88 240 240 10 4.3% 230 (101 

CurrenUy, PD is conducting screening but 
01415515 55226 HR- Pre-Emplovment Screening 3,276 600 885 2,000 2,000 1,400 233.3% 600 (1,400) not sustainable 
01415515 55246 HR- Reference Materials - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -
01415515 55270 HR Software Agreement/Contract - 180 - - - (180) -100.0% 180 180 
01415515 55308 HR- Travel Reimbursement 39 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -

General Expenses Total 14,577 11,027 6,537 15,682 15,682 4,655 42.2% 11,027 (4,655) 

01415515 55998 HR- Due from Water Fund (27,713) (32,6061 (23,689) (31,8661 (33,4871 (881) 2.7% (38,4041 (4,917) 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01415515 55999 HR- Due from Sewer Fund (27,713) (32,6061 (23,689) (31,8661 (33,4871 (8811 2.7% (38,4041 (4,9171 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (55,426) (65,2121 (47,379) (63,7321 (66,9741 (1,7621 2.7% (76,8081 (9,834} 

Human Resources Total 168,174 206,664 171,429 206,880 216,602 9,938 4.8% 241,448 24,846 A 
-

Tran .. ..,.rt,., Inn -
Request from COAST bus service to come 

01419919 55040 GG - Transportation - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - from Transportation Fund 05 
Transpgrtatlon Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - A 

Leaal 
Professional legal services for Mitchell 

01415320 55170 GG- Legal Expense 75,168 100,000 93,815 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - Municipal Group and other legal advisors 
Legal Total 75,168 100,000 93,815 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - A 

- TAr,hnolow 
2 FT: IT Coordinator; Network 

01415025 51110 IT-Sal/Wages FT 192,215 199,751 166,214 189,367 196,107 (3,6441 -1.8% 193,103 (3,004) Administrator 
Salaries Total 192,215 199,751 166,214 189,367 196,107 (3,6441 -1.8% 193,103 (3,004) 

01415025 52100 IT- Health Insurance 17.484 13,229 - 34,203 34,203 20,974 158.5% 34,203 - 18.7% Increase in the premium rate 
01415025 52110 IT- Dental Insurance 959 2,984 474 4,177 4,177 1,193 40.0% 4,177 - 5.0% Increase In the premium rate 
01415025 52120 IT- Life Insurance 228 138 160 192 192 54 39.1% 192 - No Increase 
01415025 52130 IT - LTD Insurance 876 920 781 898 898 (22} -2.4% 898 - No increase 
01415025 52200 IT- FICA 11,649 12,385 10,251 11,741 12,159 (226) -1.8% 11,972 (1861 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415025 52210 IT- Medicare 2,724 2,896 2,397 2,746 2,844 (53) -1.8% 2,800 (441 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01415025 52300 IT- Retirement Town 26,497 27,026 22,489 24,870 25,729 (1,297) -4.8% 25,346 (383) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 60,418 59,578 36,551 78,827 80,202 20,624 34.6% 79,588 (614) 

01415025 55048 IT- Computer Software 21,060 16,800 9,819 26,520 26,520 9,720 57.9% 16,800 (9,7201 See Narrative 
01415025 55058 IT- Contract Services 8,000 8,000 1,350 59,039 59,039 51,039 638.0% 8,000 (51,0391 See Narrative 
01415025 55088 IT-Dues 424 424 435 450 450 26 6.1% 424 (261 See Narrative 
01415025 55091 IT- Education/Training 2,626 3,000 48 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - See Narrative 
01415025 55106 IT- Equipment Purchase 139 600 - 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - See NarraUve 
01415025 55136 IT· GIS Software 2,860 7,100 - 2,900 2,900 (4,200) -59.2% 7,100 4,200 See Narrative 

12.5% allocated to Water/Sewer Funds 
01415025 55159 IT- Internet Services 26,277 27,878 15,948 33,675 33,675 5,798 20.8% 27,878 (5,797) each; See Narrative 
01415025 55190 IT- Mobile Communications - 960 308 960 960 - 0.0% 960 - See Narrative 
01415025 55195 IT- Network Supplies 9,309 6,200 2,280 17,515 17,515 11,315 182.5% 6,200 (11,315' See Narrative 
01415025 55200 IT- Office Supplies 1,581 1,500 1,559 1,000 1,000 (500) -33.3% 1,500 . 500 See Narrative 

12.5% allocated to Water/Sewer Funds 
01415025 55213 IT- Phone Utilization 32,470 41250 32030 32,400 32400 (8 850\ -21.5% 41,250 8850 each: See Narrative 

Page 3 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon'l#4 
.t:u.t::,Detault 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- o/o· Default Increase/• 

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
12.5% allocated to Water/Sewer Funds 

01415025 55383 IT• Email Archiving 7,336 7,425 2,819 1,575 1,575 (5,850) -78.8% 7,425 5,850 each; See Narrative 
01415025 55270 IT- Software Agreement 2,265 6,280 2,508 9,479 9,479 3,199 50.9% 6,280 (3,199) See Narrative 
01415025 55308 IT-Travel Reimbursement 44 250 373 500 500 250 100.0% 250 (250) 

General Expenses Total 114,391 127,667 69,4TT 189,613 189,613 61,947 48.5% 127,667 (61,946) 

01415025 57003 IT- CO- Computers 10,790 19,400 20,254 31,300 31,300 11,900 61.3% 19,400 (11,900) See Narrative 
01415025 57006 IT- CO- Equipment 248 4,020 3,791 1,900 1,900 (2,120) -52.7% 4,020 2,120 See Narrative 

Capital Outlay Total 11,037 23,420 24,044 33,200 33,200 9,780 41.8% 23,420 (9,780) 

01415025 55998 IT- Due from Water Fund (27,751) (32,416) (24,312) (33,524) (34,539) (2,122) 6.5% (34,0861 452 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01415025 55999 IT- Due from Sewer Fund (27,751) (32,416) (24,312) (33,524) (34,539) (2,122) 6.5% (34,0861 452 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (55,502) (64,832) (48,624) (67,048) (69,078) (4,246) 6.5% (68,1721 906 

Information Technology Total 322,559 345,583 247,663 423,959 430,044 84,461 24.4% 355,606 (74,438) A 

Media Communications 
01419902 51110 COM- Sal/Wages FT - 38,387 32,263 40,330 41,483 3,096 8.1% 40,847 (636) Split 50/50 with CA TV Fund 

Salaries Total - 38,387 32,263 40,330 41,483 3,096 8.1% 40,847 (636) 

01419902 52100 COM- Health Insurance 14,402 9,512 17,102 17,102 2,701 18.8% 17,102 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01419902 52110 COM- Dental Insurance 550 458 577 577 28 5.0% 577 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01419902 52120 COM- Life Insurance 46 40 48 48 2 4.3% 48 - No Increase 
01419902 52200 COM-FICA 2,380 1,904 2,500 2,572 192 8.1% 2,533 (39) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419902 52210 COM- Medicare 557 445 585 602 45 8.1% 592 (9) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01419902 52300 COM- Retirement Town 5,194 4,365 5,295 5,442 248 4.8% 5,361 (81) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total - 23,127 16,725 26,107 26,343 3,216 13.9% 26,213 (130) 

01419902 55002 COM- Advertising 1,000 500 500 (500 -50.0% 1,000 500 Facebook Ads, Phvsical Posters, Flyers, et 
Online software (MailChimp, Canva, etc.) 

01419902 55048 COM- Computer Software 1,740 1,080 1,800 1,800 60 3.4% 1,740 (60) see narrative for details 
Membership to the National Association of 
Government Communicators, slight 

01419902 55088 COM-Dues 160 168 180 180 20 12.5% 160 (20) increase in price 
UNH Digital Marketing Classes, costs per 
class have gone up over last year with 
anticipated increase for FY25 by $10-15 

01419902 55091 COM- Education/Training 887 628 900 900 13 1.5% 887 (13) per class 
01419902 55106 COM- Equipment Purchase 1,800 1,800 1,800 (1,800) Podcastlng equipment 

50% CA TV, 50% Media c;ommunicatrons -
used for communicating with Town 
Manager's office and other departments 
during the day and out of normal office 
hours - used for managing Town Social 

01419902 55190 COM- Mobile Communications 390 80 400 400 10 2.6% 390 (10) Media Accounts 
01419902 55291 COM- Subscriptions 120 120 120 . (120) Podbean yearly subscription 

General Exoenses Total . 4,177 1,956 5,700 5,700 1,523 36.5% 4,177 (1,523) 

Media Communications Total . 65,691 50,944 72,137 73,526 7,835 11.9% 71,237 (2,289) A 

Trustee of ·rust Funds 
01413030 51000 TT - Sal/Waoes Elecied 828 828 828 828 828 - 0.0% 828 . Wages for Trustee of Trust funds 

Page4 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
;tU;t5 Default 

2025 SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/• 

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Salaries Total 828 828 828 828 828 - 0.0% 828 -

-
01413030 52200 TT-FICA 51 51 51 51 51 - 0.0% 51 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01413030 52210 TT• Medicare 12 12 12 12 12 - 0.0% 12 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 63 63 63 63 63 (0) -0.5% 63 -

Trustee of Trust Funds Total 891 891 891 891 891 (01 0.0% 891 . A 

Town Moderator 

01414040 51000 MO- Sal/Wages Elected 800 1,255 1,000 625 625 (630) -50.2% 625 - 2 deliberative, 1 election, 1 special election 
Salaries Total 800 1,255 1,000 625 625 (630) -50.2% 625 -

-
01414040 52200 MO-FICA 50 78 62 39 39 (39) -50.2% 39 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01414040 52210 MO- Medicare 12 18 15 9 9 (9) -50.2% 9 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 61 96 77 48 48 (48) -50.0% 48 -

Town Moderator Total 861 1,351 1,077 673 673 (6781 -50.2% 673 . A 

Town Clerk 
Includes 1 FT Town Clerk 1 FT Deputy TC 

01414051 51110 TC- Sal/Wages FT 229,525 252,988 170,618 248,785 251,129 (1,859) -0.7% 248,601 (2,528) + 2 FT Asst Clerks 
01414051 51300 TC- Sal/Wages OT 708 1,000 1,688 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - OT for Deputy TC and Assistant Clerks 
01414051 51400 TC- Longevity Pav 1,050 - - - - - -

Salaries Total 231,283 253,988 172,305 249,785 252,129 (1,859) -0.7% 249 601 (2,528) 

01414051 52100 TC- Health Insurance 64,712 107,075 47,054 72,060 72,060 (35,015) -32.7% 72,060 - 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01414051 52110 TC- Dental Insurance 5,900 7,066 3,221 4,437 4,437 (2,629) -37.2% 4,437 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01414051 52120 TC- Life Insurance 263 230 157 240 240 10 4.3% 240 - No increase 
01414051 52130 TC- LTD Insurance 818 761 640 744 744 (17) -2.2% 744 - No increase 
01414051 52200 TC-FICA 13,464 15,747 10,041 15,487 15,632 (115) -0.7% 15,475 (157) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01414051 52210 TC- Medicare 3,149 3,683 2,348 3,622 3,656 (27) -0.7% 3,619 (37) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01414051 52300 TC- Retirement Town 31,892 34,365 22,618 32,802 33,057 (1,308) -3.8% 32,735 (322) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 120,198 168,927 86,079 129,392 129,826 (39,101) -23.1% 129,310 (516) 

01414051 55017 TC- Bank Fees 600 600 600 - (600) $50/month for check scanner 
toner cartridges, validator ribbons, 

01414051 55049 TC- Computer Supplies 98 1,200 259 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - calculator ribbons, paper 
Mandatory Fan cont, spnng Reg, re; 
Certification Training, NECTCA 
Conference, NEMCl&A Certification, 
Clerkworks Training, Election Training, 
IIMC Conference, Cost of Rooms/Meals 

01414051 55050 TC- Conf/Room/Meals 2,466 3,000 991 4,000 4,000 1,000 33.3% 3,000 (1,000) have increased 
Dog tags, Cost of tags & Shipping have 

01414051 55084 TC-DoaTaas 760 800 864 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - increased 
IIMC-$310; NHCTCA-$100; NEACTC-

01414051 55088 TC-Dues 55 360 327 500 500 140 38.9% 360 (140l $85.00 

Page5of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- 'Yo- Default Increase/• 

Org Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Registration Fees for Mandatory Fall Conf, 
Spring Regional, TC Certification Training, 
NECTCA Conf, NEMCl&A Certification, 
Elections, IIMC Conference Registration 
fees have increased plus adding 2 clerks 
to Associations (increasing the certification 

01414051 55091 TC- Education/Training 852 3,000 1,321 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - levels of clerks) 
Computers, printers, copiers, office 

01414051 55106 TC- Eauioment Purchase 1,406 2,000 487 2,000 2,000 . 0.0% 2,000 - furniture 
01414051 55190 TC- Mobile Communications 462 1,000 1,000 1,000 {1,000) $78.18 p/mth x 12 mths $940.00 

Great America Financial Serv.- 3 printers; 
01414051 55198 TC- Office EauiDment Lease 4,761 4,000 2,696 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - Leaf - LSharp printer 

Validators, Mobile printers used for 
01414051 55199 TC- Office Equip Maintenance 559 480 157 480 480 - 0.0% 480 - elections, 

copy paper, general office supplies, 
envelopes All supplies & shipping has 

01414051 55200 TC- Office Supplies 2,511 2,500 2,450 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - Increased 
dog civil forfeiture letters, letters & forms, 
weekly State work, monthly Vital work, 
weekly MV registrations Certified postage 
has increased to $9.64, law allows $7 for 
cert mail. Postage in general has 

01414051 55224 TC-Postaqe 5,946 6,000 6,531 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - increased. 
01414051 55241 TC- Record Retention 2,572 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - Book Restoration 

I1nterware Development Contract for MV, 
Boats, Vitals, Transfer Station Permits, 
Credit Cards, Reports, Support, Dogs On-
line prgm, CC machines Cost of contract 

01414051 55270 TC- Software Agreement/Contract 9,002 9,650 9,342 10,006 10,006 356 3.7% 9,650 (356) and suooort increased 
Mandatory Fall conr, spring Reg, 1 (; 

Certification Training, NECTCA 
Conference, NEMCl&A Certification, 
Clerkworks Training, Election Training, 
IIMC Conference Cost of gas has 

01414051 55308 TC- Travel Reimbursement 153 1,300 - 1,300 1,300 - 0.0% 1,300 - increased 
General Expenses Total 31,141 36,790 25,887 39,886 39,886 3,096 8.4% 36,790 {3,0961 

Town Clerk Total 382,622 459,705 284,272 419,063 421,841 (37,864) -8.2% 415,701 (6,140] A 

Elections 
Supervisors of the Checklist - 1 mandated 
election, 2 deliberative, 1 special election, 

01414052 51000 EL- Sal/Wages Elected 353 3,040 4,113 3,520 3,520 480 15.8% 3,520 - 3 mandatory sessions pf election 
Ballot Clerks for 1 mandated election, 1 

01414052 51210 EL- Sal/Wages Temp 2,508 7,384 3,128 2,688 2,688 (4,6961 -63.6% 2,688 - special election 
Salaries Total 2,861 10,424 7,241 6,208 6,208 (4,2161 -40.4% 6,208 -

01414052 52200 EL-FICA 177 646 449 385 385 (261 1 -40.4% 385 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01414052 52210 EL- Medicare 42 151 105 so 90 (61J -40.4% 90 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 219 797 554 475 475 (322' -40.4% 475 -

01414052 55002 EL- Advertisina - 150 - 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - Leaal Notices 

Page6of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

·-· ··-

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
01414052 55198 EL- Office EQuipment Lease 448 448 - (448) New contract - $37.30/mo 

Copy paper, envelopes, general office 
supplies, and all supplies needed for 

01414052 55200 EL- Office Supplies 505 1,500 4,320 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - election, poll pad receipt paper 
Mandated by SOS, sending absentee 
ballots and any other letters required to be 

01414052 55224 EL-Postage 244 5,000 1,524 2,500 2,500 (2,500) -50.0% 5,000 2,500 sent by the Checklist Sups 
Mandated by SOS to pay for coding, 
printing, collating, shipping costs and any 
other Special Town Elections held by the 
Town Cost of printing coding & shipping 

01414052 55322 EL- Voting Expenses 6,637 3,000 6,544 6,500 6,500 3,500 116.7% 3,000 (3,500) has increased. 
Mandated by the State of NH for servicing 
and maintaining of the Accuvote Machines, 
$3,000 software maintenance on new 

01414052 55323 EL- Voting Machines Maint. 975 3,900 1,050 3,900 3,900 - 0.0% 3,900 . polling pads 
General Exµenses Total 8,361 13,550 13,438 14,550 14,998 1,448 10.7% 13,550 (1,448' 

01414052 57006 EL- CO- EQuipment - , 1 1 - (1' 
Capital Outlay Total - - - 1 1 1 - (1' 

Elections Total 11,440 24,TT1 21,233 21,234 21,682 (3,089) -12.5% 20,233 (1,449) A 

Total General Government 1,282,912 1,541,800 1,156,069 1,718,932 1,746,874 205,074 13.30% 1,553,341 (193,533) 

Finance Department 

Flnance/Accountina 
3 FT: Finance Dir, 5r Accountant, 
HR/Payroll Accountant - 5% annual 
Increase over 2024, plus reclassification of 
Director's salary for increased 
management responsibilities with AS, TX 

01415001 51110 Fl- Sal/Wages FT 247,596 268,034 228,590 296,501 304,978 36,944 13.8% 300,307 (4,671) and IT. 
Salaries Total 247,596 268,034 228,590 296,501 304,978 36,944 13.8% 300,307 (4,671) 

01415001 52100 Fl- Health Insurance 45,581 50,139 41,782 59,539 58,791 8,652 17.3% 58,791 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01415001 52110 Fl- Dental Insurance 3,493 3,657 3,048 3,840 3,840 183 5.0% 3,840 - 5.0% Increase in the premium rate 
01415001 52120 Fl- Life Insurance 325 275 240 288 288 13 4.7% 288 - No increase 
01415001 52130 Fl- LTD Insurance 914 903 755 882 882 (21' -2.3% 882 - No increase 
01415001 52200 Fl-FICA 14,866 16,618 13,738 18,383 18,909 2,291 13.8% 18,619 (2901 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415001 52210 Fl- Medicare 3,477 3,886 3,213 4,299 4,422 536 13.8% 4,354 (68) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01415001 52300 Fl- Retirement Town 34,129 36,265 30,928 38,932 40,013 3,748 10.3% 39,417 (5961 Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 102,784 111,744 93,704 126,163 127,145 15,401 13.8% 126,191 (954) 

Annual and Single Audits Fees - Year 2 of 
3-Year fee schedule. Allocated 50/25/25% 

01415001 55014 Fl- Audit Fees 12,562 28,995 17,110 27,000 27,000 (1,995) -6.9% 28,995 1,995 between GF, Water & Sewer- Total $54K 
480/mo based on 2024 average thru July -
plus small increase for move to ACH 

01415001 55017 Fl- Bank Fees 5514 5000 6,428 6.000 6000 1 000 20.0% 5,000 (1 000) vendor oavment method 

Page 7of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
.cu.c:, Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- o/o· Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
01415001 Fl- Bond RalinQ - - - - - - Moved to contracted services 

Conferences/Meals for Finance Staff -
01415001 55050 Fl- Conf/Room/Meals 64 500 260 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - Maintaining same budget as 2024 

GASB 74175 valuation disclosure ror 
annual financial audit. 50% GF; 25% 
Water; 25% Sewer (only need statement 
disclosure in 2025); NEW - Cost to obtain 
an Issuer Level (Indicative) bond rating -

01415001 55058 Fl- Contract Services 1,090 6,600 4,150 4,925 4,925 (1,675) -25.4% 6,600 1,675 number confirmed with Moody's 
Covers audit/accounting, government 
finance, and payroll memberships: 

01415001 55088 Fl-Dues 368 925 225 625 625 (300) -32.4% 925 300 AICPA: 350; NHGFOA: 85; GFOA: 195 
Training and Education for 3 Finance staff -
Maintaining same budget as 2024 plus 

01415001 55091 Fl- Education/Training 745 4,000 794 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - absorb any Treasurer costs 
01415001 55190 Fl- Mobile Communications 269 960 960 960 (960) Town cell phone implemented in 2024 
01415001 55198 Fl- Office Equipment Leases 1,078 1,130 379 450 450 (680) -60.2% 1,130 680 New contract - $37 .30/mo 

Maintain PY budget level - folders, check 
stock, envelopes, paper, tax forms, deposit 

01415001 55200 Fl-Supplies 4,326 4,000 2,121 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - tickets, kitchen/office supplies 
Based on average monthly spend thru July 

01415001 55224 Fl- Postage 2,134 2,350 2,051 2,500 2,500 150 6.4% 2,350 (150) '24 

Munis Software Agreement@ 5% increase 
over 2024 actual - LESS one Munis 

01415001 55270 Fl- Software Agreement 29,447 31,050 31,050 32,000 32,000 950 3.1% 31,050 (950) service no longer needed as of Fall 2024 
Travel for 3 Finance staff - Maintaining 
same budget as 2024 plus absorb any 

01415001 55308 Fl- Travel Reimbursement 336 750 - 750 750 - 0.0% 750 - Treasurer costs 
General Expenses Total 57,663 85,300 64,837 83,710 83,710 (1,5901 -1.9% 85,300 1,590 

01415001 55998 Fl- Due from Water Fund (43,273) (47,472] (35,604) (52,833) (54,015) (6,543) 13.8% (53,312) 703 12.5% Water Fund Offset 
01415001 55999 Fl- Due from Sewer Fund (43,273) (47,472) (35,604) (52,833) (54,015) (6,543) 13.8% (53,312) 703 12.5% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds (86,546) (94,944) (71,208) (105,666) (108,030) (13,086) 13.8% (106,624) 1,406 

Finance/Accounting Total 321,498 370,133 315,923 400,708 407,803 37,670 10.2% 405,174 (2,629) A 

TreasuMr -
01415002 51000 TR- Sal/Wages Elected 8,864 8,864 7,387 8,864 8,864 - 0.0% 8,864 - Wages PT Treasurer 

Salaries Total 8,864 8,864 7,387 8,864 8,864 - 0.0% 8,864 -

01415002 52200 TR-FICA 550 550 458 550 550 - 0.0% 550 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415002 52210 TR- Medicare 129 129 107 129 129 - 0.0% 129 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 678 678 565 679 679 1 0.1% 679 -
01415002 55088 TR-Dues - 50 - 1 1 (49) -98.0% 50 49 Moved to Finance Dues line 
01415002 55091 TR- Education/Training - 100 - 1 1 (99) -99.0% 100 99 Absorbed into Finance budget 

General Expenses Total - 150 - 2 2 (148) -98.7% 150 148 

Treasurer Total 9,542 9,692 7,952 9,545 9,545 (147) -1.5% 9,693 148 A 

Tax Collection 

Page8of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
zuz5 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025 SB Increase/• %· Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Descrlotlon Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
2 FT: Deputy Tax Collector, Collections 

01415003 51110 TX- Sal/Wages FT 105,589 121,515 99,156 130,196 133,120 11,605 9.6% 133,120 - Soecialist 
01415003 51300 TX- Sal/Wages OT 179 300 142 100 100 (200) -66.7% 100 -

Salaries Total 105,767 121,815 99,298 130,296 133,220 11,405 9.4% 133,220 -

01415003 52100 TX• Health Insurance 31,096 30,118 25,092 36,064 36,064 5,946 19.7% 36,064 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01415003 52110 TX• Dental Insurance 1,719 1,668 1,390 1,751 1,751 83 5.0% 1,751 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01415003 52120 TX- life Insurance 169 138 120 144 144 6 4.3% 144 - No increase 
01415003 52200 TX-FICA 6,154 7,553 5,819 8,078 8,260 707 9.4% 8,260 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415003 52210 TX- Medicare 1,439 1,766 1,361 1,889 1,932 165 9.4% 1,932 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01415003 52300 TX- Retirement Town 14,573 16,482 13,430 17,117 17,476 994 6.0% 17,476 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 55,150 57,724 47,213 65,043 65,627 7,903 13.7% 65,627 -

Tax Online ACH $15/monthly + Check 
01415003 55017 TX- Bank Fees - 200 15 780 780 580 290.0% 200 (580) scanner 

,or u I"' ,, .. n I GA vOlltlC\Or 

01415003 55050 TX- Conf/Room/Meals 160 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Association) 

01415003 55058 TX- Contract Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Coverage for Collections Clerk 
Expenses related to Tax deeded properties 

01415003 55073 TX- Deeded Property - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - -4th qtr 
01415003 55088 TX-Dues 40 40 - 40 40 - 0.0% 40 - NHTC Dues - no increase 

Training and workshops• new Deputy Tax 
01415003 55091 TX- Education/Training 120 1,000 470 2,000 2,000 1,000 100.0% 1,000 (1,000) Collector in Q4 2024 

Legal services for liens.deeds and 
01415003 55170 TX- Legal Exoenses - 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - bankruptcies, if any 

Great American lease - $75/mo. + New 
01415003 55198 TX- Office Eciuipment Leases 2,155 2,200 1,417 1,900 1,900 (300) -13.6% 2,200 300 check scanner (1x fee in '25) 

Paper, Ink, Envelopes, Storage Boxes, 
01415003 55200 TX- Supplies 1,438 1,900 1,085 1,900 1,900 - 0.0% 1,900 - printer 

Malling delinquency, lien, and deed 
notices, tax bills. Increase due to postage 

01415003 55224 TX- Postage 9,488 11,500 8,792 13,000 13,000 1,500 13.0% 11,500 (1,500) increases 
Liens & deeds recordings at Registry of 

01415003 55247 TX- ReQistrv of Deeds 721 1,000 573 1,000 1,000 . 0.0% 1,000 - Deeds - postage increase 
Processing fees and materials for tax bills. 

01415003 55297 TX-Tax Billina Services 3,208 3,300 1,680 5,470 5,470 2,170 65.8% 3,300 (2,170) New Resident Access software 
Maintain prior year budget level for certified 

01415003 55298 TX- Tax Lien/Deeded Searches 4,150 5,500 3,661 5,500 5,500 - 0.0% 5,500 - mail and notice fees 
General ExDenses Total 21,480 30,841 17,693 35,791 35,791 4,950 16.1% 30,841 (4,950) 

01415003 55998 TX- Due from Water Fund (40,886) (44,885] (33,664] (48,835, (49,712, (4,827) 10.8% (49,712) - 25% Water Fund Offset 
01415003 55999 TX- Due from Sewer Fund (40,886) (44,8851 (33,664) (48,8351 (49,7121 (4,827) 10.8% (49,712) - 25% Sewer Fund Offset 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds Total ca1.n11 ca9,no1 (67,3271 (97,6701 (99,4241 (9,654] 10.8% _ ~~.424} -

Tax Collection Total 100,626 120,611 96,877 133,460 135,214 14,603 12.1% 130,264 (4,950) A 

Assesslna 
01415005 51110 AS- Sal/Wa11es FT 83,729 89,821 75,491 94,366 97,064 7,243 8.1% 95,578 (1,486) 1 FT: Assessor 
01415005 51210 AS- Sal/Waaes Temp - 1 . 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Salaries Total 83,729 89,822 75,491 94,367 97,065 7,243 8.1% 95,579 (1,486) 

01415005 52100 AS- Health Insurance 19.396 21336 17780 25336 25336 4 000 18.7% 25336 - 18.7% increase in the oremium rate 

Page9of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
"u"5 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
01415005 52110 AS- Dental Insurance 1,050 1,099 916 1,154 1,154 55 5.0% 1,154 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01415005 52120 AS- Life Insurance 108 92 80 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01415005 52130 AS- LTD Insurance 757 718 609 701 701 (171 -2.4% 701 - No increase 
01415005 52200 AS-FICA 5,451 5,569 4,422 5,851 6,018 449 8.1% 5,926 (92) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01415005 52210 AS- Medicare 1,275 1,302 1,034 1,368 1,407 105 8.1% 1,386 (22) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 

01415005 52300 AS- Retirement Town 11,543 12,153 10,214 12,391 12,735 582 4.8% 12,545 (190) Jul-Dec 
Benefits Total 39,580 42,269 35,054 46,897 47,447 5,178 12.2% 47,144 (303) 

01415005 55050 AS- Conf/Room/Meals - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - Meetings rooms & meals 
Assessor contract with MRI - contractual 

01415005 55058 AS- Contract Services 97,387 96,200 83,908 100,500 100,500 4,300 4.5% 96,200 (4,300) Increase 
01415005 55088 AS-Dues 290 290 50 290 290 - 0.0% 290 - IAAO & NHAAO dues 
01415005 55091 AS- Education/Training 25 650 675 675 675 25 3.8% 650 (25) Course or seminar 
01415005 55106 As- Equipment Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Small eQuipment 
01415005 55128 As-Fuel - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Assessor oosition 
01415005 55171 AS- Legal/Public Notices - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - Public Notices in news media 

Yrty updates :54,000 & Building placement 
01415005 55180 AS-Mapping 4,930 5,300 4,800 5,300 5,300 - 0.0% 5,300 - $20.00 per bdlg 
01415005 551S0 AS- Mobile Communications 540 540 - (540) Town cell phone implemented in 2024 
01415005 55198 AS- Office Equipment Lease 1,078 1,078 379 1,078 1,078 - 0.0% 1,078 - Printer Lease, $89.80/mo 
01415005 55200 AS- Supplies 23 300 319 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - Toner, envelopes, general supplies 
01415005 55224 AS-Postaae 1,079 5,300 692 1,000 1,000 (4,300 -81.1% 5,300 4,300 Sales questionnaires and cvclical letters 
01415005 55247 AS-Registry of Deeds - 50 85 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - Plans, deeds and recording fees 

Independent Appraiser for Riverwoods in 
01415005 55250 AS- Revaluation - 10,000 9,000 - - (10,000) -100.0% - - 2024 
01415005 55270 AS- Software Aareement 17,071 19,200 19,169 21,470 21,470 2,270 11.8% 19,200 (2,270) Vision contract $9,916 web fee $4,458 clou 
01415005 55308 AS- Travel Reimbursement - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Use of personal car - 1 employee 

General Exoenses Total 121,884 138,471 119,0TT 130,766 131,306 (7,165) -5.2% 128,471 (2,835} 

Assessing Total 245,192 270,562 229,623 272,030 275,818 5,256 1.9% 271,194 (4,624) A 

Total Finance 678,859 770,998 650,374 815,743 828,380 57,382 7.4% 818,325 (12,055) 

Planning & Development 

Plannlna 
2 FT: Town Planner; 1 FT 
Conservatlon/Sustainabiltiy Planner plus 
reclassification of Director salary for 

01419101 51110 PL- Sal/Wages FT 176,270 188,707 158,875 201,918 207,691 18,984 10.1% 204,510 (3,181) increased management responsibilities 
1 Adm!n Asst @ 20 hr/wk; Recording Sec 

01419101 51200 PL- Sal/Wages PT 23,023 28,601 20,946 29,625 29,385 784 2.7% 28,923 (462' @ $19.44 per hr 
Salaries Total 199,293 217,308 179,822 231,543 237,076 19,768 9.1% 233,433 (3,643] 

01419101 52100 PL- Health Insurance - - - -
01419101 52110 PL- Dental Insurance 1,900 3,978 1,658 4,177 4,177 199 5.0% 4,177 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01419101 52120 PL- Life Insurance 216 184 160 192 192 8 4.3% 192 - No increase 
01419101 52130 PL- LTD Insurance 991 928 784 S07 907 (21 1 -2.3% 907 - No Increase 
01419101 52200 PL-FICA 12,356 13,473 11,149 14,356 14,699 1,226 9.1% 14.473 (226) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419101 52210 PL- Medicare 2,890 3,151 2,607 3,357 3,438 287 9.1% 3,385 (53] Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01419101 52300 PL- Retirement Town 24286 25,532 21496 26,513 27249 1,717 6.7% 26843 (406) Jul-Dec 

Page 10 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

- -- -

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#l4 
2u25 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budnet October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Benefits Total 42,639 47,246 37,854 49,502 50,662 3,416 7.2% 49,977 (685) 

APA Conference, Seminars/training. 
01419101 55050 PL- Cont/Room/Meals 209 800 400 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Covers 2 FT employees, 1 PT 
0f419101 55058 PL- Contract Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Rockingham Planning Commission annual 
01419101 55088 PL- Dues 13,127 13,442 13,494 13,650 13,650 208 1.5% 13,442 (208) dues and APA dues. 

Seminars/Training for planning staff, board 
01419101 55091 PL- Education/Training 90 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - members 

Annual suppport and maintenance for 
building permiUzoning software. Paid 

01419101 55136 PL- GIS Software 3,300 3,500 - 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - annually In the fall. 
No grants targeted at this time but to be 
ready if one comes along. The HDC Grant 
Matching line was reduced to $1 so that 
any needed grant matching funds could 

01419101 55138 PL- Grant Matching 2,458 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - come from this line item. 
Placeholder for third party Inspection as 

01419101 55155 PL- Inspection Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - needed 
Primarily for Planning Board cases but also 

01419101 55171 PL- Leaal/Public Notices 1,860 2,000 1,889 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - covers Planning depl 
01419101 55180 PL-MaDDina - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Hasn't been spent in Drior vears due to in-h 
01419101 55190 PL- Mobile Communications 609 605 605 605 (6051 New cell phone for Planning Director 

Misc office supplies. Covers Planning & 
01419101 55200 PL- Office Supplies 711 2,000 990 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - Building depts. 

Provide source of funding for Crean Energy 
NH membership, annual Local Energy 
Solutions conference, & attendance at 
New England Municipal Sustainbility 

01419101 55384 PL- Sustainabllitv Expense 1,150 1,250 620 1,250 1,250 - 0.0% 1,250 - meetings 
Covers Planning and Building departments 
as well as Planning Board packages and 

01419101 55224 PL-Postage 5,154 4,000 2,079 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - administration of cases. 
Used for large printing jobs such as Zoning 

01419101 55227 PL-Printing - 400 477 400 400 - 0.0% 400 - Ordinance 
Includes Exeter Newspaper and Registry 
Review, RSA books and other reference 

01419101 55246 PL- Reference Material 439 425 442 440 440 15 3.5% 425 (15) material 
-- - May be used for follow up on the 

--
recommendations of the downtown 
parking, traffic, and pedestrian study, the 
bike and pedestrian master plan, or other 

01419101 55289 PL-Studies - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - needs as they arise. 
To cover mileage for staff to attend 

01419101 55308 PL- Travel Reimbursement 93 800 398 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - training, workshops, meetings, etc. 
General Expenses Total 28,590 36,620 21,397 37,448 37,448 828 2.3% 36,620 (8281 

Planning Total 270,522 301,174 239,073 318,493 325,186 24,012 8.0% 320,030 (5,156] A 

Economic Develonment 
01465207 51110 ED- Sal/Wages FT 101,702 108,602 91,276 114,097 117,360 8,758 8.1% 115,562 (1,798' 1 FT: ED Director 

Salaries Total 101,702 108,602 91,276 114,097 117,360 8,758 8.1% 115,562 (1,798' 

Page 11 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 oetau1t 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
01465207 52100 ED- Health Insurance 26,279 28,907 24,089 34,203 32,184 3,277 11.3% 32,184 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01465207 52110 ED- Dental Insurance 1,900 1,989 1,658 2,088 2,088 99 5.0% 2,088 - 5.0% increase in the oremium rate 
01465207 52120 ED- Life Insurance 108 92 80 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01465207 52130 ED- LTD Insurance 926 868 725 847 847 (211 -2.4% 847 - No increase 
01465207 52200 ED-FICA 5,872 6,733 5,262 7,074 7,276 543 8.1% 7,165 (111 l Based on wages: 6.2% 
01465207 52210 ED- Medicare 1,373 1,575 1,231 1,654 1,702 127 8.1% 1,676 (26) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01465207 52300 ED- Retirement Town 14,021 14,694 12,350 14,981 15,397 703 4.8% 15,168 (229) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 50,480 54,858 45,394 60,943 59,590 4,732 8.6% 59,224 (366) 

01465207 __ 55050 ED- Conf/Room/Meals - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Classes complele 
Consulting (property appraisals, marketing, 

01465207 55055 ED- Consulting Services 2,105 2,500 1,620 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - etc.) 
01465207 55091 ED- Education/Training 3,053 - 1 1 1 - (1 l Classes complete 
01465207 55190 ED- Mobile Communications 598 600 364 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Cell Phone for ED Director 

Limited need - printer, paper, pens, Ink, 
01465207 55200 ED- Office Supolies - 500 - 1 1 (499) -99.8% 500 499 etc. 
01465207 55308 ED-Travel Reimbursement 1,616 600 - 650 650 50 8.3% 600 (501 

General Expenses Total 7,373 4,400 1,984 3,952 3,952 {448) -10.2% 4,400 448 

Total Economic Development 159,555 167,860 138,654 178,992 180,902 13,042 7.8% 179,186 (1,7161 A 

r & Cnde EnforcAmAnt 
01424002 51110 Bl- Sal/Wages FT 169,110 178,410 149,975 187,185 192,586 14,176 7.9% 189,716 (2,870) 2 FT: Building Inspector, Deputy CEO 

Unfilled position pulled in 2024, was: 1 PT: 
01424002 51200 Bl- Sal/Wages PT - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Electrical lnsp. (24 Hrs/Wk) 

Salaries Total 169,110 178,411 149,975 187. 186 192,587 14,176 7.9% 189,717 (2,870) 

01424002 52100 Bl- Health Insurance 38,932 42,825 35,688 50,672 25,336 (17,489) -40.8% 25,336 - 18.7% increase in the oremium rate 
01424002 52110 Bl- Dental Insurance 2,016 2,199 1,832 2,309 2,309 110 5.0% 2,309 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01424002 52120 Bl- Life Insurance 182 184 80 96 96 (88) -47.8% 96 - No increase 
01424002 52130 Bl- LTD Insurance 880 818 686 799 799 (19) -2.3% 799 - No increase 
01424002 52200 Bl-FICA 10,562 11,061 9,374 11,606 11,940 879 7.9% 11,762 (1781 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01424002 52210 Bl- Medicare 2,470 2,587 2,192 2,714 2,793 206 7.9% 2,751 (421 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01424002 52300 Bl- Retirement Town 23,319 24.139 20,292 24,579 25,267 1,128 4.7% 24,901 (3661 Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 78,361 83,813 70,145 92,775 68,540 (15,273) -18.2% 67,954 (586) 

NE Building Officials Association 
01424002 55091 Bl- Education/Trainino - 250 - 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - Conference 
01424002 55058 Bl- Contracted Services 15,000 - 5,000 5,000 (10,000) -66.7% 15,000 10,000 Inspection services 
01424002 55088 Bl- Dues 105 300 30 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - RNI and NHBOA Dues 
01424002 55128 Bl- Fuel 1,110 950 903 950 950 - 0.0% 950 - Fuel for Bl 
01424002 55190 Bl- Mobile Communications 598 600 361 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Cell Phone for Bl 
01424002 55308 Bl- Travel Reimbursement 300 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - Mileage for Electrical inspector 
01424002 55319 Bl- Vehicle Maintenance 230 1 152 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

General Expenses Total 2,344 17,601 1,445 7,601 7,601 (10,000) -56.8% 17,601 10,000 

Inspections & Code Enf Total 249,815 279,825 221,565 287,562 268,728 (11,097) -4.0% 275,272 6,544 A 

Consenmtlon Commission 
01461105 51200 CC- Sal/Waaes PT 578 504 540 600 602 98 19.4% 600 (2) Recording secretaries@$19.44/hr 
01461105 51210 CC- Sal/Waaes Temo - 2,520 - 2.530 2,530 10 0.4% 2 530 - lntems 2{a}12/hr, 15 hrs/wk for 7 wks 

Page 12 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board -----

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '1#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budget, (Decrease) Difference Budaet IDecrease) Exnlanatlon 
Salaries Total 578 3,024 540 3,130 3,132 108 3.6% 3,130 (21 

01461105 52200 CC-FICA 36 187 33 194 194 7 3.6% 194 (OJ Based on wages: 6.2% 
01461105 52210 CC- Medicare 8 44 8 45 45 2 3.6% 45 (01 Based on waaes: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 44 231 41 239 239 8 3.3% 239 ---

Covers costs for outreach activities (Spring 
Tree program, pollinator projects, star 
gazing event, etc), trail maintenance 
(bridge, signs, paint, etc) and conservation 
land administration work such as property 
monitoring and maintenance needs like 
invasive brush removal, and supplies such 

01461105 55051 CC- Conservation Land Administration 1,502 2,050 1,690 2,050 2,050 - 0.0% 2,050 - as tools, gloves and equipment. 
01461105 55058 CC- Contract Services 975 1,000 3,108 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - Small contracts for Raynes repairs 

For board to join related organizations: 
ESRLAC ($150), NHACC ($900), SEL T 

01461105 55088 CC-Dues 1,200 1,200 875 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - ($150) 
Training for board members and/or 
Cons/Sust planner (NHACC-3 members 

01461105 55091 CC- Education/Trainina 178 250 60 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - and other workshops) 
Covers approx 1 legal notice typ in 

01461105 55171 CC- Legal/Public Notices - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - newsoaoer 
Mailings to ConCom members (mostly 

01461105 55224 CC-Postage - 20 - 20 20 - 0.0% 20 - elect distr) 
01461105 55247 CC- Registry of Deeds - 30 1 30 30 - 0.0% 30 - Fee for reaistrv of deeds ltvoicallv orintina , 

Mowing White, Perry, Irvine and 1/2 of 
01461105 55254 CC- Roadside Mowing 1,825 1,700 1,825 1,825 1,825 125 7.4% 1,700 (125' Morrissette. This is paid out Oct-Dec 

General Exoenses Total 5,680 6,300 7,560 6,425 6,425 125 2.0% 6,300 (125 

Conservation Commission Total 6,301 9,555 8,141 9,794 9,796 241 2.5% 9,669 11271 A 

Renewithle Enernv Exnense 
01419118 55547 ENR- Renewable Enemv Exoense - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Potential Grant Matching 

General Exoenses Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
Renewable Enerav Expense - 1 . 1 1 . 0.0% 1 - A 

-------

Zonlna Board of Adlustment 
01419103 51200 ZO- SalJWa11es PT 666 907 326 800 809 (981 -10.8% 800 (91 Recordlnfl secretaries@ $19.44 per hour 

Salaries Total 666 907 326 800 809 (981 -10.8% 800 {91 

01419103 52200 ZO-FICA 41 56 20 50 50 (61 -10.8% 50 (11 
01419103 52210 ZO- Medicare 10 13 5 12 12 (1 l -10.8% 12 (01 

Benefits Total 51 69 25 62 62 (7] -10.6% 62 -

01419103 55091 ZO- Education/Trainina - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Min. training allotment for board members 
01419103 55171 ZO- Legal/PubUc Notices 2,837 1,200 586 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 -

Expenses are estimated for ZBA case 
administration (majority of costs paid by 

01419103 55224 ZO-Posta11e 1,081 2,000 1,630 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - applicant) 
General Fvnenses Total 3 918 3400 2 217 3400 3400 - 0.0% 3.400 -

Page 13 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %· Default Increase/-

Oro Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Zoning Total 4,635 4,376 2,567 4,262 4,271 (105) •2.4% 4,262 (91 A 

Historic District Com, nlsslon 
01419104 51200 HD- Sal/Wai:ies PT 210 740 243 400 400 (340) -45.9% 400 - Recording secretaries @ $19.44 per hour 

Salaries Total 210 740 243 400 400 (340) -45.9% 400 -
01419104 52200 HD-FICA 13 46 15 25 25 (21 1 -45.9% 25 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419104 52210 HD- Medicare 3 11 4 6 6 (5) -45.9% 6 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 16 57 19 31 31 (26) -45.2% 31 -
01419104 55050 HD-Conf Rooms/Meals - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 -

Min. amt for dues associated with various 
01419104 55088 HD-Dues - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 - organizations work with HDCs 
01419104 55091 HD- Education/Training - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - min. training allotment for board members 

CLG (Certified Local Government) Grant 
match. We intend to apply for a CLG but 

01419104 55138 HD- Grant Matching - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - will utilize in-kind match. 
01419104 55171 HD- Legal/Public Notices - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -

Expenses are estimated for HOC case 
01419104 55224 HD-Postage 82 350 49 350 350 - 0.0% 350 - administration 
01419104 55227 HD-Printin!'.i - 125 - 125 125 - 0.0% 125 - Printini:i needs for HDC as they arise 
01419104 55246 HD- Reference Material - 100 - 100 100 - 0.0% 100 -

General Exoenses Total 82 1,126 49 1,126 1,126 - 0.0% 1,126 -

Historic District Commission Total 308 1,923 311 1,557 1,557 (366] -19.0% 1,557 - A 

Herltaae Commission 
01419106 51200 HC- Sal/Wages PT m 740 1,081 1,100 1,144 404 54.5% 1,100 (44) Recording secretaries @ $19.44 per hour 

Salaries Total n1 740 1,081 1,100 1,144 404 54.5% 1,100 (44) 

01419106 52200 HC-FICA 48 46 67 68 71 25 54.5% 68 (31 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419106 52210 HC- Medicare 11 11 16 16 17 6 54.5% 16 (11 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Benefits Total 59 57 83 84 88 31 55.4% 84 (41 

01419106 55058 HC- Contract Services - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01419106 55088 HC-Dues - 50 - 50 50 - 0.0% 50 -
01419106 55091 HC- Education/Training - 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Min. training allotment for board members 
01419106 55138 HC- Grant Matching - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Expenses are estimated for Heritage 
01419106 55224 HC-Postage - 25 - 25 25 - 0.0% 25 - Commission case administration 
01419106 55227 HC- Printing - 35 - 35 35 - 0.0% 35 -

General Expenses Total - 312 - 312 312 - 0.0% 312 -

01419106 55347 Transfer Out 57 - -
57 - - - - - - - Year End Balance Transfer 

Heritage Commission Total 893 1,109 1,163 1,496 1,544 435 39.2% 1,496 (48) A 

Total Planning & Development 692,029 765,823 611,475 802,157 791,985 26,162 3.4% 791,473 (512) 

Police Department 

Page 14 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025S8 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Orn Object DescrlDtlon Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 
Police 

29 FT (Chief, Deputy, Sergeants, 
51110 Sal/Waaes FT 1,863,250 1,966,070 1.563,099 2,036,094 2,048.979 82,909 4.2% 2,040,789 (8,190) Lieutenant, Officers, Admin) 
51111 Sal/Waaes Shift Differential 13,831 13,520 12,868 17,300 17,300 3,780 28.0% 17,300 . Per Police CBA 
51121 Sal/Wages Incentive 12,094 3,000 900 2,500 2,500 (5001 -16.7% 2,500 . Per Police CBA 

2023124 retention bonus program - funded 
51123 Sal/Wages Bonus 13,913 - - - - - - - by ARPA 

Overtime for Personal Leave Replace and 
51130 Personal Replacement OT 1,590 18,825 12,984 19,749 19,749 924 4.9% 19,749 - Fitness day 

Cost to cover the replacement of officers 
51150 Vacation Replacement OT 51,945 48,837 31,619 50,043 50,043 1,206 2.5% 50,043 - on vacation 

1 Auxiliary Officer who teaches DARE 
spring/fall, part time officer who is the 

51200 Sal/Wages PT 48,357 95,022 81,123 96,633 97,190 2,168 2.3% 97,190 - 1prosecutor 
Encompasses multiple types of overtime 
such as SERT, training, added shift 
coverage, staying late for reports, etc. 
State has increased mandated training by 

51300 Sal/Wages OT 123,343 91,927 110,698 102,345 102,345 10,418 11.3% 102,345 - 8 hours to 24 hours for each officer. 
51400 Longevity Pav 1,800 1,200 - 1,250 1,250 50 4.2% 1,250 - For hires before 1/1/2010 only 

Cost to cover the replacement of officers 
51410 Sick Replacement OT 26,084 23,857 18,091 22,020 22,020 (1,837) -7.7% 22,020 . on sick leave 
51420 HolidavPav 70,671 66,924 12,666 68,544 68,409 1,485 2.2% 68,409 - Contract item 

Contract item - $1000 stipend for being an 
51425 Fireann Incentive - 3,000 500 2,500 2,500 (500) -16.7% 2,500 . instructor (4 instructors) 

Contract Item • Field Training Officer 
Incentive, 1 hr of OT per shift while training 
a new officer - 2 open positions to train at 

51430 Field Trainina Incentive OT - 7,997 - 5,125 5,125 (2,872) -35.9% 5,125 - approx. 12 week period 
Comfort Dog @ 2.5 hrs a week overtime, 
plus Case law@ 3 hrs a week OT for new 
Police canine, the rest is supported 100% 

51435 Canine OT 5,418 5,600 5,078 12,415 12,436 6,836 122.1% 12,436 - by a grant ($32,000) 
Per Police CBA - stipends for having a 

51450 Education Incentive 14,042 16,500 15,500 16,000 17,500 1,000 6.1% 17,500 - college degree 
To cover periods when officers are at 
training. State increased mandated 

51440 Trainina Coverage - OT 17,454 10,230 7,802 16,441 16,441 6,211 60.7% 16,441 - trainina to 24 hours for each officer. 
Salaries Total 2,263,793 2,372,509 1,872,926 2,468,959 2,483,787 111,278 4.7% 2,475,597 (8,190] 

52100 Health Insurance 441,532 520,619 436,763 654,636 630,778 110,159 21.2% 630,778 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
52110 Dental Insurance 35,078 40,584 33,183 46,569 45,078 4,494 11.1% 45,078 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
52120 Life Insurance 1,669 1,515 1,288 1,584 1,584 69 4.6% 1,584 - No increase 
52130 LTD Insurance 1,092 959 808 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No Increase 
52200 FICA 9,110 10,248 8,047 10,590 10,706 458 4.5% 10,642 (641 Based on wages: 6.2% 
52210 Medicare 31,737 34,401 26,653 35,800 36,015 1,614 4.7% 35,896 (119] Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
52300 Retirement Town 21,308 22,363 18,701 22,436 22,642 279 1.2% 22,511 (131) Jul-Dec 

Based on wages: 31.28% Jan-Jun: 30.95% 
52310 Retirement Police 656,554 660,681 516,283 684,786 688,281 27,600 4.2% 686,064 (2,217] Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 1,198,080 1,291,370 1,041,725 1,457,361 1,436,044 144,674 11.2% 1,433,513 {2,5311 

Page 15of 35 



Town of Exeter '----

2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
.t:u.t::>Derault 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025 SB Increase/- o/o· Default Increase/-

Ora Obfect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
Guardian Tracking Increase to $2,049 and 
PowerOMS document management 
software yearly account renews in August 
increased to $5,200 - is necessary to 

55001 Accreditation 6,483 6,483 6,482 7,249 7,249 766 11.8% 6,483 (766) continue towards CALEA accreditation. 
Covers empl. awards. retirements, dept 

55035 Chiefs Expenses 1,149 1,200 1,194 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - meetings, hosting meals 
Plaques, dare, crime prevention items 
includes NNO yearly, Halloween safety, 

55043 Community Relations 6,875 7,500 6,210 4,500 4,500 (3,000) -40.0% 7,500 3,000 Child badges, safety seats. 
cruiser laptop account to replace as 
needed includes installs and 

55045 Vehicle Computer Equipment 5,805 5,805 5,638 5,805 5,805 - 0.0% 5,805 - mounts/antenna 
Certified Computer Solutions contract 
expires 3/2025. $1,495 a month for three 
months. The new IT services will be 

55047 Computer Maintenance/Service Contract 17,940 21,318 15,808 4,485 4,485 (16,833) -79.0% 21,318 16,833 budgetted by Town IT. 
Professional Development training 
conferences for the Chief and Deputy Chiel 

55050 Conf/Room/Meals - 3.000 3,685 3,000 3.000 - 0.0% 3,000 - IACP convention, courses, etc. 
55057 Prosecutor Service 499 - - - - - - - Moved to PT Wage line in 2024 
55087 Orv Cleanina 10,800 10,800 10,800 12.400 12.400 1,600 14.8% 10,800 (1,600) Contractual item cost 

Yearly dues for SERT, NENA 911, 
NESPIN, Child Advocacy Center, and 
professional association memberships, 

55088 Dues 9,005 8,993 5,780 8,993 8,993 - 0.0% 8,993 - NNEPAC 
Training course costs/meal reimbursement 
for the entire department (including 
civilians). Increase in mandated training 

55091 Education/Training 19,942 17,000 15,092 20,000 20,000 3,000 17.6% 17,000 (3,000) hours per officer 
Any equipment not covered under another 
line item. Mountain bike parts, stop stick 
replacement, flashlights, furniture/boards, 
Taser cartridges, less lethal tools. Also 
includes TASER 5-year annual 
installments of $22, 129 and cruiser 

55106 EQuipment Purchase 43.220 44,537 29,570 
---

42,370 _ 4~.37_0 (2,167} -· 
-4.9% 44,537 2,167 cameras contract of $4,654 vearlv. 

Fuel for patrol vehicles using monthly 
average at the rate of $2.84 ESTIMATE 

55128 Fuel 35,620 43.420 35.486 39,908 39,908 (3,512) -8.1% 43,420 3,512 14,052 gallons a year 

Towing charges.patrol enforcement 
supplies radar replacements, speed signs, 
promotional testing materials, hiring costs 
includes polygraph, medical, and 

55133 General Expenses 5,131 7,500 2,804 7,500 7,500 - 0.0% 7,500 - psychological testing, Livescan fee, etc. 
Match needed for state grant on a portable 
radar sign and a stealth traffic 
counter/radar for neighborhood roads State 

55138 Grant Mat~lng__ - - - 2,168 2,168 2,168 - (2,168) paying $6,504 
Covers drug Investigation costs and 

55160 lnvestiaation 564 5,000 1890 5,000 5000 - 0.0% 5,000 - eauioment 

Page 16 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Descrlntlon Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease} Exnlanatlon 
AT&T FirstNet department cell and laptop 
modem plan- n-all mobile comms expense 
lines (Staff, Detectives, and Patrol) Into this 

55190 Mobile Communications 4,170 3,904 3,802 3,904 3,904 0 0.0% 3,904 . one slnale llne Item. 
This l!ne Item also includes firearms items 
and ammo for training and equipment for 
bean bag shotguns and simulated shooting 
drills protective gear, and includes the cost 
of both lethal and less lethal ammunition, 
gun accessories and cleaning, targets, 

55193 Munitions 15,446 15,700 14,407 15,700 15,700 . 0.0% 15,700 . range fees, etc. 
Maintenance contract of 6 machines 
including: copier printers and all service, 

55199 Office Eauioment Maintenance 5,724 5,725 3,906 5,725 5,725 . 0.0% 5,725 . parts, and labor 
55200 Office Suoolies 12,569 11,800 7,627 11,800 11,800 . 0.0% 11,800 . Department wide office suoolies 
55224 Postage 1,073 1,000 1,015 1,000 1,000 . 0.0% 1,000 . Postaae costs for mailings 

Central Square IMC (Tritech) $19,912, 
DTS scheduling software $4,640, and 

55270 Software Agreement 21,208 27,314 25,664 26,002 26,002 (1,312) -4.8% 27,314 1,312 FronUine FTO manaaement $1,450. 
1u,st for uniforms and uniform related 
equipment for 40 employees - includes 
bullet proof vest replacements @ 4 per 
year and cost Increase to $834 each, 
addition of outer carriers at $344 each 
(plus replacement of vests due to attrition) 
and contractual clothing allowance fer staff 

55314 Uniforms 17,024 16,200 12,191 18,730 18,730 2,530 15.6% 16,200 (2,530) division of $400 eaJvear. 
55319 Vehicle Maintenance 22,008 21,000 12,570 21,000 21,000 . 0.0% 21,000 . Covers reoair costs for 19 vehicles 

Dog food, vet bills, equipment - this is 
55390 Comfort Dea Expenses 8,658 2,000 4,003 2,000 2,000 . 0.0% 2,000 . OFFSET TO $0 with UFO fundraisina UFO 

Contract with SPCA ($750), unforseen 
55321 Veterinarian Service 75 750 120 750 750 . 0.0% 750 . animal vet charaes, rabies testing 

ACO equipment, splitting the cost of online 
dog Licensing Lookup software managed 

55104 Veterinarian Equipment 300 300 300 300 300 . 0.0% 300 - by Town Clerk 
General E,cpenses Total 271,289 288,249 226,045 271,489 271,489 (16,760: -5.8% 288,249 16,760 

Total Police Department 3,733,162 3,952,128 3,140,695 4,197,809 4,191,320 239,192 6.1% 4,197,359 6,039 A 

Fire Department 
51110 Sal/Wages FT 2,112,614 2,218,998 1,855,157 2,255,765 2,262,012 43,014 1.9% 2,253,756 18,256'. 33FT 
51121 Sal/Waaeslncentive 16,550 18,585 - 19,170 19,270 685 3.7% 19,270 . Negotiated in CBA 

2023124 retention bonus program - funded 
51123 Sal/Waaes Bonus 38,000 - - - - - - - bvARPA 
51150 Vacation Reolacement OT 18,407 11,669 13,783 19,038 19,038 7,369 63.2% 19,038 - Overtime for Vacation Leave Reolacement 

1 PT: Emergency Management Director -
51200 Sal/Wages PT - 9,939 7,176 15,132 15,206 5,267 53.0% 14,982 (224) 24 hrs. Monthly - 8 months in FY24 

Overtime for emergency recall and other 
51300 Sal/Waaes can Back OT 81,189 93,876 60,822 84,244 84,244 (9,632} -10.3% 84,244 - off-dutv details 
51130 Personal Replacement OT 12,572 8,569 7,972 13,919 13,919 5,350 62.4% 13,919 - Overtime for Personal Leave Reolacement 
51400 Lonaevitv Pav 1,850 1,950 - 1,950 1,950 - 0.0% 1,950 - For emolovees hired prior to 1/1/2006 
51410 Sick Reolacement OT 28.166 15 291 13018 24943 24943 9652 63.1% 24,943 - Overtime for Sick Reolacement 

Page 17 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version '114 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025S8 Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025'BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default lncreaseJ-

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Ex1>lanatlon 
51420 Holiday Pav 109,908 113,074 5,250 115,367 114,846 1,772 1.6% 114,846 - Holiday pay (12 holidays @ 12hrs) 
51600 Sal/Wages On Call 56 2,500 56 500 500 (2,000] -80.0% 500 - PT On-call salaries 

Salaries Total 2,419,312 2.494.451 1,963,235 2,550,028 2,555,928 61,477 2.5% 2,547,448 (8.480] 

52100 Health Insurance 532,500 579,394 452,728 673,453 613,439 34,045 5.9% 613,439 - 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
52110 Dental Insurance 41,428 43,957 36,064 49,515 46,532 2,575 5.9% 46,532 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
52120 Life Insurance 3,440 3,029 2,576 3,120 3,120 91 3.0% 3,120 - No Increase 
52130 LTD Insurance 1,065 959 803 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No increase 
52200 FICA 3,079 4,301 3,322 4,678 4,789 488 11.3% 4,717 (721 Based on wages: 6.2% 
52210 Medicare 33,531 36,170 27,874 36,975 37,061 892 2.5% 36,938 (1231 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
52300 Retirement Town 7,061 7,704 6.475 7,855 8,073 369 4.8% 7,953 (120) Jul-Dec 

Based on wages: 30.35% Jan.Jun; 29.15% 
52320 Retirement Fire 730,884 736,009 589,356 735,405 735,758 (251) 0.0% 733,626 (2,132) Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 1,352,988 1,411,523 1,119,199 1,511,961 1,449,732 38,209 2.7% 1,447,285 (2,447) 

Breathing apparatus testing and repairs & 
55019 Breathinc:i Apparatus 5,922 5,450 5,236 5,615 5,615 165 3.0% 5,450 (165) air compressor certification and repairs 
55035 Chiefs Exoenses 793 750 624 750 750 - 0.0% 750 - expenses for meetings, dinners 
55038 Cistern Maintenance 899 900 - - - (900) -100.0% 900 900 Cistern & dry hydrant maintenance 

Emergency Operations Center supplies 
during drills, exercise and incidents, 
Including food, office supplies, & training 

55041 Command Supplies 3,415 5,000 2,313 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - material 
2 way radio (mobile and portable); RAVE 
Mobile Safety- Emergency Community 

55042 Communications EQuipment 10,959 11,154 4,007 11,512 11,512 358 3.2% 11,154 (358) Notification (Reverse 911) 
Annual cost for Social Media Consultant 

55043 Community Relations 4,992 5,000 3,744 1,000 1,000 (4,000) -80.0% 5,000 4,000 and Community Relations Specialist. 
Postage for General FD, Fire Prevention, 

55224 Postane 86 250 92 200 200 (50) -20.0% 250 50 new candidate hiring, etc. 
50% of annual contracted Computer & IT 
support for the Public Safety Complex. 
Shared cost with Police Department. 3 

55058 Contract Services 17,190 21,318 18,078 4,298 4,298 (17,020) -79.8% 21,318 17,020 months In 2025. 
Ory cleaning of chief officer uniforms & 
Class "A" dress uniforms. Discontinuing 

55087 Dry Cleaning 226 250 182 - - (250) -100.0o/o 250 250 this line. 
Annual Association Dues with multiple 

55088 Dues 7,975 9,227 8,928 9,227 9,227 - 0.0% 9,227 - organizations 
Tuition for college classes, fire 

55091 Education/Training 8,867 16,913 16,042 17,650 17,650 737 4.4% 16,913 (737) certifications and education supplies. 
Necessary firefighting equipment 

55106 General EQuipment Purchase 45,027 45,000 19,282 45,000 45,000 - 0.0% 45,000 - !purchases & replacement 
NFPA annual membership & Fire 

55123 Fire Prevention Supplies 5,193 6,722 4,529 6,822 6,822 100 1.5% 6,722 (100) Prevention & Investigation Supplies 
Gas and diesel fuel for all fire department 
vehicles, Plus 800 gallon tank at fire 

55128 Fuel 18,638 21,214 15,241 19,950 19,950 (1,264) -6.0% 21,214 1,264 station 
55132 General EQuipment Repair 3,678 3,450 3,471 4,100 4,100 650 18.8% 3,450 (650) Small tool & equipment repair 

Background investigations, Water, 
55133 General Exoenses 3,642 3,620 1993 3,600 3.600 (20) -0.6% 3620 20 Emergencv scene rehab. supplies, etc. 

Page 18 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet fDecrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Hazardous materials monitoring 

55144 Hazmat Supplies 1,695 2,686 1,672 2,686 2,686 - 0.0% 2,686 - equipment, clean up and control supplies. 
55149 Hose Replacement 5,660 5,812 2,670 5,800 5,800 (12 -0.2% 5,812 12 Fire hose replacement and repair. 

Hydrant Maintenance Fee to Water Dept. 
55151 Hydrant Maintenance Fee 20,280 - - - - - - - (moved to GG) 

Cell phone plan and data usage for staff 
55190 Mobile Communications 4,918 6,095 5,141 6,095 6,095 - 0.0% 6,095 - cars, engines, and fire prevention 
55199 Office Equipment Maintenance 2,738 2,660 1,726 2,450 2,450 (210) -7.9% 2,660 210 Lease Aareements/Service Contacts CcopiE 
55200 Office Supplies 2,424 2,500 1,255 2,300 2,300 (200) -8.0% 2,500 200 Office SUPPiies for entire Fire Department ( 
55214 Phvsicals 1,526 1,700 1,022 1,700 1,700 - 0.0% 1,700 - Pre-employment physicals for new hires 

Examples include - New England Chiefs, 
FDIC conference, IAFC - FRI International, 

55050 Conf/Room/Meals 1,179 4,500 2,067 4,000 4,000 (500) -11.1% 4,500 500 IMT Annual Conference. 
I Turnout gear replacement (4 sets tn -~oJ, 
inspection & repairs. 1-YEAR 

55230 Protective Eauipment 42,362 54,082 43,194 21,000 21,000 (33,082) -61.2% 54,082 33,082 REDUCTION 
Malnt. & programming FD Portable & 
Mobile Radios, Annual service contract 

55237 Radio Repairs/Maintenance 4,757 5,740 3,649 5.700 5,700 (40) -0.7% 5,740 40 with 2-Way Communications 

All annual software agreements for IMC 
data collection & dispatching, GeoTeamz 
mobile data terminals, eDispatch firefighter 
notification, and Knox Box Cloud Service + 

55270 Software Agreement 10,489 11,149 10,363 13,959 13,959 2,810 25.2% 11,149 (2 810) $2,200 GeoTeamz price increase for 2025 
55282 Building Supplies 3,156 3,500 2,276 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - Laundry & misc bldg. cleaning supplies 

Travel reimbursement for use of personal 
vehicle to attend meetings, briefings and 

55308 Travel Reimbursement 1,195 78 1,195 1,195 - 0.0% 1,195 - training. 
Uniforms for 32 FT employees, 2 Call 

55314 Uniforms 26,440 26,661 15,282 26,661 26,661 - 0.0% 26,661 - members 
Vehicle Maintenance, Inspections, Tires, 
Annual Pump and Aerial Testing and 
Certifications, Plymo-Vent Exhaust 

55319 Vehicle Maintenance 41,604 42,255 23,803 43,500 43,500 1,245 2.9% 42,255 (1,245) Capture System 
Agreement with SAU16 to provide shelter 

55264 Shelter Equipment - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - food/supplies 

------ --- - -- ----
Upgrades to EOC Audio-Visual equipment, 
and on scene materials (replacement 

55095 Ememencv Manaaement Equioment 1,950 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - cones, barricades, signage, barriers) 
55119 FEMA Relmb -Force Labor - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - FEMA line if needed 
55118 FEMA Reimb - Force Eauip - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - FEMA line if needed 

General Expenses Total 308,678 329,256 217,959 277,773 277,773 (51,483) -15.6% 329,256 51,483 

$1 place holder if grant funds become 
57006 Capital Outlay - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - available 

Capital Outlay Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
Total Fire Department 4,080,978 4,235,231 3,300,393 4,339,763 4,283,434 48,203 1.1% 4,323,990 40,556 A 

Public Safe lY Shared Services 

Page 19 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
"'u"':, Default 

2025S8 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Explanation 
Dlsnatch 

5 FT Staff in General Fund budget. 1 FT In 
01429905 51110 PDD- Sal/Wages FT 193,292 233,513 162,026 242,059 242,456 8,943 3.8% 242,456 - EMS Fund budget 
01429905 51111 PDD- Sal/Wages Shift Differential 3,704 4,160 3,053 3,755 3,755 (405) -9.7% 3,755 - Per Police CBA 
01429905 51121 PDD- Sal/Wages Incentive Reg 4,059 500 1,414 500 500 0.0% 500 - Per Police CBA 

2023f24 retention bonus program - funded 
01429905 51123 PDD- Sal/Wages Retention Bonus 2,087 - - - - - - - by ARPA 
01429905 51130 PDD- Personal Replacement OT 4,505 4,636 4,259 4,259 (246) -5.5% 4,259 - Overtime for Personal Leave Replacement 
01429905 51150 PDD- Vacation Replacement OT 13,820 7,544 10,276 10,561 10,561 3,017 40.0% 10,561 - Overtime for Vacation Leave Replacement 

Reduced budget for one at several shifts a 
01429905 51200 PDD- Sal/Wages PT 543 2,500 - 2,500 2,596 96 3.8% 2,596 - month 

Covers cost in emergencies and regular 
01429905 51300 POD-Sal/Wages OT 17,063 4,836 16,333 10,008 10008 5,172 106.9% 10,008 - coverage added $3,000 
01429905 51410 POD-Sick Replacement OT 1,794 1,739 4,593 2,218 2,218 479 27.5% 2,218 - Covers OT for Dispatchers out sick 
01429905 51420 POD-Holiday Pay 10,188 10,791 3,358 11,267 11,267 476 4.4% 11,267 - contract item 
01429905 51430 POD-Sal/Wages FTO Incentive - 3,390 1,499 3,489 3,489 99 2.9% 3,489 - contract item 
01429905 51450 POD-Education Incentive 2,208 2,000 2,000 3,250 3,250 1,250 62.5% 3,250 - contract Item 

Salaries Total 248,760 275,478 209,187 293,866 294,359 18,881 6.9% 294,359 -

01429905 52100 POD-Health Insurance 66,359 105,239 63,248 109,246 114,156 8,917 8.5% 114,156 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01429905 52110 POD-Dental Insurance 4,908 7,635 4,854 7,459 7,459 (176) -2.3% 7,459 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01429905 52120 POD-Life Insurance 231 230 160 240 240 10 4.3% 240 - No increase 
01429905 52200 POD-FICA 15,460 17,080 13,044 18,220 18,250 1,171 6.9% 18,250 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01429905 52210 POD-Medicare 3,609 3,994 3,051 4,261 4,268 274 6.9% 4,268 - Based on wa~_!: __ 1_'.'i~ 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01429905 52300 POD-Retirement Town 33,645 36,934 28,227 38,251 38,230 1,296 3.5% 38,230 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 124,213 171,112 112,585 177,677 182,603 11,491 6.7% 182,603 -

2-way comms maintenance/service 
contracts, Acom VS logger. Contracts paid 
at the end of the year. Dispatch 4G 

01429905 55105 POD-Equipment Maintenance 16,479 25,325 21,860 25,325 25,325 - 0.0% 25,325 - failovers 
Uncovered replacement/repair costs for 
dispatch items and radio equipment and 

01429905 55108 POD-Equipment Repair 1,815 5,800 - 5,800 5,800 - 0.0% 5,800 - portable radios, cross agency 
Dispatch center phone repairs, Firstnet 
emergency phone service, updates, 

01429905 55256 POD-Phone Repairs/Service 495 550 451 550 550 - 0.0% 550 - sonicwall fee. 
General ExDenses Total 18,789 31,675 22,311 31,675 31,675 - 0.0% 31,675 -

Dispatch Total 391,762 478,265 344,083 503,218 508,637 30,372 6.4% 508,637 - A 

HeaHh 
01441105 51110 FH- Sal/Wages FT 56,822 72,509 60,275 76,178 78,356 5,847 8.1% 77,156 (1,200) 1 FT: Health Officer 

Salaries Total 56,822 72,509 60,275 76,178 78,356 5,847 8.1% 77,156 (1,200) 

01441105 52100 FH- Health Insurance 19,639 - - - - - - -
01441105 52110 FH- Dental Insurance 1,425 569 - 597 597 28 4.9% 597 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01441105 52120 FH- Life Insurance 90 92 80 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01441105 52200 FH-FICA 3,325 4,496 3,737 4,723 4,858 363 8.1% 4,784 (741 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01441105 52210 FH- Medicare 778 1,051 874 1,105 1,136 85 8.1% 1,119 (171 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01441105 52300 FH-Town Retirement 7672 9810 8155 10,002 10280 470 4.8% 10,127 (153\ Jul-Dec 

Page 20 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 DefauH 

2025 SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Descrlntion Actual Budaet October Budaet Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budaet lDecreasel ExnlanatJon 
Benefits Total 32,927 16,018 12,846 16,523 16.967 949 5.9% 16,723 (2441 

01441105 55293 FH- Supplies 291 600 313 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Health Inspection and office supplies 
01441105 55224 FH- Postage 31 50 56 96 96 46 92.0% 50 (461 Health Deot. ma!linas 
01441105 55055 FH- Consultina - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Phone plan & mobile data terminal usage 
01441105 55190 FH- Mobile Communications 996 996 581 996 996 - 0.0% 996 - for Health Officer 

Mosquito control maintenance contract 
01441105 55191 FH- Mosauito Control 37,000 34,500 27,600 34,500 34,500 - 0.0% 34,500 - costs 

Relevant FoodCode Pro forms and 
01441105 55270 FH- Software Agreement 2,600 2,640 2,640 2,640 2,640 - 0.0% 2,640 - reportina 
01441105 55308 FH- Travel Reimbursement 117 200 220 480 480 280 140.0% 200 (2801 Mileage reimbursement for Health Officer 

Training, Meeting and Seminars for Health 
01441105 55050 FH- Conf/Room/Meals 874 795 270 1,225 1,225 430 54.1% 795 (430) Officer 
01441105 55088 FH-Dues 90 90 90 90 90 - 0.0% 90 - Health Deot. dues & memberships 

Approved college classes for the new 
01441105 55091 FH- EducationfTrainin!l - 1,500 1,545 6,941 6,941 5,441 362.7% 1,500 (5,4411 Health Officer 

General Exoenses Total 42,000 41,372 33,316 47,569 47,569 6,197 15.0% 41,372 (6,1971 

Health Total 131,750 129,899 106,438 140,270 142,892 12,993 10.0% 135,251 (7,641} A 

Total Public Safetv Shared Services 523,511 608,164 450,520 643,488 651,529 43,365 7.1% 643,888 (7,6411 

Public Works • General Fund 

AdmlnlSlfll' on& 
. 

7 FT: Director, Town Eng, Eng Tech, 
Office Mgr, Office Clerk, Asst Engineer, 
GIS Coord. CurrenUy there are 2 open 

01431101 51110 PWA-Sal/Waaes FT 285,265 632,441 361,045 671,940 689,865 57,424 9.1% 683,839 (6,026) positions. 
1- PT-recording secretary for River 

01431101 51200 PWA- Sal/Waaes PT 9,377 222 300 300 300 78 35.1% 300 - Committee@ $19.44/hr 
01431101 51300 PWA- Sal/Waaes OT 635 700 577 700 700 - 0.0% 700 -

Salaries Total 295,278 633,363 361,922 672,940 690,865 57,502 9.1% 684,839 (6,026: 

01431101 52100 PWA- Health Insurance 51,564 136,300 43,354 140,320 138,300 2,000 1.5% 138,300 - 18.7% Increase In the oremium rate 
01431101 52110 PWA- Dental Insurance 3,971 11,613 4,634 10,702 10,702 (911: -7.8% 10,702 - 5.0% Increase In the oremium rate 
01431101 52120 PWA- Life Insurance 291 551 288 624 624 73 13.2% 624 - No increase 
01431101 52130 PWA- LTD Insurance 94 959 752 960 960 1 0.1% 960 - No increase 
01431101 52200 PWA-FICA 17,578 39,269 21,887 41,722 42,834 3,565 9:1% 42,460 (374: Based on waaes: 6.2%-~ 

01431101 52210 PWA- Medicare 4,111 9,184 5,119 9,758 10,018 834 9.1% 9,930 (87: Based on waaes: 1.45% 
Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 

01431101 52300 PWA- Retirement Town 38,412 85,664 48,251 88,327 90,598 4,934 5.8% 89,830 (7681 Jul-Dec 
Benefits Total 116,021 283,539 124,284 292,413 294,036 10,497 3.7% 292,806 (1,2301 

Contract w/Access; required (per USDOT) 
random testing for all COL holders & 

01431101 55003 PWA• Drug/Alcohol Testing n9 1,200 480 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - screenina new hires 
National or regional cont 60% Dir, Town 
Eng; 100% Maint Supt, Hwy Supt@ 

01431101 55050 PWA- Conf/Room/Meals 2,435 3,000 1,055 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3.000 - $1,200 ea. 
01431101 55058 PWA- Contracted Services 810 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - MovedtoCIP 

Page 21 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 

Ora ObJect Description 

01431101 55088 PWA- Dues 

01431101 55091 PWA- Education/Training 
01431101 55128 PWA- Fuel 

01431101 55133 PWA- General Exoenses 
01431101 55158 PWA- Insurance Deductible 

01431101 55181 PWA- Master Fuel Account 

01431101 55190 PWA- Mobile Communications 

01431101 55200 PWA- Office Supplies 
01431101 55224 PWA- Postage 
01431101 55237 PWA- Radio Repairs 

01431101 55238 PWA• Radio Replacement 

2023 
Actual 

748 

368 

878 
4,966 

(11,367) 

1,038 

7,440 
306 

2024 
Budget 

700 

2,000 
1.500 

1,200 

1,200 

10,000 
500 
600 

2024 
Actual: 
October 

1,124 

1,345 
2,168 

797 

(4,965) 

1,164 

6,252 
269 

2025BRC 
Budget 

1,270 

2,000 
1,500 

1,000 

1,300 

10,000 
550 
300 

2025SB 
Budnet 

1,270 

2,000 
1,500 

1,000 

1,300 

10,000 
550 
300 

2025 SB 2025SB 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 

2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 
Increase/- %-
(Decrease) Difference 

570 81.4% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

(200) -16.7% 
0.0% 

0.0% 

100 8.3% 

2025 
Default 
Budnet 

700 

2,000 
1,500 

1,200 

1,200 

.1!:U.i!:5 Default 
Budget vs. 
2025SB 
Budget$ 
lncrease/-

Verslon#4 

(Decreasel Explanation 

Dues: APWA $995, NHPWA $100, Mutual 
(570) Aid $25; Licenses: PE 2@150/2 yr 

Education and training for staff (NHMA, 
- NHDES, NEPW Association) 
- Dir & Eng vehicles $2.84/gal 

Meal reimbursement during extended 
operations per Director's detennination 

200 increased from $8 to $12 
- Damage repairs on insurance claims 

Bulk fuel delivery charges less dept 
- allocations; for 109 vehicles 

60% Director, Town Engineer & Asst 
Engineer; 100% Highway, Mifi 

(100) I (Engineering) 
Gen office supplles $6500; Eng suppUes 
$3500: plotter paper & ink, field books, 
Town Standards, scanning plans; 60% of 

0.0% 10,000 - copier billing 
50 10.0% 500 (50} General day to day malllngs 

(300) -50.0% 600 300 4 Desk sets, 6 portables, 42 vehicle units 
Digital repeater to communicate with Fire & 

1,000 - 500 500 (500) -50.0% 1,000 500 Police 
01431101 55319 __ PWA- Vehicle Maintenance 
------+---- General Exnenses Total 

18 600 230 600 600 - 0.0% 600 - Dir & Eng vehicles 
-- - -- - --- -~8~,4=2-=--0 +---~23-.5~0-=3--+---9-=--,=92=-=o-+--...,2....,..3,-=22=3,-t--.....,2=3"""',22"'"3,,.-+------_,,,:2....,..B0=1i+--------,_1"""'.2"'"'%~--=2-=--3,----50=3-+-----=-29=-=o-+--~~------------1 

01431101 55998 PWA• Due from Water Fund 
01431101 55999 PWA- Due from Sewer Fund 

Due from Water/Sewer Funds Total 

Administration & EnglneerlnR Total 

Hlnhwavs and Streets 

01431202 51110 HWY-Sal/WagesFT 
01431202 51210 HWY- Sal/Walles Temp 
01431202 51121 HWY- Sal/Wages Incentive Reg 
01431202 51300 HWY- Sal/Walles OT 
01431202 51310 HWY-Sal/Waaes Stand-By 
01431202 51400 HWY- Lonaevity Pay 

Salaries Total 

01431202 52100 HWY- Health Insurance 
01431202 52110 HWY• Dental Insurance 
01431202 52120 HWY• Life Insurance 
01431202 52200 HWY· FICA 
01431202 52210 HWY· Medicare 

01431202 52300 HWY- Retirement Town 
Benefits Total 

(156,662] (183,333] (87,888) (193,006) (196,916) (13,583) 7.4% (195,464) 
(156,662] (183,333) (87,888) (193,006] (196,916) (13,583) 7.4% (195,464) 
(313,324' (366,665) (175,776) (386,012] (393,832) (27,167) 7.4% (390,928) 

106,395 573,740 320,350 602,564 

693,885 751,574 596,858 758,049 
284 

2,750 2,750 2,750 
22,482 20,000 16,847 20,000 

7,280 7,280 6,160 10,920 
6,850 7,050 7,150 

733,532 788,655 619,865 798,870 

177,378 180,623 159,084 234,598 
11,578 16,048 10,739 14,983 

657 597 497 624 
43,548 48,897 36,664 49,530 
10,185 11,435 8,575 11,584 

102,226 106,705 83,868 104,920 
345,572 364,305 299,427 416,239 

614,292 

761,348 

2,750 
20,000 
10,920 
7,150 

802,169 

234,598 
14,983 

624 
49,734 
11,631 

105,144 
416,714 

40,552 

9,774 

3,640 
100 

13,514 

53,975 
(1,065) 

27 
838 
196 

{1,561) 
52,409 

7.1% 610,220 

1.3% 759,551 
0.0% 
0.0% 2,750 
0.0% 20,000 

50.0% 10,920 
1.4% 7,150 
1.7% 800,372 

29.9% 234,598 
-6.6% 14,983 
4.5% 624 
1.7% 49,623 
1.7% 11,605 

-1.5% 104,915 
14.4% 416,348 

1,451 20% Water Fund offset 
1,451 20% Sewer Fund offset 
2,904 

(4,072) A 

12 FT - Highway Supt., General Foreman, 
2 Foreman, 5 HEO, 1 Truck Driver, 2 

(1,797) Laborers 
- Intern, Summer/Fall laborer 
- Per SEIU CBA 
- Emergency ops, callouts, flood watch, votln 
- After hours on-call status, $210/wk 
- 6 FT per union contract 

(1,797) 

- 18.7% increase In the premium rate 
- 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
• No increase 

(111) Based on wages: 6.2% 
(26) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
(229) Jul-Dec 
(366) 

Page22of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %· Default Increase/-

Ora ObJect Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) Exnlanatlon 
1x reduction of $SK in 2024 - Grinding & 
screening to recycle asphalt and concrete 
Into reusable produd. Screening compost 

01431202 55013 HWY- Asphalt Reclamation - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - and sand 
Maintenance and repair of 7 Town-owned 

01431202 55020 HWY- Bridge Repairs 5,000 5,500 - 5,500 5,500 - 0.0% 5,500 - bridaes 
1 x reduction of $1 K in 2024 - Minor repairs, 
replace & clearing culverts (pipes & 

01431202 55066 HWY- Culvert Reoairs/Reolacement - 3,000 - 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - headers) 
Dam & abutment concrete & mechanical 
repairs at Pickpocket, Colcord, $loans 

01431202 55071 HWY- Dam Maintenance 570 2,500 - 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - Brook 
Annual NHDES fees (due December) 

01431202 55072 HWY - Dam Registration 1,900 400 - 400 400 - 0.0% 400 - Sloans Brook 
Classes, licensing (CDL, UNH Tech 

01431202 55091 HWY- Education/Trainin!l 2,210 1,500 1,643 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - Transfer classes) 
Uniformed officer in high traffic, 

01431202 55096 HWY- Emergency Traffic Control 146 500 - 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - emergencies 
Rental of equipment not owned by Town: 

01431202 55107 HWY- E<1ulpment Rentals 4,361 4,500 706 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - bulldozer, excavator, grader, screener 
Fuel for highway dept vehicles & 
equipment; contract price projected to be 

01431202 55128 HWY-Fuel 27,898 25,000 26,317 25,500 25,500 500 2.0% 25,000 (500) unleaded $2.84/gal & diesel $3.16/gal 
RepVrepair hand tools: compader, hand-

01431202 55134 HWY- General Hand Tools 4,086 4,000 3,511 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - saw, chainsaws, small power tools 
01431202 55190 HWY- Mobile Communications - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - moved to phone reimbursement 

Cell Phone stipend for Supt + 3 Foremen 
01431202 55212 HWY- Phone Reimbursement 2,410 2,400 1,191 2,800 2,800 400 16.7% 2,400 (400) ($40/mo), On-Call Cell Phone ($72/mo) 

Hardhats, vests, eye protection, Technu, 
01431202 55257 HWY- Safety E<1uipment 7.471 5,000 4,350 6,000 6,000 1,000 20.0% 5,000 (1,000] steel-toed boot repl $185/vr oer emolovee 

Sign replacement for retro reflectivity, 
01431202 55267 HWY-Si!lns 6,908 8,000 7,603 8,000 8,000 - 0.0% 8,000 - damages. 
01431202 55285 HWY- Storm Drain Reoair 2,802 6,000 1,853 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - Repair drain castings. 1,305 catch basins 

Fog lines, center lines, parking spaces 
(butyl rubber by contrador); crosswalks 2x 

01431202 55286 HWY- Street Marking 33,744 35,000 33,714 35,000 35,000 - 0.0% 35,000 - lvr 
Patching town roads & shoulder repair 
materials: includes asphalt, concrete, 

01431202 55287 HWY- Street Reoairs/Maint 14,767 18,000 9,508 18,000 18,000 - 0.0% 18,000 - gravel 
IAII trees In Town ROW & parks Incl 
pruning, fertilizing & removal w/ licensed 
arborist; Increasing demands for tree 
removal & pruning; additional street trees 
at Lincoln & presence of Emerald Ash 
Borer (EAB) - $35K added in 2024 to 

01431202 55310 HWY-Tree Maintenance 10,748 55,535 12,362 25,000 25,000 (30,535) -55.0% 55,535 30,535 establish Tree Committee budget. 
12 employees (Laundering, repair and 

01431202 55314 HWY- Uniforms 9,495 7,400 4,793 7,400 7,400 . 0.0% 7,400 - reolacemenO 

01431202 55319 HWY- Vehicle Maintenance 55,233 50,000 61,340 60,000 60,000 10,000 20.0% 50,000 (10,000l Maintenance of all dept vehicles and equip 
Along medians & curbing; contrad 
w/licensed herbicide applicator, $1K switch 

01431202 55337 HWY- Weed Control 8000 9,000 9000 9,000 9000 - 0.0% 9000 - from Rounduo to orCHtmeraent. 

Page23of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet fDecrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanation 
General Expenses Total 197,749 248,236 177,891 229,601 229,601 (18,635] -7.5% 248,236 18,635 

01431202 55251 HWY-Road Pavina/Maintenance 645,964 550,000 503,571 700,000 625,000 75,000 13.6% 550,000 (75,000) Incl crack sealing, reconstruction, etc. 
1x reduction of $SK in 2024 will be held for 
2025 as well. Replace culverts and repair 

01431202 55067 HWY- Culvert Replacement - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - headers & outlets in Town roads. 
Sidewalks and curbing, minor repair & 

01431202 55266 HWY- Sidewalks/Curbing 2,526 15,000 789 10,000 10,000 (5,000) -33.3% 15,000 5,000 replacements 
Annual clean 50% catch basins, material 

01431202 55284 HWY- Storm Drain Cleaning 26,715 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 - 0.0% 30,000 - testing, MS4 permit compliance 
01431202 57006 HWY- Capital Outlav-EQuipment - - - - - -

Capital Outlay Total 675,205 600,000 504,360 745,000 670,000 70,000 11.7% 600,000 (70,000) 

Hluhwavs & Streets Total 1,952,058 2,001,196 1,601,543 2,189,710 2,118,484 117,288 5.9% 2,084,956 (53,528) A 

!il:n,-u,D .. ,..,,.,,., 

01431903 51300 PS- Sal/Wages - OT Snow 59,778 70,000 42,696 70,000 70,000 - 0.0% 70,000 - Includes Mechanic 
01431903 51200 PS- Salaries/Waaes PT 65 1,733 1,890 1,815 1,815 82 4.7% 1,815 - Snow cleanup 

01431903 51350 PS- Sal/Wages - FEMA Storm Related 01 - 1 - - - (1) -100.0% - Expenses related to declared emergencies 
Salaries Total 59,843 71,734 44,586 71,815 71,815 81 0.1% 71,815 -

01431903 52200 PS-FICA 3,710 4,448 2,760 4,453 4,453 5 0.1% 4,453 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01431903 52210 PS- Medicare 868 1,040 645 1,041 1,041 1 0.1% 1,041 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01431903 52300 PS- Retirement Town 9,184 9,471 5,768 9,198 9,198 (273) -2.9% 9,198 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 13,761 14,959 9,173 14,692 14,692 (267) -1.8% 14,692 -

01431903 55026 PS- Calcium Chloride - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Salt additive used during harsh temperatun 
INCLUDE IN REQUEST FOR SNOW/ICE 
CAP. RES. IN 2025- Hire contractors w/10 
wheelers to remove snow for safety 

01431903 55061 PS- Contracted Snow Removal - 25,000 - 1 1 (24,999) -100.0% 25,000 24,999 downtown, Lincoln St, Portsmouth Ave. 
01431903 55118 PS- FEMA Reimb Force EQuip - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Expenses declared winter emergencies 
01431903 55119 PS- FEMA Relmb Force Labor - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Expenses declared winter emergencies 

Fuel for snow removal vehicles; contract 
price projected to be unleaded $2.84/gal & 

01431903 55128 PS- Fuel 15,874 17,000 11,580 17,000 17,000 - 0.0% 17,000 - diesel $3.16/gal 
Private property damage caused by snow 

01431903 55216 PS- Plow Damages 4,644 3,500 359 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - !plows 
01431903 55217 PS- Plow/Spreader Repair - - - Moved to vehicle maintenance 

Hired contractors to supplement Town staff 
01431903 55218 PS- Plowina 152,021 80,000 106,990 80,000 80,000 - 0.0% 80,000 - to plow, salt & sand 

Deicer for Town roads, sidewalks, parking 
01431903 55258 PS-Salt 105,304 80,000 66,928 80,000 80,000 - 0.0% 80,000 - lots 

Purchase sand during winter months to 
spread along the town roads, sidewalks & 

01431903 55259 PS-Sand 309 2,000 876 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - parking lots 
Repair snow plows and snow removal 

01431903 55319 PS- Vehicle Maintenance 25,915 20,500 11,967 20,500 20,500 - 0.0% 20,500 - equipment 
General ExPenses Total 304,066 228,003 198,700 203,004 203,004 (24,999) -11.0% 228,003 24,999 

Snow Removal Total 377,671 314,696 252459 289,511 289,511 (25185) -8.0% 314,510 24999 A 

Page24 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025Default 

20255B 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025 SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Solid """"'' OlsDOARI 
1 PT@ 16 hrs/wk including transfer station 
winter schedule and weekend trash 

01432304 51200 SW- Sal/WaQes PT 21,202 23,962 19,622 25,175 24,951 989 4.1% 24,554 (397) removal 
OT for Highway employees assigned to 

01432304 51300 SW- Sal/WaQes OT 1,223 4,000 316 4,000 5,785 1,785 44.6% 4,000 (1,785) Transfer Station 
Salaries Total 22,425 27,962 19,938 29,175 30,736 2,774 9.9% 28,554 (2,182) 

01432304 52200 SW-FICA 1,390 1,734 1,236 1,809 1,906 172 9.9% 1,770 (135) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01432304 52210 SW- Medicare 325 405 289 423 446 40 9.9% 414 (32) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01432304 52300 SW-Retirement 76 541 - 526 526 (15) -2.8% 526 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 1,792 2,680 1,525 2,758 2,878 198 7.4% 2,710 (168) 

Includes vendor delivery to store; offset by 
revenue; projected production cost 

01432304 55018 SW- Blue Baas 40,133 78,000 92,473 120,000 120,000 42,000 53.8% 78,000 (42,000) Increase and spending trend adjustment 
01432304 55023 SW- Bulkv Waste Sticker 555 - -

Construction debris container at Transfer 
01432304 55054 SW- Construction Debris 10,076 14,500 8,877 16,000 16,000 1,500 10.3% 14,500 (1,500) Station (WM contract) 

5-year contract extension with WM runs 
June 2022 - May 2027, reflects 6.5% 
annual rates increase and anticipated fuel 
surcharges; recycled materials value highly 

01432304 55082 SW- Disposal/Recvclina Contract 1,185,719 1,198,500 867,213 1,310,680 1,310,680 112,180 9.4% 1,198,500 (112,180) variable (WM contract) 

1x reduction of $SK in 2024 will be held for 
2025 as well. Brush grinding & removal by 
contractor 2 to 3x per yr as space needs 

01432304 55086 SW- Brush Grinding 10,000 15,000 - 15,000 15,000 - 0.0% 15,000 - require (contracted Dirt Doctor thru 2025) 
01432304 55091 SW- Education/Training 240 200 - 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - Solid waste training 
01432304 55092 SW- Electricity 1,608 2,000 1,061 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - Transfer station building 

Removal of electronic waste collected at 
01432304 55093 SW- Electronic Waste Expense 7,858 10,000 4,766 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - Transfer Station, offset by sticker revenue 
01432304 55127 SW- Freon Waste Expense 550 300 - -

Cost of annual Oct event; Exeter share 
$11,300 the rest offset by regional 

01432304 55150 SW- Household Haz Waste Removal 48,605 30,000 - 35,000 35,000 5,000 16.7% 30,000 (5,000) collection revenue & State grant 
- -- Gas and water quality testing, Including 

PFAS & 1,4-ctioxane at Cross Road landfill, 
(GZA = $32, 175, CEC = $10,750, EA = 

01432304 55163 SW- Landfill Monitorin11 50,047 52,706 22,729 51,500 51,500 (1,206) -2.3% 52,706 1,206 $9,781) 
01432304 55173 SW- Licenses 61 - -

Hauling charge to remove metals & white 
01432304 55186 SW- Metal Removal 1,075 1,500 681 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - goods 

Mowing, materials and supplies at the 
Transfer Station (Security cameras and 

01432304 55201 SW- Ooerations Maintenance 3,531 6,000 4,438 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - eauipment) 
65 gal carts unit price $75; offset by 

01432304 55244 SW- Recvcle Containers 25,985 26,000 26,289 26,000 26,000 - 0.0% 26,000 - revenue 
Stickers and garbage litter bags for Town 

01432304 55293 SW-SUPPiies 2,739 1 500 1983 2500 2500 1,000 66.7% 1 500 (1000) & Public Works Offices to sell 

Page 25of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S9 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Oblect Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budaet (Decrease} ExDlanatlon 
01432304 55300 SW-Tire Dispasal 228 2,000 320 1,000 1,000 (1,000) -50.0% 2,000 1,000 Disposal of Town tires 

Twice per year curbside collection- leaf 
01432304 55366 SW-Yard Waste 16,532 16,856 8,428 17,193 17,193 337 2.0% 16,856 (337) and yard waste (WM contract) 

Weekly collection at Transfer Station (Mr. 
01432304 55551 SW- Food Waste Compost Proaram 2,951 2,950 2,371 3,952 3,952 1,002 34.0% 2,950 (1,002) Fox) 

General Expenses Total 1,407,939 1,457,712 1,042,484 1,618,525 1,618,525 160,813 11.0% 1,457,712 (160,813) 

Solid Waste DISDOSal Total 1,432,155 1,488,354 1,063,948 1,650,458 1,652,139 163,785 11.0% 1,488,976 (163,163) A 

Street Llahts 
All street lights in Town rights-of-way 

01431605 55092 PW- Electricity- Street Lights 135,760 160,000 95,692 140,000 140,000 (20,000) -12.5% 160,000 20,000 (Reduce for end of f1Xed fee commitment) 
High St, Green St, Alum Dr, Holland Way, 
Continental Dr signals; controllers, loop 
detectors, bulbs, audibles & emergency 

01431605 55303 PW-Traffic Linht Maintenance 6,491 9,000 3,046 7,000 7,000 (2,000) -22.2% 9,000 2,000 vehicle pre-emption controllers 
General Expenses Total 142,251 169,000 98,738 147,000 147,000 (22,000) -13.0% 169,000 22,000 

Street Lights Total 142,251 169,000 98,738 147,000 147,000 (22,000) -13.0% 169,000 22,000 A 

Stormwater 
Pet waste bags (Town Clerk & Highway), 

01431118 55293 STW- Supplies 2,700 2,937 2,700 2,700 - 0.0% 2,700 - plotter supplies (ink, printheads, paper) 

Wet weather sample 134 outfalls/6 years -
22 outfalls/yr x $700/outfall = $15,400; 
outfall catchment investigations & 
remediation $10,700; quarterly SWPPP 
inspections $6k; AMP project TN changes 
$6k; MS4 annual rpt $6K; public outreach 

01431118 55058 STW- Contracted Services 51,317 57,100 5,364 57,100 57,100 - 0.0% 57,100 - $4K, staff training (IDDE, PTAP) $SK 
01431118 551S0 STW- Mobile Communications - 480 - 480 480 - 0.0% 480 - Tablet/mifl 12 months@$40/mo. 

01431118 55291 STW-Subscriptions - 4,080 - 4,080 4,080 - 0.0% 4,080 - GPS, SmartNet, PeopleForms subcriptions 
Replace 7 Catch basins @ $4k each (MS4 

01431118 55386 STW- Catch Basin Replacement - 28,000 - 28,000 28,000 - 0.0% 28,000 - Permit reauirement) 
General Expenses Total 51,317 92,360 8,301 92,360 92,360 - 0.0% 92,360 -

Stormwater Total 51,317 92,360 8,301 92,360 92,360 - 0.0% 92,360 - A 

Subtotal before Maintenance 4,061,846 4,639,346 3,345,338 4,971,603 4,913,786 274,440 5.9% 4,740,022 (173,764) 

Public Works • Maintenance 

General 

01419406 51110 PM- Sal/Wages FT 227,512 249,063 169,432 257,956 260,792 11,729 4.7% 259,286 (1,506) 4 FT Maint Supt, Custodian, 2 Maint Tech 
01419406 51121 PM- Sal/Wages Incentive Reg 500 - - - - -
01419406 51200 PM- Sal/Wages PT 36,436 39,155 30,705 41,136 40,769 1,614 4.1% 40,121 (648) 1 PT Custodian @ 34hr per week 
01419406 51300 PM- Sal/Wages OT 6.300 7,000 3,475 7,000 7.000 - 0.0% 7,000 - Emergencies, callouts 

Pay for after hours on-call status, 
01419406 51310 PM- Sal/Wages Stand-By 5,060 7,280 6,160 10,920 10,920 3,640 50.0% 10,920 - $210/week 
01419406 51400 PM- Longevity Pav 1,450 1 500 - 1 500 1,500 - 0.0% 1 500 - 1 FT per union contract 

Page26of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
4!:U:ii!:5 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 20258B 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025S8 Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Descrlotion Actual Budnet October Budriet Budriet (Decrease) Difference Budaet {Decrease) Exolanatlon 
01419406 51450 PM- Sal/Wages Education Incentive - 750 - - - (750) -100.0% - -

Salaries Total 277,258 304,748 209,772 318,512 320,981 16,233 5.3% 318,827 (2,154) 

01419406 52100 PM- Health Insurance 36,594 60,262 26,495 71,515 48,437 (11,825) -19.6% 48,437 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01419406 52110 PM- Dental Insurance 3,147 4,756 2,306 4,994 3,503 (1,253) -26.3% 3,503 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01419406 52120 PM- Life Insurance 255 230 164 240 240 10 4.3% 240 - No increase 
01419406 52200 PM-FICA 16,749 18,894 12,554 19,748 19,901 1,006 5.3% 19,767 (1341 Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419406 52210 PM- Medicare 3,917 4,419 2,936 4,618 4,654 235 5.3% 4,623 (311 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01419406 52300 PM- Retirement Town 32,843 35,935 23,981 36,431 36,741 806 2.2% 36,549 (1921 Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 93,505 124,496 68,437 137,546 113,476 (11,020) -8.9% 113,119 (357) . 
People GIS work order system 

01419406 55048 PM- Computer Software 3,955 5,000 42 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - (CompleteFleet module) 
Town building roofs snow removal $4K; 
contracted cleaning Town Offices $34K; 
Rec Ctr 2x week $14K; TH Offices (as 
required) & Public Restrooms $SK; Sr. 

01419406 55058 PM- Contract Services 83,005 46,500 48,620 70,000 70,000 23,500 50.5% 46,500 (23,500) Center$12K 
All Town buildings' paper & cleaning 

01419406 55069 PM- Custodial Supplies 17,290 22,000 12,275 20,000 20,000 (2,000) -9.1% 22,000 2,000 !Products 
Continuing education requirements for 
License renewals Master Elect, 
Journeyman Plumber/Gas fitter. Education 

01419406 55091 PM- Education/Training 620 800 - 200 200 (600) -75.0% 800 600 seminars Carpenter. 
Maintenance Dept vehicles (5); includes 
loaner vehicles to Town Departments; 
unleaded contract price projected to be 

01419406 55128 PM-Fuel 4,111 6,200 2,780 5,500 5,500 (700) -11.3% 6,200 700 $2.84/gal 
Licenses for Electrician and HVAC 

01419406 55173 PM- Licenses 85 300 146 300 300 - 0.0% 300 - Plumber Tech 
01419406 55176 PM- Maintenance Bid Materials 1,073 1,200 733 1,200 1,200 - 0.0% 1,200 - Stock paint, ounv, nails, screws 

HVAC Tech, plumber, elec. tools, 
01419406 55178 PM- Maintenance Tools 1,618 3,000 296 3,000 3.000 - 0.0% 3.000 - replenish drill bits, small power tools 
01419406 55190 PM- Mobile Communications 240 600 179 300 300 (300) -50.0% 600 300 Mainl Superintendent cell phone 

Fall protection, eye protection, steel-toed 
01419406 55257 PM- Safety Equipment 1,624 2,000 706 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - boot replacement $185/yr 
01419406 55314 PM- Uniforms 5,548 6,050 2,269 6,050 6,050 

---- - __ __Q.Q'!! - 6,050 - Uniforms and cleaning for 5 Staff 
------~ 

lnsp. & Mainl of fire alarm systems, 
01419406 55392 PM- Fire Safety 14,844 15,000 22,258 24,000 24,000 9,000 60.0% 15,000 (9,000) emergency lighting & fire extinguishers 

General EXDenses Total 134,012 108,650 90,303 137,550 137,550 28,900 26.6% 108,650 (28,900) 

General Maintenance Total 504,nS 537,894 368,512 593,608 572,007 34,113 6.3% 540,596 (31,411) A 
Town Bulldlnas 

Swasey Parkway- Sal/Wages PT - - 165 - - - - - Recording Secretary for Swasey Parkway 
Swasey Parkway- FICA - - 10 - - - - - Recording Secretary for Swasey Parkway 
Swasey Parkway. Medicare - - 2 - - - - - Recording Secretary for Swasey Parkway 
Town Buildinas-Water/Sewer Bills 23,331 17,835 16,809 18,835 18,835 1,000 5.6% 17,835 (1,000} Water/Sewer bills for Town Buildings 

Building Maintenance for Town Buildings, 
Town Buildings- Building Maintenance 82,608 79,500 71,945 94,000 94,000 14,500 18.2% 79,500 (14,500) Incl Swasey Parkway & Raynes Barn 
Town Buildinas-Covid-19 Exoenses - - - - - - - - Covid-19 for Town Buildings 
Town Buildinas- Natural Gas 66,814 75850 50296 72.250 72250 (3600} -4.7% 75850 3,600 Natural Gas for Town Buildinas 

Page27 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version t#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Electricity for Town Buildings, Incl. Swasey 

Town Buildint:1s- Electricity 96,516 98,950 79,533 100,450 100,450 1,500 1.5% 98,950 (1,500) Parkway & Raynes Barn 
Train Station- Supplies 980 3,800 153 3,000 3,000 (800 -21.1% 3,800 800 Light fixtures, electrical breakers, signage 

Platform Lease Liabiltiy Insurance for Train 
Train Station- Platform Lease Liability 19,200 23,600 27,636 28,021 28,021 4,421 18.7% 23,600 (4,421) Station 
Train Station- Platform Lease 3,537 4,076 3,655 4,076 4,076 0 0.0% 4,076 - Platform Lease for Train Station 
Town Buildings Total 292,985 303,611 250,204 320,632 320,632 17,021 5.6% 303,611 (17,021) A 

Maintenance Prolects 
1 own owneCI bu11e1Ing pro1ects: Hlstoncal 
Society masonry repolntlng, door 
rehabiliatlon, & window UV treatments 
$35K; Highway Garage Concrete 
Foundation Repair $10K; 32 Court Street 
Electrical Panel Upgrade $1 OK; Town Hall 
Roof Sealant $25K; Town Office Roof 

01419406 55177 PM- Maintenance Prolects 81.792 100,000 38,773 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - Slate Inspection & Repair $20K 
Total Maintenance ProJects 81,792 100,000 38,773 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% 100,000 - A 

Town Maintenance/Buildings Total 879,553 941,505 657,489 1,014,240 992,639 51,134 5.4% 944,207 (48,432) 

Mechanlcs/Garaae: 
01419415 51110 PG- Sal/Waaes FT 114,209 171,090 102,867 173,680 173,680 2,590 1.5% 173,680 - 3 FT: 1 Mech foreman; 2 Mechanics 
01419415 51300 PG- Sal/Waaes OT 4,898 3,000 4,040 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Mechanic OT • 76 hours per year 
01419415 51310 PG- Sal/Walles Standby Pav 2,220 - - - - -
01419415 51121 PG- Sal/Wages Education/Training 750 750 . 750 750 - 0.0% 750 . 

Salaries Total 122,077 174,840 106,908 177,430 177,430 2,590 1.5% 177,430 . 

01419415 52100 PG- Health Insurance 33,098 67,480 32,510 80,132 80,132 12,652 18.7% 80,132 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01419415 52110 PG- Dental Insurance 2,357 4,547 2,131 4,774 4,774 227 5.0% 4,774 - 5.0% Increase in the premium rate 
01419415 52120 PG- Life Insurance 67 138 76 144 144 6 4.3% 144 - No increase 
01419415 52200 PG-FICA 7,194 10,840 6,385 11,001 11,001 161 1.5% 11,001 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01419415 52210 PG- Medicare 1,682 2,535 1,493 2,573 2,573 38 1.5% 2,573 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01419415 52300 PG- Retirement Town 16,827 23,656 14,711 23,311 23,259 (397) -1.7% 23,259 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 61,225 109,196 57,306 121,935 121,883 12,687 11.6% 121,883 -

01419415 55128 PG-Fuel 827 1,800 1,014 1,500 1,500 (300) -16.7% 1,800 300 Mechanics shop truck & forklift 
Fuel pumps, UST inspection, reporting 
equipment, 23 year old fuel Island 

01419415 55129 PG- Fuel Dispensing System 2,982 4,000 4,027 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - maintenance 
Increase mechanics' allowance from $500 
to $800/ea (hasn't Increased since 2000); 

01419415 55183 PG- Mechanics Tools 3,060 3,900 1,072 3,900 3,900 - 0.0% 3,900 - replace Town owned tools; rental 
01419415 55316 PG- Vehicle Equipment Stock 4,920 5,000 1,786 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Flulds, filters, bulbs, nuts & bolts for all To'II 
01419415 55319 PG- Vehicle Maintenance 1,824 2,000 1,316 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - Maintenance Dept vehicles (5) + forklift 

3 mechanic lifts certified testing & repair, 2 
01419415 55338 PG-Weiaht Testing/Repair - 1,000 360 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 . crane mounted electric hoists 

General Expenses Total 13,613 17,700 9,575 17,400 17,400 (300' -1.7% 17,700 300 

Mechanics/Garage Total 196,915 301,736 173,789 316,765 316,713 14,977 5.0% 317,013 300 A 

Total Public Works 5138 314 5 882 587 4.176.616 6 302 608 6 223138 340.551 5.8% 6 001242 1221 896) A 

Page 28 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Welfare & Human Services 

Welfare 
01444110 51110 WE- Sal/Wages FT 9,394 - - - - - -

New PT Welfare/ Human Services 
01444110 51200 WE- Sal/Wages PT 39,651 14,131 46,840 46,519 6,868 17.3% 45,745 (774' Administrator (9 mos in 2024) 

Salaries Total 9,394 39,651 14,131 46,840 46,519 6,868 17.3% 45,745 (774) 

01444110 52200 WE-FICA 547 2,458 876 2,904 2,884 426 17.3% 2,836 (48) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01444110 52210 WE- Medicare 128 575 205 679 675 100 17.3% 663 (111 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01444110 52300 WE- Retirement - Town 1,302 - - - - - - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 5,723 3,033 1,081 3,583 3,559 526 17.3% 3,499 (601 

01444110 55025 WE - Direct ReUef- Burial Expense 5,605 6,000 8,050 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - Per RSA 165:27-a 
Above RCA utility asst. May advocate 

01444110 55075 WE - Direct Relief- Electricity 11,579 6,000 12,694 8,000 8,000 2,000 33.3% 8,000 - w/other agencies 
Grocery store gift cards if St. V de P not 

01444110 55076 WE - Direct Relief-Food/Gas 27 250 - 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - available. 
01444110 55077 WE - Direct Relief - Heat 10,240 7,000 2,030 6,000 6,000 (1,000' -14.3% 7,000 1,000 Oil or gas/propane 
01444110 55078 WE - Direct Relief -Medical 5,182 5,000 1,132 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - May advocate with other agencies. 
01444110 55079 WE - Direct Relief- Rent 124,216 45,000 87,348 70,000 70,000 25,000 55.6% 70,000 - May advocate with other agencies 

DR not included In other lines (car repairs, 
01444110 55133 WE - Direct Relief Miscellaneous 2,144 4,400 2,193 4,000 4,000 (400) -9.1% 4,400 400 daycare, etc.) 

Shelters unavailable or 
01444110 55541 WE - Direct Relief- Hotel 14,703 27,000 20,227 27,000 27,000 - 0.0% 27,000 - children/elderly/handicapped. 

Direct Relief Expenses Total 173,696 100,650 133,674 126,250 126,250 25,600 25.4% 127,650 1.400 

01444110 55050 WE- Conf/Room/Meals 365 200 201 200 200 - 0.0% 200 - NHLWAA Quarterly & Annual Mtg 
01444110 55088 WE-Dues 40 40 40 40 40 - 0.0% 40 - NHLWAA$40 
01444110 55190 WE- Mobile Communications 150 180 54 400 400 220 122.2% 180 (220) Town issued mobile phone 

New expense $37 .30 per month lease 
01444110 55198 WE- Office Equipment Leases 450 450 450 (450) copier/printer/scanner 
01444110 55200 WE- Office Supplies 118 150 241 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - notebooks, folders and desk supplies. 
01444110 55224 WE-Postage 29 40 19 40 40 - 0.0% 40 - Client/state/agencies - postage 

Local mtgs, NHMA Conf., NHLWAA Mtgs, 
01444110 55308 WE- Travel Reimbursement 42 150 56 150 150 - 0.0% 150 - Seminars 

General Expenses Total 744 760 611 1,430 1.430 670 88.2% 760 (670) 
----- ----- -~ -

Welfare Total 189,556 144,094 149,496 178,103 1n,15e 33,664 23.4% 1n,s54 (104) A 

Human Services 
See separate list (Human Services 

01444511 55360 HS- Human Services Funding 98,610 98,325 98,325 100,000 100,000 1,675 1.7% 98,325 (1,675) Funding Committee) 
Human Services Total 98,610 98,325 98,325 100,000 100,000 1,675 1.7% 98,325 (1,675) "' 
Total Welfare & Human Services 288,166 242,419 247,821 278,103 277,758 35,339 14.6% 275,979 (1,779) 

-
Parks & Recreation -
Recreation 
01452001 51110 PR- Sal/Waaes FT 266943 300.458 251 771 315 873 324904 24446 8.1% 319 927 (4 977} 4 FT: Director. Asst. Director. Rec Coord C 

Page29of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version'll4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025 SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Oro Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
Senior Coordinator: $27.08 per hour, 29 
Hours a week, 30 weeks with Hospital 
contributing $5,200, 20% of the total salary 

01452001 51200 PR- Sal/Wages PT 14,921 14,921 14,921 . (14,921) from grant 
Salaries Total 266,943 300,458 251,771 330,794 339,825 39,367 13.1% 319,927 (19,898) 

01452001 52100 PR- Health Insurance 53,727 60,883 51,985 93,743 90,227 29,344 48.2% 90,227 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
01452001 52110 PR- Dental Insurance 3,448 3,657 3,048 4,397 4,397 740 20.2% 4,397 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01452001 52120 PR- Life Insurance 417 321 320 384 384 63 19.6% 384 - No Increase 
01452001 52130 PR- LTD Insurance 902 842 709 823 823 (19) -2.3% 823 - No increase 
01452001 52200 PR-FICA 16,457 18,628 14,963 20,509 21,069 2,441 13.1% 19,835 (1,234) Based on wages: 6.2% 

----~--- -~--

01452001 52210 PR- Medicare ---3,849- 4,357 3,499 4,797 4,927 571 13.1% 4,639 (289) Based on wages: 1 .45% 
Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 

01452001 52300 PR- Retirement Town 36,775 40,652 34,065 41,475 42,627 1,975 4.9% 41,992 (635) Jul-Dec 
Benefits Total 115,574 129,340 108,589 166,128 164,454 35,114 27.1% 162,297 (2,157) 

NHRP/NRPAINEPA Dues for Department 
01452001 55088 PR-Dues 697 800 770 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Slaff. 
01452001 55224 PR-Postage . 150 - 150 150 . 0.0% 150 - Mailings 

Level Funded, Office supplies: pens, 
01452001 55293 PR- Suoolies 1,261 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - paper, ink and other supplies 
01452001 55542 PR- Senior Services 4,851 5,000 4,506 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Level Funded 

General Exoenses Total 6,810 7,450 6,776 7,450 7,450 - 0.0% 7,450 -
,_ 

Recreation Total 389,327 437,248 367,137 504,372 511,729 74,481 17.0% 489,674 (22,055) A 

Parks 
01452002 51110 PK- Sal/Wages FT 90,201 102,511 78,475 91,291 96,341 (6,170) -6.0% 96,341 - 2 FT (Foreman and Laborer) 
01452002 51200 PK- Sal/Wages Temp - - - . . 
01452002 51300 PK• Sal/Wages OT 4,502 4,500 2,613 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - OT for 2 FT Employees 

Salaries Total 94,703 107,011 81,088 95,791 100,841 (6,1701 -5.8% 100,841 -

01452002 52100 PK- Health Insurance 7,217 10,544 8,787 46,326 12,521 1,977 18.8% 12,521 - 18. 7% increase in the premium rate 
01452002 52110 PK- Dental Insurance 407 1,668 474 2,685 1,751 83 5.0% 1,751 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01452002 52120 PK- Life Insurance 68 92 72 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - No increase 
01452002 52200 PK- FICA 5,795 6,635 4,931 5,939 6,252 (383) -5.8% 6,252 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
01452002 52210 PK- Medicare 1,355 1,552 1,153 1,389 1,462 (89) -5.8% 1,462 . Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 12.75% 
01452002 52300 PK- Retirement Town 13,044 14,479 10,724 12,587 13,221 (1,258) -8.7% 13,221 - Jul-Dec 

Benefits Total 27,886 34,969 26,141 69,022 35,303 334 1.0% 35,303 -
01452002 55033 PK- Chem Toilet Rental 2,260 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 - 0.0% 2,300 . Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55058 PK- Contract Services 68,908 69,350 58,331 69,350 69,350 . 0.0% 69,350 - Mulching, Fertilzialion and Irrigation 
01452002 55106 PK- Equipment Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01452002 55108 PK- Equipment Repairs 1,133 850 479 850 850 - 0.0% 850 . Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55109 PK- Equipment Supplies 7,780 7,800 6,441 7,800 7,800 - 0.0% 7,800 . Level Funded, Typical use is Flags, field pa 
01452002 55128 PK- Fuel 4,770 4,200 4,672 4,200 4,200 . 0.0% 4,200 - Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55164 PK- Landscaping Supplies 12,664 14,500 13,743 14,500 14,500 - 0.0% 14,500 - Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55239 PK- Par1< Maintenance 5,938 7,000 6,838 7,000 7,000 - 0.0% 7,000 - Level Funded for 2025 
01452002 55267 PK-Signs 670 700 700 500 500 (200} -28.6% 700 200 Fewer Signs this year 
01452002 55314 PK- Uniforms 662 900 416 900 900 - 0.0% 900 - Level funded, Shoes, shirts, oants 

Page 30of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
zuz:, Default 

2Q25SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual Budnet October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
We have some items on our two parks 
trucks that needs to be address as the 

01452002 55319 PK- Vehicle Maintenance 1,996 2,000 1,914 2,500 2,500 500 25.0% 2,000 (500) parts have been on backorder. 
General ExDenses Total 106,781 109,601 95,834 109,901 109,901 300 0.3% 109,601 (300] 
Parks Total 229,370 251,581 203,063 274,714 246,045 (5,536) -2.2% 245,745 (300) A 

Total Parks & Recreation 618,696 688,829 570,200 ns,oa& 757,n4 68,945 10.0% 735,419 (22,355) 

Other Culture & Recreation 

Other Culture & Reen atlon 
01452004 55036 QC- Christmas Lli:ihts 5,065 5,000 476 5,000 5,000 . 0.0% 5,000 . Churchill's greenery, Unitil electric bill 

- --

Parade costs including bands, Police 
01452004 55037 QC- Christmas Parade 4,500 4,500 2,025 4,500 4,500 . 0.0% 4,500 . detail, etc. 

Summer concerts in Swasey Parkway-
01452004 55292 QC- Summer Concerts 8,000 9,000 8,100 9,000 9,000 . 0.0% 9,000 . level funded 

Other Culture & Recreation Total 17,565 18,500 10,602 18,500 18,500 . 0.0% 18,500 . A 

Sneclal Events 
01452005 55112 SE- Exeter Brass Band 4,158 4,000 3,950 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 . Payments to brass band performers 

01452005 55320 SE- Veteran's Activities 4,012 4,000 3,743 4,000 4,000 . 0.0% 4,000 - Memorial Day flags, Vets Day flags, Lunch 
Fireworks for AIM Festival, cost of 
fireworks have gone up and a need for 
police detail to keep residents from walking 

01452005 55006 SE- Fireworks 8,000 8,000 8,000 10,000 10,000 2,000 25.0% 8,000 (2,000] In shooting zone. 
Special Events Total 16,170 16,000 15,693 18,000 18,000 2,000 12.5% 16000 (2,000) A 

Total Other Culture & Recreation 33,735 34,500 26,294 36,500 36,500 2,000 5.8% 34,500 (2,000) 

Public Library 

Llbrarv 
01455001 51110 LB- Sal/Waaes FT 567,940 600,845 507,833 640,598 658,914 58,069 9.7% 648,821 (10,093' 9 FT Employees 
01455001 51200 LB• Sal/Wages PT S6,257 130,000 123,316 138,000 135,400 5,400 4.2% 131,500 (3,900' PT Employees 

Salaries Total 664,197 730,845 631,148 778,598 794,314 63,469 8.7% 780,321 (13,993' 

01455001 52100 LB· Health Insurance 94,853 114,260 91,662 122,879 122,879 8,619 7.5% 122,879 . 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
------

01455001 52110 LB- Dental Insurance 5,746 6,538 5,258 6,267 6,267 (271) -4.1% 6,267 . 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
01455001 52120 LB- Life Insurance 468 505 384 432 432 (73) -14.5% 432 . No Increase 
01455001 52130 LB- LTD Insurance 1,128 959 814 960 960 1 0.1% 960 . No increase 
01455001 52140 LB- Health Insurance Buyout 8,075 2,920 2,718 3,800 3,800 880 30.1% 3,800 -
01455001 52200 LB-FICA 40,334 45,312 38,043 48,273 49,247 3,935 8.7% 48,380 (868) Based on wages: 6.2% 
01455001 52210 LB- Medicare 9,433 10,597 8,897 11,290 11,518 920 8.7% 11,315 (203) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 12.75% 
01455001 52300 LB· Retirement Town 83,117 81,294 68,177 84,113 86,448 5,154 6.3% 85,161 (1,287) Jul-Dec 
01455001 52500 LB· Unemplovment Comp 175 176 176 184 184 8 4.5% 184 - Primex 
01455001 52600 LB· Workers Comp Insurance 3,067 3,251 3,250 3,446 3,446 195 6.0% 3,446 - Primex 
01455001 55172 LB• Llabillty Insurance 1,431 1,531 1,531 1,639 1,639 108 7.1% 1,639 - Primex 

Benefits Total 247,827 267,344 220,910 283,283 286,820 19,476 7.3% 284,463 (2,357) 

-- - ----

Appropriation for general Library expenses 
01455001 55233 LB• Public Services 187 854 187.500 187,500 200,500 200,500 13.000 6.9% 187.500 (13 000) oaid directly bv Librarv 

Page31 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version#4 
2025 Default 

2025SB 20255B Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
General Expenses Total 187,854 187,500 187,500 200,500 200,500 13,000 6.9% 187,500 (13,000' A 

Total Library 1,099,877 1,185,689 1,039,558 1,262,381 1,281,634 95,945 8.1% 1,252,284 (29,3501 A 

Debt Service & Capital 

Debt Services 
01471121 58003 Epping Rd Water Tank 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 - 0.0% 105,000 - 2028 Final payment 
01471121 58004 Great Dam Removal 155,000 155,000 155,000 - - (155,000 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01471121 58007 Sidewalk Proaram 55,000 55,000 55,000 54,700 54,700 (300) -0.5% 54,700 - 2025 Final payment 
01471121 58008 Linden St. Bridge/Culvert 

----
70,000 65,000 65,000 64,700 64,700 (300] -0.5% 64,700 

~ - , . - 2025 Final payment 
--~-- --------~ 

01471121 58026 Lincoln Street Ph#2 97~188 - 97,188 97,188 97,188, 97,188 - 0.0% 97,188 - 2032 Final payment 
01471121 58029 Court Street Culvert 111,253 111,253 111,253 111,253 111,253 - 0.0% 111,253 - 2027 Final payment 
01471121 58031 String Bridge Rehabilitation 60,000 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
01471121 58034 Rec Park Develooment 45,000 45,000 45,000 - - (45,000] -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01471121 58035 Salem St. Utility Design & Engin 5,077 5,077 5,077 - - (5,077] -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01471121 58037 Library Renovations/Addition 254,825 255,000 255,000 255,000 255,000 - 0.0% 255,000 - 2035 Final payment 
01471121 58043 Salem St. Utility Improvements 56,441 56,441 56,441 55,451 55,451 (990' -1.8% 55,451 - 2036 Final payment 
01471121 58044 Recreation Center Building 111,100 111,100 111,100 111,100 111,100 - 0.0% 111,100 - 2032 Final payment 
01471121 58045 Westside Drive Design & Engin 8,737 - 8,737 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
01471121 58049 Solar Array at Cross Road 239,164 239,164 239,164 239,164 - 0.0% 239,164 - 2043 Final payment 
01471121 58050 Intersection lmprv Program 72,274 72,274 72,274 72,274 - 0.0% 72,274 - 2033 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, excludes 
01471121 58051 Westside Drive Construction 55,482 55,482 55,482 55,482 0 0.0% 55,482 - SRF) 

GF Debt Service Principal Total 1,125,884 1,436,716 1,427,979 1,221,312 1,221,312 (215,404' -15.0% 1,221,312 -

01472122 58514 Eooinci Rd Water Tank Interest 27,459 22,188 22,187 16,917 16,917 5,271 -23.8% 16,917 - 2028 Final payment 
01472122 58515 Great Dam Removal Interest 15,810 7,905 7,905 - - 7,905 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01472122 58518 Sidewalk Proaram Interest 4,693 3,401 3,401 1,696 1,696 1,705 -50.1% 1,696 - 2025 Final payment 
01472122 58519 Linden St. Bridge/Culvert 5,666 4,021 4,021 2,006 2,006 2,015 -50.1% 2,006 - 2025 Final payment 
01472122 58527 Lincoln Street Ph#2 45,678 40,722 40,722 35,765 35,765 4,957 -12.2% 35,765 - 2032 Final payment 
01472122 58528 Court Street Culvert 28,369 22,696 22,696 17,022 17,022 5,674 -25.0% 17,022 - 2027 Final payment 
01472122 58530 String Bridge Rehabilitation 3,060 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
01472122 58534 Rec Park Development 4,590 2,295 2,295 - - 2,295 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01472122 58535 Salem St. Utility Design & Engin 518 259 259 - - (259 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
01472122 58537 Library Renovations/Addition 138,351 125,355 125,355 112,350 112,350 (13,005 -10.4% 112,350 - 2035 Final payment 
01472122 58543 Salem St. Utility Improvements 35,811 32,933 32,933 30,054 30,054 2,879 -8.7% 30,054 - 2036 Final payment 
01472122 58544 Recreation Center Building 61,698 50,995 50,995 45,329 45,329 5,666 -11.1% 45,329 - 2032 Final payment 
01472122 58545 Westside Drive Design & Engin 874 - (874 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
01472122 58549 Solar Array at Cross Road 238,287 238,287 222,183 222,183 (16,104 -6.8% 222,183 - 2043 Final payment 
01472122 58550 Intersection lmprv Program 37,474 37,474 33,174 33,174 4,300 -11.5% 33,174 - 2033 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, excludes 
01472122 58551 Westside Drive Construction 43,151 43,151 39,614 39,614 (3,5371 -8.2% 39,614 - SRF) 

GF Debt Service Interest Total 371,702 632,556 631,679 556,110 556,110 (76,446) -12.1% 556,110 -

01472323 58501 GF- TAN Interest - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Reserve for Tax Anticipation Note 
TAN Interest Total - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Estimated Interest on BAN (Police Station 
01472424 58500 GF- BAN Interest 171,150 171,150 171,150 171,150 - with Fire Substation) 

BAN lnterestTotal - - - 171,150 171,150 171,150 171,150 -
Debt Services Total 1497 586 2 069272 2.059.658 1948 573 1948 573 (120.6991 -5.8% 1948573 . A 

Page 32of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;,i:u;,i::, Default 

2025 SB 2025S8 Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025S8 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect DescrlDtion Actual Budget October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) Difference Budget IDecreasel Exolanatlon 

.. 
DUB 

01419417 55081 GG- Disaster Repairs - Insured - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01419417 55224 GG-Postage (5,156) 1 6,895 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Town-wide postage reserve 

Town-wide cash over/short in-house 
01419417 55060 GG- Cash Over/Short 7 1 (3) 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - collections 
01419417 55189 GG- Misc ExDense 464 1 697 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - lntemal audit entry 

Fire Protection System Fee (moved from 
01419417 55151 GG- Fire Protection 100,000 75,000 150,000 130,000 30,000 30.0% 100,000 (30,000) Fire Budget in 2024) 

General Exoenses Total (4,685) 100,004 82,589 150,004 130,004 30,000 30.0% 100,004 (30,000) A 

Vehicle Ra1 lacamant -
01419416 57005 GG- CO - Leases 203,683 248,495 242,266 164,317 164,317 (84,178) -33.9% 164,317 - See separate list 
01419418 57012 GG- CO - Vehicles - - 132,000 66,000 66,000 - (66,000) See separate list 

Capital Outlay Total 203,683 248,495 242,266 296,317 230,317 (18,178) -7.3% 164,317 (66,000) A 

Cemeteries 
01419500 57000 GG-CO-Cemeteries - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

- 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - A 

Canltal Outlav-Other 
01419900 55361 GG- CO- Land Acquistion/Purchase - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -

Vehicle Data Gathering (AA Tracking)-
includes 3% escalator and an increase in 

01419900 57006 GG- CO- Equipment 7,509 6,486 6,120 13,015 13,015 6,529 100.7% 6,486 (6,529) the number of DPW vehicles tracked. 
01419900 57014 GG-CO-Exeter Sportsman Club 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 . 

Caoital Outlav Total 7,509 6,488 6,120 13,017 13,017 6,529 100.6% 6,488 (6,529) A 

General Government Total 206,507 354,988 330,975 459,339 373,339 18,351 5.2% 270,810 (102,529) 

Total Debt Service & Capital 1,704,093 2,424,260 2,390,634 2,407,912 2,321,912 (102,348) -4.2% 2,219,383 (102,529) 

Benefits & Taxes 

Pavroll T<1ves & Bene ts . 
10% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- Health Insurance Reserve . . - - - - Fund, Sewer Fund 
2% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- Dental Insurance Reserve - - . . . . Fund, Sewer Fund 
2% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- Life Insurance Reserve - - . . . . Fund, Sewer Fund 
2% increase YOY General Fund, Water 

GG- LTD Insurance Reserve . . - - - - Fund, Sewer Fund 
01415535 52140 GG- Insurance Buvout 154,402 1TT,360 143,415 192,296 221,638 44,278 25.0% 221,638 - Health Insurance Buyout 
01415535 52200 GG-FICA 4,786 10,996 4,351 11,922 13,742 2,745 25.0% 13,742 - Based on buyout: 6.2% 
01415535 52210 GG- Medicare 2,265 2,572 2,121 2,788 3,214 642 25.0% 3,214 - Based on buyout: 1.45% 
01415536 52150 GG-RetiremenU Sick Leave Buvout 81,278 1 42,949 1 1 0 25.0% 1 - Use funds in Sick Leave CRF 
01415536 52200 GG-FICA 3,388 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - RetiremenV Sick Leave Buvout 
01415536 52210 GG- Medicare 1,179 1 623 1 1 - 0.0% 1 . RetiremenV Sick Leave Buvout 
01415531 55125 GG- Flexible Soendina Fees 553 1,221 426 792 792 {4291 -35.1% 792 - Fees for emplovees FSA account 

Page33of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 301 2024 Verslon#4 
2025 Default 

2025 SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB Increase/- %- Default Increase/-

Ora Oblect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budget (Decrease) ExDlanallon 
Employee wellness needs beyond those 
provided by the Town's health insurance 
carrier. Hold until program Is further 

01415531 55098 GG- Emplovee Wellness 5,000 - - - (5,000) -100.0% 5,000 5,000 developed 
Wage adjustments/classlficatlons during 

01415531 55371 GG- Wai:ie Reclassifications - 20,000 - - - - the year 
Pavroll Taxes & Benefits Total 247,849 197,152 193,884 227,801 239,389 42,237 21.4% 244,389 5,000 A 

Unemnlovn ent -
01415533 52500 GG- Unemployment Comp 2,320 2,341 2,341 2,446 2,446 105 4.5% 2,446 - Primex 

Unemplovment Total 2,320 2,341 2,341 2,446 2,446 105 4.5% 2,446 - A 

Worker's Com00nsatlon 
01415537 52600 GG- Workers Comp Insurance 232,159 246,089 246,089 260,854 260,854 14,765 6.0% 260,854 - Primex 

Worker's Compensation Total 232,159 246,089 246,089 260,854 260,854 14,765 6.0% 260,854 - A 

Insurance 
01419614 55124 GG- Fleet Insurance 8,825 9,443 9,443 10,104 10,104 661 7.0% 10,104 - Primex 
01419614 55157 GG- Insurance Deductible 1,000 3,000 - 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Town has $1K deductible per occurrence 
01419614 55158 GG- Ins Reimbursed Repairs 20,961 1 12,512 1 1 - 0.0% 1 -
01419614 55172 GG- Liabllity Insurance 146,538 70,408 70,408 75,336 75,336 4,928 7.0% 75,336 - Primex estimate (7% increase YOY) 

Insurance Total 1n,323 82,852 92,363 88,441 88,441 5,589 6.7% 88,441 - A 

Total Benefits & Taxes 659,651 528,434 534,678 579,542 591,130 62,696 11.9% 596,130 5,000 

Total General Fund 20,531,985 22,860,862 18,295,327 24,164,024 23,983,368 1,122,507 4.91% 23,441,313 (542,055 A 

Warrant Articles/Other 
CIP pg.6 - Continued investment in capital 

01500000 59090 Parks & Rec CRF 75,000 100,000 100,000 25,000 33.3% (100,000) reserve fund established in 2019 
Sick Leave Capital Reserve - (Gf Fund 

01500000 59017 Sick Leave Expendable Trust Fund 100,000 100,000 100,000 - 0.0% (100,000) Balance) 
Snow/Ice Deficit Non-Capital CRF • (GF 

01500000 59049 Snow/Ice Deficit Fund 50,000 75,000 75,000 25,000 50.0% (75,000) Fund Balance) 
CIP pg. 7 - Continued investment in ADA 

01500000 59074 ADA Improvements CRF 50,000 25,000 25,000 (25,000) -50.0% (25,000) improvements In Town 
CIP pg.16 - Replacement of drainage 

01500000 59122 Front/Pine Linden Street Drainai:ie - 100,000 100,000 100,000 (100,000) infrastructure (from prior bond proceeds) 
CIP pg.4 - General improvements to site 

01500000 59121 Transfer Station Improvements - 50,000 50,000 50,000 {50,000) flow 
CIP pg.64 - Proposed as lease/purchase -

01500000 59020 Dump Truck #33 - Replacement - 40,000 40,000 40,000 (40,000) $160K with first yr. pmt. of $40K 
CIP pg.68 - Proposed as lease/purchase -

01500000 59115 Sidewalk Tractor #58 - Replacement - 56,250 56,250 56,250 (56,250) $225K with first yr. pmt. of $56,250 

CIP pg.62 - Proposed as lease/purchase -
1/2 cost split with Rec. Rev. Fund -$120K 

01500000 59119 P&R ADA Accessible Van • New - 15,000 15,000 15,000 (15,000 with first yr. pmt. of $15,000 ($30K total). 
01500000 59118 Fire Utility 1 Truck - Replacement - 71,355 71,355 71,355 (71,355 CIP pg.52- (Gf Fund Balance) 
01500000 59120 Public EV Charging Facility - 120,000 120,000 120,000 (120,000 CIP pg.8 • (GF Fund Balance) 
01500000 59123 Styrofoam Recycling Unit - 80,000 80,000 80,000 {80,000 CIP pg, 10 • (GF Fund Balance) 

Fire detection system for Raynes Bam -
01500000 59112 Raynes Barn Improvements - - - - - (GF Fund Balance) - MOVED TO ARPA 

Page 34 of35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 General Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
;.t;U;.t;:tOefaUlt 

2025SB 2025 SB Budget vs. 
Budget vs. Budget vs. 2025SB 

2024 2024 Budget $ 2024 Budget 2025 Budget$ 
2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025 SB Increase/• %- Default Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 
01500000 59125 Sportsman's Club Clean-up - - - - - To address issues raised by NHDES 

To prepare for the sesquicentennial 
01500000 59124 sac Celebration Fund - 5,000 5,000 5,000 (5,000) celebration 

To fund the transition to new staff that 
replace retiring, long-term employees -

01500000 59117 Succession Plan Fund - - - - - FUND THROUGH OPERATIONS 
01500000 59013 Exeter Police Association Agreement - TBD TBD #VALUE! #VALUE! Exeter Police Association CBA 

Exeter Professional Firefighters' 
01500000 59011 Exeter Professional Firefighters' Assoc. - TBD TBD #VALUE! #VALUE! Association CBA 
01500000 59045 SEIU 1984 Collective Bargaining - TBD TBD #VALUE! #VALUE! SEIU 1984 CBA 

Planet Plamround Renovation 297,500 - - (297,500) -100.0% - Prior Year ClP Item 
Sidewalk Replacement Fund 50,000 - - (50,000) -100.0% - Prior Year CIP Item 
Water Street Reconstruction- Planning 100,000 - - (100,000) -100.0% - Prior Year CIP Item 

-
Total Warrant Articles . 722,500 . 837,605 837,605 115,105 15.9% - (837,605) 

Borrowlna/ Other 
Pickpocket Dam Removal - 2,100,000 2,100,000 (2,100,000 CIP Jl11.22 
Linden St. Bridae Supplemental Fundina - 1,257,900 1,257,900 (1,257,900 CIPJJ11.21 
Fuel Island Replacement at DPW - 575,000 575,000 (575,000 CIPpg.2 
Street Sweeper - Great Bay Nitroaen Pm. - 395,000 395,000 (395,000 CIP pg.18 
School Street Area Reconstruction 2,213,400 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 
Police Complex with Fire Substation 17,522,500 - - - . Prior Year CIP Item 

-
Total Borrowing/Other . 19,735,900 . 4,327,900 4,327,900 (15,408,000) -78.1% . (4,327 900) 
Total GF Warrant Articles/Other . 20,458,400 . 5,165,505 5,165,505 (15,292,895) -74.8% . (5,165,505) 

Total General Fund Budget & Warrant 
2015311985 4313191262 18,295,327 2913291529 2911481873 11411701388) -32.7% 2314411313 1si7011s&0) Articles 

Page 35 of 35 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025S8 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20255B $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ lncreasel-

Om Oblect DescriDtlon Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 
WATER FUND 
Administration 

2 FT WIS Mgr & Asst Mgr Split 50/50, 
02433021 51110 WA- Sal/Waaes FT 228,172 293,347 166,355 324,505 333,649 40,302 13.7% 320,512 (13,1371 and GF aUocations 
02433021 51200 WA- Sal/Waaes PT - 3,043 3,237 3.477 3,225 182 6.0% 3,216 (9 GF allocation 

02433021 51210 WA- SaVwages Temp 3,417 3,500 - 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - PT Seasonal Employee 50/50 W&S Split 
Salaries Total 231,589 299,890 169,592 331,482 340,374 40,484 13.5% 327,228 (13,146 

02433021 52100 WA- Health Insurance 49,919 67,336 29,202 80,172 76,377 9,041 13.4% 73,170 (3,207 Allocations rrom GF 
02433021 52110 WA- Dental Insurance 4,150 5,568 2,684 5,758 5,407 (161] -2.9% 5,212 {195 AUocalions rrom GF 
02433021 52120 WA- Life Insurance 257 265 132 302 302 37 14.0% 293 (9 AUocatlons rrom GF 
02433021 52130 WA• LTD Insurance 589 540 405 602 602 62 11.5% 535 (67 Allocations from GF 
02433021 52140 WA• Health Insurance Buvout 641 2,377 1,783 2,813 2,813 436 18.3% 2,813 - AUocatlons from GF 
02433021 52200 WA-FICA 14,160 18,593 10,386 20,552 21,103 2,510 13.5% 20,288 (8151 Based on wages: 6.2% 
02433021 52210 WA• Medicare 3,311 4,348 2,419 4,806 4,935 587 13.5% 4,745 (1911 Based on waaes: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
02433021 52300 WA- Retirement Town 32,039 39,690 22,305 42,600 43,759 4,069 10.3% 42,056 (1,703) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433021 52600 WA- Workers Como Insurance 5,144 5,453 5,453 5,780 5,780 327 6.0% 5,780 - Primex 

Benefits Total 110,211 144,170 74,768 163,385 161,078 16,907 11.7% 154,892 {6,186} 
20% of general office supplies, copy 
costs, batteries; 50% of meter records 
maintenance; 50% Supplies/maint multi-

02433021 55293 WA-Suppties 2,842 4,500 2,761 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - function olotter 
Lead service line continued work 
(Federal requirement). Water System 

02433021 55055 WA- Consultina Services 3,407 10,000 12,000 13,250 13,250 3,250 32.5% 10,000 (3,250) Hydraulic Model updates. 
02433021 55124 WA- Fleet Insurance 414 443 443 474 474 31 7.0% 474 - Prlmex 
02433021 55228 WA- Property Insurance 56,482 60,435 60,435 64,665 64,665 4,230 7.0% 64,665 - Primex 
02433021 55157 WA- Insurance Deductible 1,000 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Line item for insurance deductible 
02433021 55158 WA- Insurance Reimbursed Repairs 12,424 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Damaae reoalrs on insurance claims 

Legal expenses wellhead negotiations, 
02433021 55170 WA- Leaal Expense - 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - administrative orders 

20% Director, Town Engineer, Asst 
02433021 55190 WA- Mobile Communications 144 800 241 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Enaineer ceUohones, 50% WIS Manaaer 
02433021 55002 WA- Advertising - 250 - 250 250 - 0.0% 250 - Bid oackaaes, Requests for Proposals 

Annual Consumer Confidence Rpt 
02433021 55227 WA-Printing 2,843 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - I (CCRl & oostaae 

Notice of main flushing, Public Hearings, 
violations, lead service inventory 

02433021 55171 WA- Legal/Public Notices - 3,000 - 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - inauiries 
Annual national conference Dir, Eng 

02433021 55050 WA- Cont Rooms/Meals 783 3,500 333 2,880 2,880 (620) -17.7% 3,500 620 20%, WS Mar & Asst Mar 50% 
Treatment, Distribution & Backflow 

02433021 55091 WA• Education/Training 4,881 5,000 3,335 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - required CEUs & dues 
Employee wellness needs beyond those 
provided by the Town's health insurance 
carrier. Hold until program is further 

02433021 55098 WA- Employee Wellness - 2,500 - - - (2,500} -100.0% 2,500 2,500 developed 
General Exoenses Total 85,219 93,431 82,548 97,822 97,822 4,391 4.7% 97,692 (130) 

Administration Total 427 020 537.491 326 908 592 689 599.274 61,782 11.5% 579 812 119.462) A 

Page 1 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025 SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/• 

Ora Obiect Description Actual Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Bllllna 
1 FT Utilities Clerk (50/50 split W&S) & 

02433124 51110 WB- Sal/Waaes FT 80,186 89,762 69,891 96,142 97,933 8,171 9.1% 97,349 (584) GF Allocations 
1 PT Utilities Clerk 24 hrs/wk (50/50 split 

02433124 51200 WB- Sal/Waaes PT 4,539 13,819 3,973 14,519 14,389 570 4.1% 14,160 (229) WSS) 
02433124 51300 WB- Sal/Wages OT - 75 56 25 25 (50) -66.7% 25 - Allocations from GF 

Salaries Total 84,725 103,656 73,921 110,686 112,347 8,691 8.4% 111,534 (813) 

02433124 52100 WB- Health Insurance 28,438 28,031 22,209 33,361 33,268 5,237 18.7% 33,268 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52110 WB- Dental Insurance 1,919 1,869 1,484 1,962 1,962 93 5.0% 1,962 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52120 WB- Life Insurance 108 92 72 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52130 WB - LTD Insurance 119 113 85 110 110 (3) -2.7% 110 - Allocations from GF 
02433124 52200 WB-FICA 5,115 6.427 4.453 6,863 6,966 539 8.4% 6,915 (50] Based on wages: 6.2% 
02433124 52210 WB- Medicare 1,196 1,503 1,041 1,605 1,629 126 8.4% 1,617 (12] Based on wages: 1 .45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun: 
02433124 52300 WB- Retirement Town 11,049 12,155 9.464 12,632 12,849 694 5.7% 12,774 (75) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433124 52600 WB- Workers Comp Insurance 1,199 1,271 1,271 1,347 1,347 76 6.0% 1,347 - Primex 

Benefits Total 49,144 51,461 40,079 57,976 58,227 6,766 13.1% 58,089 (138] 

Water bill processing, ink cartridges, 
paper, letterhead, pens, etc - based on 

02433124 55200 WB-Supplies 2,844 3,250 1,641 3,000 3,000 (250) -7.7% 3,250 250 historical 
Certified shut-off notices - based on 

02433124 55224 WB-Postage 5,701 6,325 7,253 6,325 6,325 - 0.0% 6,325 - review of historical spend 

Allocation of actuarial costs for GASB 
compliance. Split 50/25/25 GFIW/S (only 

02433124 55055 WB- Consulting Services - 1,650 1,650 215 215 {1,435) -87.0% 1,650 1.435 need statement disclosure in 2025) 
Annual and Single Audits Fees - Year 2 
of 3-Year fee schedule. Allocated 
50/25/25% between GF, Water & Sewer 

02433124 55014 WB-Audit Fees 6,250 14,500 8,555 13,500 13,500 (1,000] -6.9% 14,500 1,000 Total S54K 
02433124 55213 WB- Phone Utilization 5,319 6,875 5,273 5,400 5,400 (1,475] -21.5% 6,875 1,475 12.5% allocation of IT cost 

12.5% allocation of IT internet services 
02433124 55159 WB- Internet Services 729 4,646 2,223 5,613 5,613 967 20.8% 4,646 (967) (website) 
02433124 55383 WB- Email Filtering/Archiving 1,113 1,238 - 263 263 (975] -78.8% 1,238 975 12.5% allocation of IT cost 

1/2 Munilink UB Software Maintenance 
(3% incr for 8 mo.) & Munis Allocation @ 

02433124 55270 WB- Software Aareement 16,954 17,893 17,579 18,080 18,080 187 1.0% 17,893 (187) 5% increase (projected) 
--- - - - -

Previously was for munis PACE training 
02433124 55308 WB- Travel Reimbursement - 250 - - - (250] -100.0% 250 250 travel 

General Exoenses Total 38,909 56,627 44,173 52,396 52,396 (4,231] -7.5% 56,627 4,231 

Water Bllllna Total 172.778 211744 158.173 221 058 222 970 11226 5.3% 226.250 3280 A 

Page 2of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Ora Oblect Description Actual BudAOt October BudAOl Budaet {Decrease} %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Distribution 
8 FT split 50/50 Water Distribution/Sewer 

02433222 51110 WO- Sal/Wages FT 157,370 236,716 137,385 239,221 238,729 2,013 0.9% 238,729 - Collection 
Avgs OT rate "' $35/hr, 600 hours: for 
WD/SC/WWTP/PS (caDs from dispatch 

02433222 51300 WO- Sal/Wages OT 18,649 21,000 14,372 21,000 21,000 - 0.0% 21,000 - or SCADA alarms) 
Pay for after hours on-call status, 1 
employee at S210/week split 50/50 

02433222 51310 WO- Sal/Wages Stand-By 844 7,280 3,090 5,460 5,460 {1,820) -25.0% 5,460 - WO/SC 
4 FT per union contract, sptit 50/50 

02433222 51400 WO- Longevity Pay 181 2,150 - 2,200 2,200 50 2.3% 2,200 - WO/SC 
02433222 51121 WD-Sal/Wai:ies Education/Trainini:i - 1,125 - 1,125 1,125 - 0.0% 1,125 -

Salaries Total 177,045 268,271 154,847 269,006 268,514 243 0.1% 268,514 -

02433222 52100 WO- Health Insurance 34,326 74,334 26,359 88,271 71,368 (2,9661 -4.0% 71,368 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
02433222 52110 WO- Dental Insurance 2,024 4,936 1,390 5,183 4,437 {499] -10.1% 4,437 - 5.0% increase in the oremium rate 
02433222 52120 WO- Life Insurance 128 184 102 192 192 9 4.6% 192 - No increase 
02433222 52140 WO - Health Insurance Buvout 6,655 1,606 1,359 1,746 3,756 2,150 133.9% 3,756 - No increase 
02433222 52200 WO-FICA 11,030 16,633 9,392 16,678 16,648 15 0.1% 16,648 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
02433222 52210 WO- Medicare 2,579 3,890 2,196 3,901 3,893 4 0.1% 3,893 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
02433222 52300 WO- Retirement Town 25,291 36,297 20,951 35,335 35,196 (1,101} -3.0% 35,196 - 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433222 52600 WO- Workers Comp Insurance 9,561 10,135 10,135 10,743 10,743 608 6.0% 10,743 - Primex 

Benefits Total 91,594 148.014 71,884 162,048 146.233 (1,781) -1.2% 146,233 -
9 water pumping stations/weDs; PW 

02433222 55022 WO• Building Maintenance 5,845 7,000 17,512 7,000 7,000 - 0.0% 7,000 - campus analysis 

02433222 55105 WO- Eauioment Maintenance 5,478 5,000 792 5,500 5,500 500 10.0% 5,000 (500) Pumps, generators, misc equipment 

Trench patch, materials, crushing; 
02433222 55252 WO• Road Repairs 8,789 25,000 5,145 15,000 15,000 (10,000} -40.0% 25,000 10,000 replacing deteriorating service saddles 

15 vehicles/equipment, 4 trailers split 
02433222 55319 WO- Vehicle Maintenance 9,943 10,000 10,952 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - 50/50WD/SC 

5 Hydrant assemblies, risers, service 
saddles, curbstops, pipe, valve boxes, 
other parts; 100 hydrant maintenance@ 
$220 (S22K); 100 valves turning @ 

02433222 55296 WO- Svstem Maintenance 53,476 60,000 42,343 60,000 60,000 - 0.0% 60,000 - $100/valve ($10K) 

Tank maintenance & rehab programs - 1 
MG Hampton Rd $37,300/yr; 1.5 MG 

02433222 55059 WO- Tank Maintenance 115,072 102,089 78,186 105,329 105,329 3,240 3.2% 102,089 (3,240) Epping Rd Tower S68,029/yr 
Distribution licenses exams/renewals 

02433222 55173 WO- Licenses 839 800 15 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - $50/ea 
02433222 55190 WO• Mobile Communication 1,390 1,600 816 1,600 1,600 - 0.0% 1,600 - 4 MiFrs (50%); tablet 

Pump station flf'8 alarms for Gilman, 
02433222 55545 WO• Fire Alarm Communication 4,180 3,500 2,450 2,100 2,100 (1,400) -40.0% 3,500 1,400 Lary, & Stadium - S175/qtr ea. 

02433222 55134 WO- General Hand Tools 932 1 800 1 003 1,800 1,800 - 0.0% 1,800 - Drills, bits, taps, dies, ratchet wrenches 

Page 3of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budaet October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budaet fDecreasel Exolanation 

Contract w/Fleet Screen & Convenient 
MD; USDOT required random testing for 

02433222 55003 WO- Drug/Alcohol Testing 245 900 126 500 500 (400} -44.4% 900 400 all CDL holders & screenina new hires 
02433222 55257 WD- Safetv Eauioment 1,344 4,000 1,153 4,000 4,000 - 0.0% 4,000 - PPE incl hardhats, aloves, Tvvek suits, rE 

02433222 55314 WO-Uniforms 2,363 2,400 1,055 2,400 2,400 - 0.0% 2,400 - Per union contract, 8 split 50/50 WO/SC 
Neptune handheld and software 
agreement with Ti-Sales $6,000 (50% 
W/S); PeopleGIS asset managment 
modules $5,000, Upgrades & Support 

02433222 55136 WO- GIS Software 25,635 25,000 17,992 12,000 12,000 (13,000} -52.0% 25,000 13,000 $4,000 

Rebuild/replace meters to AWWA 
accuracy specifications, 400 meters >10 
yrs old $140k; brass meter parts $15k; 
testing, repair & replace backflow 

02433222 55188 WO- Metering & Back Flow 162,490 163,000 115,341 163,000 163,000 - 0.0% 163,000 - devices $8k, brass fittings 
Pumps, 1/0 cards, check valve rebuilds, 

02433222 55235 WO- Pump Station & Towers 5,303 24,450 12,808 24,450 24,450 - 0.0% 24,450 - fuses/breakers 
Heating/generator fuel; new generators 

02433222 55194 WO- Natural Gas 9,284 12,000 7,554 11,000 11,000 (1,000} -8.3% 12,000 1,000 at new well buildinas 
02433222 55092 WO- Electricity 77,139 75,000 63,244 75,000 75,000 - 0.0% 75,000 - Water Pumoina Stations and towers; 3 w, 
02433222 55128 WO-Fuel 12,677 14,200 11,724 14,200 14,200 - 0.0% 14,200 - Vehicles & equipment fuel 

General Exoenses Total 502,423 537,739 390,214 515,679 515,679 (22,060} -4.1% 537,739 22,060 

Water Distribution Total 771-061 954024 616 944 946.733 930.425 {23.599) -2.5% 952 485 22060 A 

Page 4of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 
·- --

20255B 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease I %- Difference Budnot (Decrease) Explanation 

Treatment 

02433523 51110 WT- Sal/Wages FT 267,541 306,231 235,053 337,310 340.008 33,777 11.0% 338,522 (1,486) 5 FT (First FY of Treatment Operator) 
02433523 51300 WT- Sal/Wages OT 55,734 19,075 48,735 45,000 45,000 25,925 135.9% 45,000 -

Pay for after hours on-call status, 1 
02433523 51310 WT- Sal/Wages Stand-By 7,280 14,560 6,160 10,920 10,920 (3,640) -25.0% 10,920 . employee at $210/week 
02433523 51400 WT- Longevity Pay 1,800 1,900 . 2,000 2,000 100 5.3% 2,000 . 2 FT per union contract 
02433523 51121 WT-Sal/Wages Education/Training 1,500 1,500 . 1,500 2,250 750 50.0% 2,250 -

Salaries Total 333,855 343,266 289,947 396,730 400,178 56,912 16.6% 398,692 (1,486) 

02433523 52100 WT- Health Insurance 92,722 113,671 82,864 151,794 151,794 38,123 33.5% 151,794 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
02433523 52110 WT- Dental Insurance 5,989 7,171 5,147 8,574 8,574 1,403 19.6% 8,574 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
02433523 52120 WT- Life Insurance 245 207 160 240 240 33 15.9% 240 - No Increase 
02433523 52200 WT-FICA 20,261 21,282 17,485 24,597 24,811 3,529 16.6% 24,719 (92) Based on wages: 6.2% 
02433523 52210 WT- Medicare 4,738 4,977 4,089 5,753 5,803 825 16.6% 5,781 (22) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
02433523 52300 WT- Retirement Town 46,012 46,444 39,230 52,108 52,471 6,027 13.0% 52,282 (189) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
02433523 52600 WT- Workers Comp Insurance 9,559 10,132 10,132 10,740 10,740 608 6.0% 10,740 - Primex 

Benefits Total 179,527 203,885 159,108 253,806 254,433 50,548 24.8% 254,130 (303) 

02433523 55022 WT- Buildino Maintenance 10,952 12,000 9,537 15,000 15,000 3,000 25.0% 12,000 (3,000) 3 buildings @ SWTP & GWTP 
SWTP clearwell cleaning, GWTP basin 

02433523 55368 WT- Basin/Lagoon Cleaning - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - cleanings 

Equipment repair & replacement: flow 
meter: valves: pumps; motors; blowers: 
chemical feed systems: valves; process 

02433523 55105 WT- Equipment Maintenance 45,913 45,000 22,684 45,000 45,000 - 0.0% 45,000 - instrumentation & analyzers 

Laboratory & field equipment reagents; 
02433523 55294 WT- Supplies Lab Equip 30,646 30,000 23,691 30,000 30,000 - 0.0% 30,000 - instrumentatlon calibration & verification 

Process-related engineering services 
(ex: nitrification): Part- Time Water 

02433523 55055 WT- Consulting 2,500 30,000 - 10,000 10,000 {20,000) -66.7% 30,000 20,000 Treatment Supervisor 

VT SCADA!Telemetry, Hydrau5c Model 
02433523 55270 WT- Software Equip/Contracted Srv 6,153 10,000 - 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 . H2O Map On-Call Suooort Services 

Required training for licensing; 
professional development: master 

02433523 55173 WT- Licenses 400 1,000 125 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - electrician 15 hr training 
02433523 55190 WT- Mobile Communication 1,093 2,600 694 2,600 2,600 - 0.0% 2,600 - WTP Ops. Supr. & On-caU cellphones, 1 1 

02433523 55545 WT- Fire Alarm Communication - 1,500 . 1,400 1,400 (100) -6.7% 1,500 100 SWTP/GWTP fire alarms - $175/qtr ea. 
Boots, gloves, hard hats, eye & hearing 

02433523 55257 WT- Safety Equipment 1,130 1,500 719 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - protection 
02433523 55314 WT-Uniforms 2,223 2,600 1,140 2,600 2,600 - 0.0% 2,600 - Per union contract, 4 Operators 

VT SCADA, Mission SCADA, XL 
Reporter annual software maintenance 

02433523 55271 WT- Software Services 8,457 11,000 5,189 11,000 11,000 - 0.0% 11,000 - agreements 
Annual NHDES Dam registration fees: 
Reservoir & Pickpocket (high hazard) -

02433523 55072 WT- Dam Reaistrations 1500 3.000 - 3.000 3,000 - 0.0% 3000 - $1500 ea 

Pages of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

20255B 
Budget vs. 2025S8 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 20255B $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/• 

Org Object Description Actual Buda:et October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Skinner Springs in Stratham, CDX 
easement for Summer St. Pickpocket 

02433523 55229 WT-Property Taxes 466 400 308 750 750 350 87.5% 400 (350) Dam in Brentwood now tax exempt 

SDWA Compliance & Water Quality 
Analysis: bacteria, organic carbon, 
volatile & synthetic, quarterly 
PFOA/PFAS $4,500/qtr, 30 Lead & 

02433523 55161 WT- Lab testina 19,632 40,000 15,199 40,000 40,000 - 0.0% 40,000 - Copper samples, chloramines 

Water treatment chemicals: ammonium 
sulfate, sodium hypochlorite, ferric 
chloride, polyaluminum chloride, sodium 
hydroxide, carbon, sodium bi-carbonate, 
potassium permanganate, 

02433523 55034 WT- Chemicals 154,726 170,000 147,908 200.860 200,860 30,860 18.2% 170,000 (30,860) polyphosohate 
02433523 55194 WT- Natural Gas 18,955 27,500 16,854 25,000 25,000 (2,500) -9.1% 27,500 2,500 Heating/aenerator fuel 
02433523 55092 WT- Electricity 78,491 80,000 64,940 80,000 80,000 - 0.0% 80,000 - Pumps, lights, etc. 
02433523 55128 WT-Fuel 1,714 3,000 1,857 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Water Treatment vehicles 

Alarm Lines: AT&T(SMS Text) 
$1500/YR, Comcast $3200/YR, 

02433523 55211 WT- Phone Lease Alarms 4,232 5,500 4,247 6,500 6,500 1,000 18.2% 5,500 (1,0001 Consolidated $1800/YR 
General Expenses Total 389,183 481,600 315,093 494,210 494,210 12,610 2.6% 481,600 (12,6101 

Water Treatment Total 902.565 1028751 764.148 1144 746 1148 821 120 070 11.7% 1,134 422 114 399) A 

Page 6 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025SB 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ lncreasel- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/-

Org Object Description Actual Budget October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Debt Service 
02471125 58024 Water Tank SRF 222,514 229,972 229,972 237,681 237,681 7,709 3.4% 237,681 - 2028 Final payment 
02471125 58010 Water Line- Main & Lincoln Sts 120,000 120,000 120,000 - - (120,000 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02471125 58012 Portsmouth Ave Waterline 15,268 - - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
02471125 58023 Lary Lane GWTP SRF 237,479 242,133 242,133 246,879 246,879 4,746 2.0% 246,879 - 2036 Final payment 
02471125 58027 Lincoln Street Phase #2 9,593 9,593 9,593 9,593 9,593 - 0.0% 9,593 - 2032 Final payment 
02471125 58028 Court Street Culvert 3,747 3,747 3,747 3,747 3,747 - 0.0% 3,747 - 2027 Final payment 
02471125 58032 Washin11ton Street 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 - 0.0% 55,000 - 2028 Final payment 
02471125 58035 Salem St. Uti6ty Design & Engin 25,385 25,385 25,385 - - (25,385 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02471125 58036 Surface Water Plant TTHM Treatment 88,241 88,241 88,241 88,241 88,241 - 0.0% 88,241 - 2034 Final payment 
02471125 58038 Groundwater Sources 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 105,000 - 0.0% 105,000 - 2025 Final payment 
02471125 58042 Salem St. Utility Improvements 139,706 139,706 139,706 137,255 137,255 2,451 -1.8% 137,255 - 2036 Final payment 
02471125 58047 Groundwater Exi,loration 88,900 88,900 88,900 88,900 88,900 - 0.0% 88,900 - 2036 Final payment 
02471125 58048 Westside Drive Desian & Emlin 24,197 - (24,197 -100.0o/o - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
02471125 58052 Groundwater Source Development 95,069 95,069 95,069 95,069 - 0.0% 95,069 - 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
02471125 58051 Westside Drive Construction 63,083 63,063 63,063 63,063 0 0.0% 63,063 - excludes SRF) 

Water Debt Service Principal Total 1,110,832 1,290,006 1,265,810 1,130,428 1,130,428 (159,578} -12.4% 1,130,428 -

02472126 58524 Water Tank SRF 48,233 40,774 40,774 33,065 33,065 (7,709 -18.9% 33,065 - 2028 Final payment 
02472126 58502 Water Line- Main & Lincoln Sts 12,240 6,120 6,120 - - 6,120 -100.0o/o - - 2024 Final payment 
02472126 58504 Portsmouth Ave Waterline 817 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
02472126 58522 Lary Lane GWTP SRF 74,153 69,499 69,499 64,753 64,753 (4,746 -6.8% 64,753 - 2036 Final oavment 
02472126 58525 Lincoln Street Phase #2 4,509 4,020 4,020 3,530 3,530 (490 -12.2% 3,530 - 2032 Final payment 
02472126 58529 Court Street Culvert 956 764 764 573 573 (191 -25.0% 573 - 2027 Final payment 
02472126 58531 Washington Street 16,065 13,260 13,260 10,455 10,455 2,805 -21.2% 10,455 - 2028 Final payment 
02472126 58535 Salem St. Uti&ty Desian & Enain 2589 1,295 1,295 - - (1,295 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
02472126 58536 Surface Water Plant TTHM Treatment 6,578 5,639 5,639 4,699 4,699 (940 -16.7% 4,699 - 2034 Final payment 
02472126 58538 Groundwater Sources 16,065 10,710 10,710 5,355 5,355 5,355 -50.0% 5,355 - 2025 Final payment 
02472126 58542 Salem St. Uti&tv Improvements 88,642 81,517 81,517 74,392 74,392 7,125 -8.7% 74,392 - 2036 Final payment 
02472126 58547 Groundwater Exi,loration 49,358 40,795 40,795 36,261 36,261 4,534 -11.1% 36,261 - 2036 Final payment 
02472126 58548 Westside Drive Deslan & EO!'.lin 2,420 - 2,420 -100.0% - 2029 Final payment ESTIMATE 
02472126 58552 Groundwaler Source Development 24,647 24,647 19,394 19,394 5,253 -21.3% 19,394 - 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
02472126 58551 Westside Drive Construction 49,047 49,047 45,027 45,027 (4.020) -8.2% 45,027 - excludes SRF) 

Water Debt Service Interest Total 320,206 350,507 348,086 297,504 297,504 297,504 -
Debt Service Total 1.431.038 1640513 1.613.896 1427.932 1427932 1212 581\ -13.0o/o 1.427932 - A 

Page 7of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Water Fund Budget: Select Board 

Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

2025SB 
Budget vs. 2025S8 2025 Default 

2024 Budget Budget vs. 2025 Budget vs. 2025 SB 
2023 2024 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025S8 $ Increase/- 2024 Budget Default Budget $ Increase/• 

Org Object Descriotlon Actual Budaet October Budnet Budnet (Decrease) %· Difference Budnet (Decrease) Explanation 

Canltal Outlav 
02490027 55318 CO- Capital Outlav • Leases 15,329 - - - - - - - See separate lease schedule 

Allocation of Vehicle Data Gathering (AA 
02490027 57006 CO- Capital Outlay - Equipment . 22,500 15,951 1,935 1,935 (20,565) -91.4% 22,500 20,565 Tracking) system 
02490027 57009 CO- Capital Outlav - Vehicle - 26,750 - - - (26,7501 -100.0% . . See separate lease schedule 

CO- Capital Outlay - Land 
02490027 55361 Acquisition/Purchase - - - -

SWTP Filter/Clarifier Maintenance 
$29,463 (YR3 of contract); Gilman Well 
Rehabilitation $60,000; Cross Road 
Water Storage Tank Cleaning $40,000, • 
GWTP Filter Media Replenishment 
$30,000; Epping Road Storage Tank 

02490027 57015 CO- Water Svstem Capital 461,260 541,000 23,075 270,000 270,000 (271,000) -50.1% 270,000 - Mixer Replacement $50,000 
02490027 57016 WF• Capital Outlay - WTP 5,000 - -

Caoltal Outlay Total 476,589 59D,250 44,026 271,935 271,935 (318,315) -53.9% 292,500 20,565 A 

Water Annronrlatlons from Reserves 
02490100 55010 WF- Approp frm Res Rate Study 20,000 - - - -

Annrop. from Reserves Total 20,000 . . . - - . -
Water Fund Total 4,201,051 4,962,773 3,524,096 4,605,092 4,601,357 (361,417) -7.3% 4,613,401 12,044 A 

WF -Warrant Articles/Borrowing -
Groundwater Source Development - 6,800,000 6,800,000 CIP pg.35 

02500000 59045 SEIU 1984 Collective Bamainlnn - TBD TBD SEIU 1984 CBA 
School Street Area Reconstruction 1,692,800 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 
Surface Water Treatment Plant - Design 500,000 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 

Total Warrant Articles/Borrowing . 2,192,800 - 6,800,000 6,800,000 . 0.0% . (6,8000001 

Total Water Fund with WAR 41201,051 71155,573 3,5241096 11,405,092 11,401,357 13,736) 0.0% 416131401 ,617871956) 

Page8of8 



Town of Exeter 
-

2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

"u"., ue,aun: 
2025 SB Budget 20258B Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Org ObJect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
SEWER FUND 

Administration 
2 FT WIS Mgr & Asst Mgr Split 50/50, 

03432031 51110 SA- Sal/Wages FT 227,832 293,347 166,355 324,505 333,649 40,302 13.7% 320,512 (13,137) and GF allocations 
GF allocation (HR Assistant move to 

03432031 51200 SA- Sal/Wages PT - 3,043 3,237 3,477 3,225 182 6.0% 3,216 (91 FT) 
PT Seasonal Employee 50/50 W&S 

03432031 51210 SA- Sal/Wages Temp 3,417 3,500 - 3,500 3,500 - 0.0% 3,500 - Split 
Salaries Total 231,249 299,890 169,592 331,482 340,374 40,484 13.5% 327,228 (13,146 

03432031 52100 SA- Health Insurance 49,442 67,336 29,202 80,172 76,377 9,041 13.4% 73,170 (3,207 ADocations from GF 
03432031 52110 SA- Dental Insurance 4,150 5,568 2,684 5,758 5,407 (161) -2.9% 5 212 (195 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52120 SA- Life Insurance 253 265 132 302 302 37 14.0% 293 (9 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52130 SA- L TO Insurance 589 540 405 602 602 62 11.5% 535 (67 Allocations from GF 
03432031 52140 SA- Health Insurance Buyout 641 2,377 1,783 2,813 2,813 436 18.3% 2,813 - Allocations from GF 
03432031 52200 SA-FICA 14,146 18,593 10,386 20,552 21,103 2.510 13.5% 20,288 (815) Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432031 52210 SA- Medicare 3,308 4,348 2,419 4,806 4,935 587 13.5% 4,745 (1911 Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
03432031 52300 SA- Retirement Town 31,993 39,690 22,305 42,600 43,759 4,069 10.3% 42,056 (1,703) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432031 52600 SA- Workers Comp Insurance 5,144 5,453 5,453 5,780 5,780 327 6.0% 5,780 - Primex 

Benefits Total 109,666 144,170 74,768 163,385 161,078 16,907 11.7% 154,892 (6,186) 

20% of general office supplies, copy 
costs, batteries: 50% of meter records 
maintenance; 50% supplies/maint. 

03432031 55293 SA-Supplies 3,004 4,500 2,445 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - multi-function plotter 
Postage allocation, IPP notices and 

03432031 55224 SA-Postage 2,331 2,000 2,679 2,200 2,200 200 10.0% 2,000 (200) MOR reports 

03432031 55055 SA- ConsuHing Services 12,700 5.000 12,845 8,250 8,250 3,250 65.0% 5,000 (3,250) Process-related engineering services 
03432031 55124 SA- Fleet Insurance 818 876 876 937 937 61 7.0% 937 - Primex 
03432031 55228 SA- Prooertv Insurance 85,065 91,018 91,017 97,389 97,389 6,371 7.0% 97,389 - Primex 

03432031 55158 SA-Insurance Reimbursed Repairs 1,548 1 - 1 1 - 0.0% 1 - Damage repairs on insurance claims 
Legal expenses related to EPA permit 

03432031 55170 SA- Legal Expense 5,216 7,500 - 7,500 7,500 . 0.0% 7,500 - issues 
20% Director, Town Engineer, Asst 
Engineer cellphones, 50% W/S 

03432031 55190 SA- Mobile Communications 144 800 241 800 800 - 0.0% 800 - Manager 

03432031 55002 SA- Advertising 591 500 - 500 500 0.0% 500 - Bid packages, requests for proposals 

Annual national conference Dir, Eng 
03432031 55050 SA- Conf Rooms/Meals 583 3,500 333 2,880 2,880 (620) -17.7% 3,500 620 20%, WS Mgr & Assl Mgr 50% 

Wastewater treatment and collections 
03432031 55091 SA- Education/Training 1,769 4,500 2,895 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - training 

Employee wellness needs beyond 
those provided by the Town's health 
insurance carrier. Hold until program 

03432031 55098 SA- Employee Wellness - 2,500 - - - (2,500) -100.0% 2,500 2,500 is further developed 
General Exoenses Total 113,768 122,695 113,331 129,457 129.457 6,762 5.5% 129,127 (330) 

Administration Total 454 683 566 755 357.692 624.324 630.909 64153 11.3% 611.247 (19 662) A 

Page 1 of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

"u":, 1Jetau1t 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Ora Oblect DescrlDtlon Actual 2024 Budaet October Budaet Budaet (Decrease) %- Difference Budaet (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Bllllna 

1 FT Utmties Clerk (50/50 split W&S) 
03432134 51110 SB- Sal/Waaes FT 79,908 89,762 69,599 96,142 97,933 8,171 9.1% 97,349 (584) & GF Allocations 

1 PT Utilities Clerk 24 hrs/wk (from 16 
03432134 51200 SB- Sal/Waaes PT 3,793 13,819 3,314 14,519 14,389 570 4.1% 14,160 (229) hrs/wk PRYR) (50/50 spilt W$S) 
03432134 51300 SB- Sal/Wages OT - 75 56 25 25 (50) -66.7% 25 - AUocatlons from GF 

Salaries Total 83,701 103,656 72,969 110,686 112,347 8,691 8.4% 111,534 (8131 

03432134 52100 SB- Health Insurance 28,329 28,031 22,209 33,361 33,268 5,237 18.7% 33,268 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52110 SB- Dental Insurance 1,904 1,869 1,484 1,962 1,962 93 5.0% 1,962 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52120 SB- Life Insurance 108 92 72 96 96 4 4.3% 96 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52130 SB - LTD Insurance 119 113 85 110 110 (3) -2.7% 110 - Allocations from GF 
03432134 52200 SB-FICA 5,053 6,427 4,394 6,863 6,966 539 8.4% 6,915 (501 Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432134 52210 SB- Medicare 1,182 1,503 1,028 1,605 1,629 126 8.4% 1,617 (121 Based on waaes: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
03432134 52300 SB- Retirement Town 11,011 12,155 9,424 12,632 12,849 694 5.7% 12,774 (75) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432134 52600 SB- Workers ComD Insurance 1,199 1,271 1,271 1,347 1,347 76 6.0% 1,347 - Primex 

Benefits Total 48,905 51,461 39,968 57,976 58,227 6,766 13.1% 58,089 (138) 

Water bill processing, ink cartridges, 
paper, letterhead, pens, etc - based 

03432134 55200 SB- SUPPiies 2,773 3,250 1,611 3,000 3,000 (250) -7.7% 3,250 250 on historical 

Postage for sewer bills - based on 
03432134 65224 SB-Postaae 2,000 2,750 3,000 2,750 2,750 - 0.0% 2,750 - review of historical soend. 

Allocat!on of actuarial costs for GASB 
compliance. Split 50/25/25 GF/W/S 
(only need statement disclosure in 

03432134 55055 SB- Consultina Services 270 1,650 1,650 215 215 (1,435} -87.0% 1,650 1,435 20251 

Annual and Single Audits Fees - Year 
2 of 3-Year fee schedule. Allocated 
50/25/25% between GF. Water & 

03432134 55014 SB-Audit Fees 6,250 14,500 8,555 13,500 13,500 (1,000: -6.9% 14,500 1,000 Sewer - Total $54K 
03432134 55213 SB- Phone Utilization 5,319 6,876 5,273 5,400 5,400 11,475: -21.5% 6,875 1,475 12.5% allocation of IT cost 
03432134 55247 SB- Registry of Deeds 26 - - - Sewer Lien Releases 

12.5% allocation of IT internet 
03432134 55159 SB- Internet Services 729 4,646 2,223 5,613 5,613 967 20.8% 4,646 · (967) services Cwebsitel 
03432134 55383 SB- Email Archivina 1,113 1,238 - 263 263 (975: -78.8% 1,238 975 12.5% allocation of IT cost 

1/2 Munilink UB Sonware 
Maintenance (5% incr for 8 mo.) & 

03432134 55270 SB- Software Aareement 17,254 17,893 17,579 18,080 18,080 187 1.0% 17,893 {187\ 
Munis Allocation @ 7% Increase 
ltnrolectedl 
Previously was for munis PACE 

03432134 55308 SB- Travel Reimbursement - 250 - - - (250) -100.0% 250 250 training travel 

03432134 55091 SB- Education & Trainina 140 - - - - - - - Previouslv was for munis travel 
General Exoenses Total 35,872 53,052 39,890 48,821 48,821 (4,231) -8.0% 53,052 4,231 

Sewer Bllllnn Total 168-478 208169 152 827 217 483 219 395 11.226 5.4% 222.675 3280 A 

Page2of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #4 

,u,., uerau11 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budgetvs.2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default lncrease/-
Om Obfect Description Actual 2024 Budnet October Budget Budnet {Decrease> %· Difference Budnet {Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Collection 
03432532 51110 SC- Sal/Wages FT 155,796 236,716 135,271 239,221 238,729 2,013 0.9% 238,729 - 8 FT split 50/50 WO/SC 

WO/SC/WWTP/PS (calls from 
03432532 51300 SC- Sal/Waoes OT 640 21,000 283 21000 21,000 - 0.0% 21,000 - dispatch or SCAOA alarms) 

Pay for after hours on-call status, 1 
employee at $210/week split 50/50 

03432532 51310 SC- Sal/Wages Stand-By 844 7,280 3,090 5,460 5,460 (1,820) -25.0% 5,460 - WO/SC 
8 FT per union contract split 50/50 

03432532 51400 SC- Lonaevitv Pav - 2,150 - 2,200 2,200 50 2.3% 2,200 - WO/SC 
03432532 51121 SC- Education/Training - 1,125 - 1,125 1,125 - 0.0% 1,125 -

Salaries Total 157,280 268.271 138,644 269,006 268,514 243 0.1% 268,514 -

03432532 52100 SC-Health Insurance 34,103 74,334 26,360 88,271 71,368 {2,966 -4.0% 71,368 - 18.7% increase in the premium rate 
03432532 52110 SC- Dental Insurance 2,020 4,936 1,390 5,183 4.437 (499 -10.1% 4,437 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
03432532 52120 SC- Life Insurance 126 184 102 192 192 9 4.6% 192 - No increase 
03432532 52140 SC - Health Insurance Buyout 6,655 1,606 1,359 1,746 3,756 2,150 133.9% 3,756 -
03432532 52200 SC-FICA 9,807 16,633 8,393 16,678 16,648 15 0.1% 16,648 - Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432532 52210 SC- Medicare 2,294 3,890 1,963 3,901 3,893 4 0.1% 3,893 - Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan.Jun; 
03432532 52300 SC- Retirement Town 22,586 36,297 18,768 35,335 35,196 (1,101) -3.0% 35,196 - 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432532 52600 SC- Workers Comp Ins 9,559 10,132 10,132 10,740 10,740 608 6.0% 10,740 - Primex 

Benefits Total 87,149 148,011 68,466 162.045 146,230 (1,781 -1.2% 146,230 -
10 pumping stations, PW campus 

03432532 55022 SC- Buildina Maintenance 7,252 10,000 5,734 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 10,000 - analysis 

03432532 55105 SC- Equipment Maintenance 4,428 5,000 3,516 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - consumables; repairs; cutting heads 
03432532 55211 SC- Phone Lease Alarms 98 - - - - -

Sewer trench paving; compaction test 
requirements, service repairs at 

03432532 55252 SC- Road Repairs 350 10,000 - 5,000 5.000 (5,000) -50.0% 10,000 5,000 mains 
Mainl, catch basin & sump pump 

03432532 55153 SC- 1/1 Abatement - 5,000 - 5,000 5.000 - 0.0% 5,000 - removal, smoke & dye testing 
03432532 55369 SC- Pipe Re&ning - 5.000 4,302 5,000 5,000 - 0.0% 5,000 - Relining vitrified clay, RCP 

10 vehicles, 3 trailers, sp&t 50/50 with 
03432532 55319 SC- Vehicle Maintenance 9,715 10,000 4,648 12,000 12.000 2,000 20.0% 10,000 (2,000) water dist 

Transport of gravel, sand, etc. to 
03432532 55140 SC- Grit Removal 664 2,750 1,402 2,750 2,750 - 0.0% 2,750 - Waste Management 

Maintenance fee for Combined Sewer 
Overflow (CSO) $ 13.5K annual 
contract for monitoring NPOES public 

03432532 55543 SC- CSO Monitoring 13,500 13,500 10,125 13,500 13,500 - 0.0% 13,500 - notification of CSO events 

Manholes, piping & service repairs 
(reduced $20k in FY24 due to staffing 

03432532 55179 SC· Manhole Maintenance 55,241 50,000 18,498 50,000 50,000 - 0.0% 50,000 - shortages) 

Maintain 22 sewer pumps; wear rings, 
03432532 55236 SC- Pump & Control Maintenance 25508 30,000 7.067 30000 30000 - 0.0% 30000 - imoeUers. shaft couplinQs, seals 

Pago3of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

,u,., ueraun 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/• 
Om Oblect Descrlotlon Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

19 certifications for 16 individuals in 
sewer coUeclion; 1/2 master 

03432532 55173 SC- Licenses 399 850 15 850 850 . 0.0% 850 - electrician (due in Nov) 
03432532 55190 SC- Mobile Communications 1,819 1,780 816 1,780 1,780 - 0.0% 1,780 - 4 MiFi's (50%),2 tablets 

Contract w/Fleet Screen & 
Convenient MD; USDOT required 
random testing for all COL holders & 

03432532 55003 SC- Drug/Alcohol Testina 149 500 202 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - screening 

Main Pump Station fire alarm, 
03432532 55545 SC- Fire Alarm Communication 700 1,500 1,750 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 - Webster Pump Station 

PPE & tools for new asbestos pipe 
OSHA standards, confined space 

03432532 55257 SC- Safety Equipment 2,669 2,750 818 2,750 2,750 - 0.0% 2,750 - equip. malnt. 
03432532 55314 SC· Uniforms 2,363 2,400 1.055 2,400 2,400 - 0.0% 2,400 - 7 split 50/50 WO/SC 

Neptune handhold and software 
agreement with Ti-Sales $6,000 (50% 
WIS); PeopleGIS asset managment 
modules $5,000, Upgrades & Support 

03432532 55136 SC- GIS Software 4,893 10,000 8,413 12,000 12,000 2,000 20.0% 10,000 (2,000) $4,000 
VT SCAOAITelemetry, On-CaD 

03432532 55260 SC- SCADA Software 2,133 3,000 364 3,000 3,000 - 0.0% 3,000 - Support Services 

03432532 55301 SC-Tools 300 2,500 702 2,500 2,500 - 0.0% 2,500 - Sewer augers, CCTV parts 
03432532 55194 SC- Natural Gas 12,443 15,000 8,491 15,000 15,000 - 0.0% 15,000 - Heat & generator fuel 
03432532 55092 SC- Electricity 121,044 105,000 73,937 120,000 120,000 15,000 14.3% 105,000 (15,000) Heat, lights, pumps, etc. 

Diesel, propane, gasoline for vehicles, 
03432532 55128 SC-Fuel 12,677 14,200 11,724 14,200 14,200 - 0.0% 14,200 - equipment and pumpina stations 

General Expenses Total 278,342 300,730 163,579 314,730 314,730 14,000 4.7% 300,730 (14,000) 
-

Collection Total 522.772 717 012 370.689 745 781 729473 12.461 1.7% 715473 114.0001 A 

Page4 of 8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

&u&g UeTaUll 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Ora ObJect Description Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Treatment 

03432633 51110 ST- Sal/Wages FT 236,662 331,804 207,218 372,313 374,932 43,128 13.0% 373,489 (1,443) 6 FT (First FY of Treatment Operator) 
03432633 51200 ST- Salaries/Wages PT 32,530 - -

average OT rate :a: $36.95/hr, 514 
03432633 51300 ST- Sal/Wages OT 17,876 19,000 15,052 19,000 19,000 - 0.0% 19,000 - hours 

After hrs on-call status, 2 employees 
03432633 51310 ST- Sal/Wages Stand-By 7,000 14,560 6,100 21,840 21,840 7,280 50.0% 21,840 - at $210/wk 
03432633 51400 ST- Longevity Pay 850 900 - 950 950 50 5.6% 950 - 1 FT per union contract 
03432633 51121 ST- Education/Training 1,750 1,750 - 1,250 1,250 (500) -28.6% 1,250 -

Salaries Total 264,138 368,014 260,900 415,353 417,972 49,958 13.6% 416,529 (1,443) 

03432633 52100 ST- Health Insurance 90,744 141,814 83,285 181,947 172,266 30.452 21.5% 172,266 - 18.7% Increase In the premium rate 
03432633 52110 ST- Dental Insurance 5,900 9,160 5,513 11,039 11,039 1,879 20.5% 11,039 - 5.0% increase in the premium rate 
03432633 52120 ST- Life Insurance 216 252 153 288 288 36 14.3% 288 - No increase 
03432633 52200 ST-FICA 15,431 22,817 15,259 25,752 25,914 3,097 13.6% 25,825 (891 Based on wages: 6.2% 
03432633 52210 ST- Medicare 3,609 5,336 3,569 6,023 6,061 724 13.6% 6,040 (21) Based on wages: 1.45% 

Based on wages: 13.53% Jan-Jun; 
03432633 52300 ST- Retirement Town 36,238 49,792 29,878 54,559 54,803 5,011 10.1% 54,619 (184) 12.75% Jul-Dec 
03432633 52600 ST- Workers Comp Insurance 9,561 10,135 10,135 10,743 10,743 608 6.0% 10,743 - Primex 

Benefits Total 161,698 239,306 147,791 290,351 281,114 41,808 17.5% 280,820 (294) 

3 high exposure buildings; 6 new 
03432633 55022 ST- Buildina Maintenance 8,926 11,000 12,890 11,000 11,000 - 0.0% 11,000 - bldgs & 4 lame process tanks 
03432633 55050 ST-Conf/Room/Meals 315 - -

Equipment repair & replacement: 
chem feed pumps; flow meters; 
motorized valves; aerators; 
centrifuges (2); RAS/WAS pumps (6), 
UV Bulbs, Ballasts & wiper motors 
($50k); DO, ORP & TN probes 
replacement ($15k); Atlas Copco, 

03432633 55105 ST- Equipment Maintenance 98,788 100,000 77,027 130,000 130,000 30,000 30.0% 100,000 (30,000) Solarbee circulator malnt. contract 
Invasive species control In lagoons 

03432633 55337 ST- Weed Control 2,243 4,500 2,482 4,500 4,500 - 0.0% 4,500 - from 2x to 3x/yr 

03432633 55204 ST- Outfall Dredging 3,000 6,000 - 6,000 6,000 - 0.0% 6,000 - Cleaning & Inspection on plant outfall 

Industrial pre-treatment permit 
03432633 55154 ST- Industrial Pre-treat 9,733 15,000 5,475 12,000 12,000 (3,000) -20.0% 15,000 3,000 renewals w/monitoring (Typ. 5/YR) 

Inter-lagoon sluice gates/piping. wires, 
03432633 55220 ST- Pond/Lagoon Maintenance 1,193 2,000 - 2,000 2,000 - 0.0% 2,000 - etc. 

Required training for licensing; 
professional development; master 

03432633 55173 ST- Licenses 569 1,000 200 1,000 1,000 - 0.0% 1,000 - electrician 15 hr training 

WWTP Ops. Sup. & On-call 
03432633 55190 ST- Mobile Communications 1,157 3,000 847 2,600 2,600 (400) -13.3% 3,000 400 cellphones, 1 MiFi for SCADA backup 

WWTF fire alarms and SCADA 
alarms, 2 A TT Cellular Alarm Dialers, 

03432633 55545 ST- Alarm Communications 4243 8000 1.473 8000 8000 - 0.0% 8,000 - Comcast 

Page5of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

"'v"'"' ueraun 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Orn Oblect DescriDtion Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %· Difference Budget (Decrease) ExDlanatlon 

Contract w/Fleet Screen & 
Convenient MD; USDOT required 
random testing for all CDL holders & 

03432633 55003 ST- Drug/Alcohol Testing 20 500 132 500 500 - 0.0% 500 - screening new hires 

PPE, gas monitors, Tyvek suits, 
03432633 55257 ST- Safety Eauioment 2,277 3,500 2,325 3,500 3,500 . 0.0% 3,500 - gloves, confined space eaulp. malnt. 

03432633 55314 ST- Uniforms 2,751 3,700 1,949 3,000 3,000 (700) -18.9% 3,700 700 Uniforms for 5 WWTP operators 
VT SCADA & maintenance 

03432633 55260 ST- SCADA Software/Hardware 6,966 7,500 5,185 7,500 7,500 - 0.0% 7,500 - agreement 

Annual NHDES Dam registration 
fees: WWTP Outfall & Clemson Pond 

03432633 55072 ST- Dam Registration 1,500 1,500 - 1,500 1,500 - 0.0% 1,500 . $750 ea 
lli:SU testing, GBTN Permit testing, 
NPOES EPA effluent testing 
(PFAS/PFOA, Arsenic), groundwater 
monitor report, Great Bay & river 
monitoring from PREP $85k & TN 
annual report; Biosollds monitoring 

03432633 55161 ST- Lab Testing 115,016 120,000 105,838 120,000 130,000 10,000 8.3% 120,000 (10,000) (PFASIPFOA including car washes) 

polymer, magnesium hydroxide, & 
03432633 55034 ST- Chemicals 107,857 130,000 77,164 130,000 130,000 - 0.0% 130,000 - supplemental carbon 

Biweekly centrifuge sotids generation 
& weekly disposal at Tumkey: July 
2024 price increase ($145 to 
$155/ton); July 2025 price increase 

03432633 55373 ST- Solids Handling 262,867 325,000 196,387 300,000 300,000 (25,000} -7.7% 325,000 25,000 1($155 to $164/ton) 
03432633 55194 ST- Natural Gas 15,236 30,000 10,304 17,500 17,500 (12,500) -41.7% 30,000 12,500 Building heat 

Aerators, lights, recirc. & chem feed 
03432633 55092 ST- Electricity 206,796 250,000 169,728 230,000 230,000 (20,000) -8.0% 250,000 20,000 pumps; Increase in rate 

WWTP vehicles: pick-up w/p'row, 
03432633 55128 ST-Fuel 5,120 5,400 3,117 4,100 4,100 (1,300) -24.1% 5,400 1,300 SUV, front end loader, UTV 

03432633 55131 ST- Gas Monitoring - 100 - 100 100 . 0.0% 100 - Hydrogen sulfide monitoring 
General Expenses Total 856,256 1,027,700 672,838 994,800 1,004,800 (22,900) -2.2% 1,027,700 22,900 

Sewer Treatment Total 1282 092 1635,020 1,081.528 1700.504 1,703.886 88866 4.2% 1725,049 21.163 A 

Page6of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sawer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Version #4 

.,.u.,.., Uel8Ult 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024 Budget 2025 Default Increase/-
Om Obiect Descriotion Actual 2024 Budget October Budget Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 

Debt Service 
03471135 58009 Jady HiD Phase II 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 130,000 - 0.0% 130,000 - 2032 Flnal payment 
03471135 58013 Portsmouth Av Sewerfine 79,732 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
03471135 58011 Sewer!ne Lincoln & Main Sts 15,000 15,000 15,000 - - (15,000 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
03471135 58025 Lincoln Street Ph#2 53,219 53,219 53,219 53,219 53,219 - 0.0% 53,219 - 2032 Final payment 
03471135 58035 Salem St. Uti6ty Design & Enain 24,538 24,538 24,538 - - (24,538} -100.0% - - 2024 Final oavment 
03471135 58033 Wastewater Treatment Plant 2,620,678 2,620,678 - 2,620,678 2,620,678 - 0.0% 2,620,678 - 2039 Final oavment 
03471135 58040 SWTP Lagoon Sludge Removal 145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 - 0.0% 145,000 - 2036 Final payment 
03471135 58041 Salem St. Utitity Improvements 88,853 88,853 88,853 87,294 87,294 (1,5591 -1.8% 87,294 - 2036 Final payment 
03471135 58046 Westside Drive Design & Engin 8,737 - (8,737] -100.0% - 2029 Final oavment ESTIMATE 
03471135 58053 Court Street Pump Station 76,056 76,056 76,055 76,055 (1, 0.0% 76,055 - 2028 Final oavment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
03471135 58051 Westside Drive Construction 19,757 19,757 19,757 19,757 - 0.0% 19,757 - excludes SRF) 
03471135 58054 Sauamscott River Sewer Siphons 510,000 510,000 510,000 510,000 - 2034 Final payment 

Sewer Debt Service Principal Total 3,157,020 3,181,838 552,423 3,642,003 3,642,003 460,165 14.5% 3,642,003 -
03472136 58520 Jadv HiD Phase II 31,879 27,350 27,350 23,150 23,150 (4,200) -15.4% 23,150 - 2032 Final payment 
03472136 58505 Portsmouth Ave Sewerlins 4,266 - - - - - - 2023 Final payment 
03472136 58503 Sewer!ine Lincoln & Main Sis 1,530 765 765 - - (765 -100.0% - - 2024 Final payment 
03472136 58526 Lincoln Street Ph#2 25,013 22,299 22,299 19,585 19,585 (2,714 -12.2% 19,585 - 2032 Flnal oavment 
03472136 58535 Salem St. Utility Design & Engin 2,503 1,251 1,251 - - (1,251 -100.0% - - 2024 Final oavment 
03472136 58533 Wastewater Treatment Plant 838,617 786,203 - 733,790 733,790 (52,413 -6.7% 733,790 - 2039 Flnal payment 
03472136 58540 SWTP Lagoon Sludae Removal 92,455 85,060 85,060 77,665 77,665 (7,395 -8.7% 77,665 - 2036 Final pavment 
03472136 58541 Sa!em St. Utility Improvements 56,376 51,845 51,845 47,313 47,313 (4,532 -8.7% 47,313 - 2036 Final payment 
03472136 58546 Westside Drive Desian & Enain 874 - (874 -100.0% - 2029 Final oavment ESTIMATE 
03472136 58553 Court Street Pump Station 19,717 19,717 15,515 15,515 (4,202 -21.3% 15,515 2028 Final payment 

2038 Final payment (Bond only, 
03472136 58551 Westside Drive Construction 15,366 15,366 14,107 14,107 (1,259) -8.2% 14,107 - excludes SRF) 
03472136 58554 Sauamscott River Sewer Siphons 102,000 102,000 102,000 102,000 - 2034 Final payment 

Sewer Debt Service Interest Total 1,052,639 1,010,730 223,654 1,033,125 1,033,125 22,395 2.2% 1,033,125 -

Debt Service Total 4,209,659 4192 568 776,077 4,675,128 4,675128 482,560 11.5% 4,675128 - A 

Canltal Outlav 

03490237 57010 CO- Capital Outlay - Leases 15,329 106,655 87,001 87,001 87,001 (19,654) -18.4% 87,001 - See separate Lease schedule 
CO- Capital Outlay • Land 

03490237 55361 Acquisition/Purchase - 1 - {1) -100.0% 1 1 
Allocatlon of Vehicle Data Gathering 

03490237 57006 CO- Capital Outlay - Eauioment - 22,500 15,951 1,935 1,935 (20,565) -91.4% 22,500 20,565 l(AA Tracking) system 
Fine Bubble Aeration Blower Repair 
($50k), Centrifuge 6,000 HR Service 

03490237 57017 CO- Capital Outlay- WWTP 33,620 15,000 9,567 100,000 100,000 85,000 566.7% 15,000 (85,000) 1($50,000) 

03490237 57009 CO- Capital Outlay - Vehicle - 26,750 - (26,750) -100.0% - See separate Lease schedule 
Capital Outlav Total 48,949 170,906 112,519 188,936 188,936 18,030 10.5% 124,502 f64434) A 

Sewer .a.n., ronriatlons from Reseives 
03490363 55010 SF- Anorop from Res Rate Study 20.000 - - -
03490363 55540 SF-Approp fnn Reserves-Siphons 47,134 468,938 - -

Sewer Appropriations from 
Reserves Total 67,134 - 468,938 - - - - -
Sewer Fund Total 6 753.767 7.490 430 3,320.270 8152.155 8,147.727 657296 8.8% 8 074.074 (73,653) A 

Warrant Artlcles/Borrowinn 

Page7of8 



Town of Exeter 
2025 Sewer Fund Budget: Select Board 
Prepared: December 30, 2024 Verslon#4 

,v, .. uemu11 
2025 SB Budget 2025SB Budget vs. 2025 
vs. 2024 Budget Budget vs. SB Budget$ 

2023 2024 Actual: 2025 BRC 2025SB $ Increase/- 2024Budget 2025 Default Increase/-

Om Object Description Actual 2024 Budnet October Budnet Budget (Decrease) %- Difference Budget (Decrease) Explanation 
CIP pg.16 - Replacement of drainage 
infrastructure (from prior bond 

03500000 59122 Front/Pine Linden Street Orainaae - 150,000 150,000 proceeds) 

03500000 59126 Clemson Pond Cleaning & lnsp. - 500,000 500,000 CIP pg.29 (from prior bond proceeds) 

03500000 59127 WWTP Effluent Flume Repair - 245,000 245,000 CIP pg.33 (from prior bond proceeds) 

03500000 59045 SEIU 1984 Collective Bargaining TBD TBD SEIU 1984 CBA 
School Street Area Reconstruction 2,603,800 - - - PrlorYearCIP Item 
Webster Ave Pump Station 213,300 - - - Prior Year CIP Item 

Total Warrant Articles/Borrowing . 2,817,100 - 895,000 895,000 (1,922,100) -68.2% . (895,000) 

Total Sewer Fund with WAR 617531767 1013071530 313201270 910471155 91042t727 {11264,804) -12.3% 810741074 {968,653) 

Page8of8 



I 

Tax Abatements, Veteran's Credits & Exemption
1 



Permits & Approvals 



Town Manager Report 



Select Board Committee Reports 



CorresponcJence 



1/10/25, 2:46 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Bulletin #1 : And So It Begins ... 

Town 
of 

Exeter 

Bulletin #1: And So It Begins ... 
1 message 

NHMA Government Affairs <governmentaffairs@nhmunicipal.org> 
To: Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> 

New Hampshire Municipal Association 

Pam McElroy <pmcelroy@exeternh.gov> 

Fri, Jan 10, 2025 at 2:15 PM 

THE SERVICE AND ACTION ARM OF NEW HAMPSHIRE MUNICIPALITIES 

LEGISLATIVE 
BULLETIN 

, ~ _,. • "' '.' ' • . • " •: . ' 1 . ' • , . -. _'' 
0

1, ; I ~.• - ... 

. . . 

Legislative Bulletin 1 2025 Session January 10, 2025 

Live Bill Tracker 

And So It Begins ... 

Things are (finally) under way at the State House. 

Convening day, the constitutionally required first meeting of elected leaders in Concord, falls on the Wednesday after 
the first Tuesday in January, which this year was the latest day possible (Jan. 8). 

The biggest news coming out of convening day was on the House side, which took up several proposed amendments to 
House rules. 

A controversial plan to end the practice of having a public hearing on every piece of legislation was tabled after 
members of both parties spoke out against the change, which was recommended by the Republican majority on the 
House Rules Committee. 

However, two other floor amendments to the rules did go through: 

• House Rule 44 was amended to remove the requirement that committee executive sessions to vote on bills 
following hearings be posted for a specific date and time, enabling committees to hold executive sessions on any 
day the committee is meeting by a including a notice to the calendar that "executive session may be held 
throughout the day." By changing the notice requirement, supporters or opponents of any proposal will have 
fewer opportunities to make their case to individual legislators in advance of an executive session vote. 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=8489ea3715&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f: 1820890558010175838&simpl=msg-f: 1820890558010175838 1 /5 



1/10/25, 2:46 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Bulletin #1: And So It Begins ... 

• House Rule 20 was amended to eliminate the 3/5ths vote requirement to "special order" legislation in House 
Session, enabling a simple majority to change the order of bills publicly noticed in the House Calendar. With a 
lower bar to special order legislation, bills can be brought to a vote whenever the head count in the House 
chamber appears most favorable to the majority. 

As a result of the late start, there aren't many hearings next week, which is mostly taken up with committee 
orientations. However, public hearings on a few bills of importance to municipalities are scheduled next week (see 
below). 

Additionally, the text of several hundred bills has yet to be released. NHMA staff continues to review bill text as it 
becomes available and determine whether to support, oppose, or remain neutral on a bill based on our member
approved 2025-2026 Legislative Policies and Principles. 

Please visit our online Bill Tracker to get updates on all of the more than 400 bills we are currently following. We will 
continue updating that tracker as we gather more information and take positions on these bills. 

Senate Hearings on Elections, Retirement 

On Tuesday, January 14, starting at 9 :30 a.m. in State House Room 103, the Senate Election Law and 
Municipal Affairs Committee will hold hearings on three election-related bills. SB 16 would require municipalities 
to post copies of the "election returns" provided to the secretary of state in a multitude of places: the website, two public 
places where meeting notices are published, and on all social media accounts. SB 45 would modify the statute on where 
political advertising may be placed. Finally, SB 43 would remove "articles of clothing" from the list of "electioneering 
communications" prohibited within no-electioneering corridors at a polling place under RSA 659:43, VII. 

Also on Tuesday, January 14, at 1:30 p.m . in State House Room 103, the Senate Finance Committee will 
hold a public hearing on SB 20, a bill making the state responsible for 7.5% of local employer New Hampshire 
Retirement System contributions for teachers, police officers and firefighters. 

NHMA supports this legislation and encourages our members to contact the committee to support SB 20. 

Beginning in 1977, the State paid 35% of the employer contributions for Teacher, Police, and Fire members employed 
by political subdivisions through 2009, when the statute was amended to reduce the state's share to 30% in FY 2010 
and 25% in FY 2011. The 2009 amendment also restored the State contribution to 35% in FY 2012. However, the 
statute was amended again in 2011 to eliminate the State's percentage share of employer contributions altogether. The 
net result was to shift pension costs from the State to political subdivisions. In 2022, legislation provided one-time 
funding for employers in FY 2023, equal to 7.5%. SB 20 would obligate the state to make that contribution going 
forward, offsetting municipal retirement costs and, as a result, property taxes. 

House Hearings on Municipal Issues 

On Monday, January 13, the House Municipal and County Government Committee is holding public 
hearings in LOB Room 301-303 on a number of bills. 

First up at 10:30 a.m. is HB 84. This bill, which NHMA supports, would give towns the green light to charge up to 
$200 for each RV that doesn't meet the criteria for being non-taxable real estate in campgrounds. 

HB 86, which proposes upping the cost of notifying dog owners about civil forfeiture for unlicensed dogs to the certified 
mail rate, will be heard at 10:45 a.m. It turns out the current mailing cost exceeds the revenue brought in, so this 
change would bring the fee up to match market rates. Town Clerks are asking for this, and NHMA supports it. 

The hearing on HB 92, which prohibits an individual from simultaneously serving on the local zoning board and 
planning board, begins at 11:00 a.m. This aims to ensure a separation of powers but could make it harder in small 
towns to fill all the seats, which is why NHMA opposes the bill. 

Next up, at 11:20 a.m., is HB 99, which would allow municipalities bump up the optional disabled veterans' tax credit 
to cover 100% of property tax. NHMA is neutral on this bill because it provides a local option, albeit one that would 
shift the tax burden to other property owners. 

HB 101, which introduces a new homestead exemption for people aged 72 and older who have lived in New Hampshire 
for at least 10 years, is scheduled for 1:00 p.m. NHMA opposes this bill under its member-adopted policy to oppose 
legislation that directly or indirectly increases property taxes, including new or expanded mandatory exemptions or 
credits, or changes in the process for valuing, assessing, or taxing specific classes of properties. Instead, NHMA's policy 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=8489ea3715&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f: 1820890558010175838&simpl=msg-f: 1820890558010175838 2/5 



1/10/25, 2:46 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Bulletin #1: And So It Begins ... 

is to support a study commission of local enabling legislation to allow for a uniform homestead exemption for resident 
owners on the principal place of residence. 

We encourage stakeholders to opine on these bills through the House ?online testimony submission system, which 
lets you indicate your position on a bill with an option to attach testimony. 

The Elephant in the Room: The State Budget 
With slumping state revenues and the sunset of more than $2 billion in federal aid, incoming Gov. Kelly Ayotte is 
looking at a vastly different revenue picture than her predecessor. 

December revenue data released by the state last week came in $20.4 million below estimates, primarily due to lagging 
business tax collections that were $23-4 million less than expected. On the positive side, lottery sales and tax revenues 
from insurance, rooms and meals, and interest and dividends (which was repealed Jan. 1), generated surpluses. 

Through the first half of the state's fiscal year, taxes and fees brought in $1.17 billion, which is 3-4% ($41.2 million) less 
than lawmakers projected when they developed the current two-year state budget. Compared to 2023, the first six 
months of this fiscal year brought in 7.6% less ($96.1 million). 

One longtime House Finance Committee member told the New Hampshire Union Leader that the revenue numbers 
will make it harder to put together the next state budget. 

In addition to lagging state revenues, the state is potentially facing increased liabilities from pending school funding 
lawsuits and the growing cost of settlements tied to abuse at the state's youth detention center decades ago. 

In her inaugural remarks on Thursday, Ayotte tried to set expectations: "We've got to tighten the belt here in Concord. 
Just like any family ... what's going out, needs to match what's coming in. So, we are going to have to make reductions 
and recalibrate from the higher spending of the last few years." 

Of course, with campaign priorities including increasing housing access, expanding eligibility for education freedom 
accounts, and pension improvements for first responders to pay for, the big question is: Which belt gets tightened? 

It's too early to say for sure as the governor's budget proposal won't be released until February, but municipalities could 
be facing cuts to state aid, which would put pressure on municipal budgets and lead to property tax increases. 

This wouldn't be the first time. 

During the years immediately following the Great Recession, state aid to municipalities significantly decreased between 
2010-14 as the state struggled to balance its own budget. Several state aid programs were suspended or eliminated. For 
example, state revenue sharing was suspended from 2010 to 2025, and the state retirement normal contribution for 
political subdivision employers was repealed. Cuts to state aid, are, in effect, tax increases on property owners. 

NHMA will support/defend current state aid municipalities get, and fight against cuts in any form, but it's never too 
early for our members to impress upon their local legislators that cutting state aid is really a new tax on property 
taxpayers.? 

Alert: Anti-Lobbying Bill is Back 
You've heard this before, but the anti-lobbying bill is back for yet another go-around. 

HB 314 is essentially the same as last year's House Bill 1479, which is intended to cut those who represent local 
governments out of the legislative process (i.e., NHMA) and would affect any organization that supports, opposes, or 
even expresses an opinion about legislation at the State House or to legislators on behalf of the public officials or the 
employees it represents: police chiefs association, fire chiefs association, town clerks association, tax collectors 
association, health officers association, planners association, managers association, public works association-and the 
list goes on. 

Proponents of these recurring efforts to silence your voice will claim the bill is needed to save taxpayers money, but this 
is a red herring. Aside from the First Amendment implications of banning entire groups from speaking, the potential 
impacts of this bill on municipalities includes higher costs and property tax impacts through harmful legislation and 
reductions to state aid (if local officials or their representatives can't advocate, the state will downshift more and pass 
down more unfunded mandates!)?and potential loss of other services from organizations who serve local governments. 

https://mail .google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=8489ea3715&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f: 1820890558010175838&simpl=msg-f: 1820890558010175838 3/5 



1/10/25, 2:46 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Bulletin #1: And So It Begins ... 

Additionally, the bill's broad speech prohibitions extend far beyond local government organizations-even though that 
is the target of the bill-as the language applies to any organization that receives "an appropriation" from local, federal, 
or state sources. Most nonprofits and many private corporations will fall under this ban. 

NHMA will coordinate the effort with our many partner organizations to stop the effort to prevent local officials from 
having a voice in the legislative process and will share more information when the bill is scheduled for a hearing. 

You've heard this before, too, but we ask you to contact all your House members and ask them to vote against HB 314, 
which has been assigned to the House Legislative Administration Committee. Although that committee has not yet 
scheduled a hearing, it is not too soon to start contacting the members of that committee via email or phone or an in
person meeting and asking them to vote HB 314 Inexpedient to Legislate. (Please remember to cc: 
governmentaffai rs@nhmunicipal. org on any correspondence for our records.) 

On the Horizon: Right-to-Know Bills 

Another topic NHMA is seeing a lot of activity on is proposed changes to the Right-to-Know (RTK) law. Most of these 
changes could have negative impacts on municipalities. 

First off, there's a proposed change to the definition of "citizen" or "person." (HB 66) Right now, the law uses "citizen," 
but switching to "person" would open up RTK requests to anyone, regardless of their connection to New Hampshire. 
This means that anyone, anywhere, could request access to municipal documents. While this might seem like a win for 
transparency, it could also lead to a flood of requests from people with no ties to the state - or even AI-generated bots -
potentially overwhelming local governments. 

HB 66 also includes provisions for electronic requests and responses. This could be a double-edged sword. On the one 
hand, it makes the process more convenient and accessible. On the other hand, it could expose municipalities to 
security risks and make it harder to confirm that the requestor is who they say they are. Plus, not all municipalities have 
the resources to handle electronic requests efficiently, which could create additional challenges. 

Another big change on the table is the elimination of fees for responding to RTK requests by repealing last year's HB 
1002. (HB 114) Currently, municipalities can charge fees to cover the costs of compiling and providing the requested 
information - which are already the lowest in New England. Removing these fees could lead to increased 
administrative burdens and costs, as municipalities would have to handle more requests without any financial 
compensation. 

So, what could all this mean for municipalities? Well, it could lead to higher administrative costs, resource diversion, 
and increased security risks. It could also make it harder for municipalities to manage and respond to RTK requests 
effectively. 

NHMA supports the intent of the Right-to-Know Law. NHMA also supports measures to make the law clearer and 
compliance with public access requirements easier and less burdensome for public officials and employees and less 
costly for taxpayers. 

Most of the bills we are following have been referred to the House Judiciary Committee. It's crucial for municipalities to 
start speaking with legislators now about the potential impacts of these bills. By raising awareness and sharing their 
concerns, municipalities can help shape the legislation in a way that balances transparency with practicality. 

On the positive side (yes, that side actually exists), HB 74 defines the term citizen as a citizen of New Hampshire, which 
could reduce the volume of requests. The bill also includes the press in the definition of citizen, and provides for 
disclosure of preliminary drafts circulated to a quorum or majority of a public body. 

The only bill currently scheduled for a public hearing is HB 111 , which extends the state position of Right-to-Know Law 
Ombudsman for another two years. The hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, January 15, at 2 p.m. in Legislative 
Office Building 206-208. Ideally, NHMA would like to see the statute authorizing this position to be amended to 
give municipalities the ability to directly petition to the RTK Ombudsman. 

How to Make your Voice Heard 
The adage goes that "life is all about showing up." The same can be said for legislative advocacy. If a bill is of 
importance to your municipality, it's always best to make your case - for or against - in person. However, if you can't 
make it to Concord, you can use the Legislature's online portal to put your position on the hearing record. 

https://mail .google .com/mail/u/0/?ik=8489ea3715&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f: 1820890558010175838&simpl=msg-f: 182089055801 0 175838 4/5 



1/10125, 2:46 PM Town of Exeter, NH Mail - Bulletin #1 : And So It Begins .. . 

The House has?an?online testimony submission system that allows you to indicate your position on the bill with an 
option to attach testimony. 

The Senate has?a remote sign-in sheet where you can indicate whether you are supportive of a bill, opposed, or 
neutral. Written testimony can be submitted via the "Email Entire Committee" link found on the?Senate committee 
page.?? 

If you have time to follow along, livestreams of ?House?and?Senate sessions and committee meetings are available on 
YouTube. Prior sessions and committee meetings are also archived. 

Finally, if you just want to contact your local legislators, there are Contact a Senator and Contact a Representative 
links on the General Court website. 

Reminder: Sharing is Caring ... About Good Public Policy! 
If you know of anyone who may benefit from the NHMA Legislative Bulletin feel free to pass this email along and 
encourage them to sign up! 

Members can subscribe to the Bulletin through our member portal at:? 

https://nhmunicipal.weblinkconnect.com/portal? 

Once you are logged in, click "edit this profile" and "newsletter management." You can sign up for the Legislative 
Bulletin, Newslink, and Town & City magazine in one place! (If you are having trouble logging into your account, ? 
follow these steps.)? 

Bill Hearings Schedule 
NHMA Events Calendar 

2024 Final Legislative Bulletin 

Editorial Staff: 
Margaret M.L. Byrnes, Executive Director 

Marty Karlon, Editor in Chief, Policy & Research Analyst 
Sarah Burke Cohen, Legislative Advocate 

Brodie Deshaies, Legislative Advocate 

Layout & Communications: 
Miranda Augustine, Communications Coordinator 

New Hampshire Municipal Association 
25 Triangle Park Drive 
Concord, NH 03301 
Tel: 603.224.7447 

Email: governmentaffairs@nhmunicipal.org 
Website: www.nhmunicipal.org 

https://mail.google .com/maillu/0/?ik=8489ea3715&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f: 1820890558010175838&simpl=msg-f: 1820890558010175838 5/5 



Review Board Calendar 


